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10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
10 0.33
200,988.81 111,660.50 102,727.67

8,932.90
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2021 31 17,407.34
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2021

674 1.37
501 1.02
400 0.81
1,438 2.93
443 0.90
355 0.72
212 0.43
152 0.31
2,401 4.89
937 1.91
405 0.82
269 0.55
172 0.35
116 0.24
17 0.03
4 0.01
132 0.27
126 0.26
97 0.20
78 0.16
28 0.06
26 0.05
15 0.03
7 0.01
4 0.01
1,568 3.19
1,268 2.58
1,036 2.11
77 0.16
49,323 100.38
83 0.17
87 0.18
62,277 126.75
13,142 26.75

49,135
100.00

5,400
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30
2021
1 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.375 2044 15 3,502,891 3,261,812 4,391,131 .94
2 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2031 15 3,192,229| 2,910,107 3,195,720 .50
3 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2024 15 2,631,358| 2,520,552 2,741,942 .58
4 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2028 15 2,196,954| 2,199,204 2,486,821 .06
5 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250 2029 15 2,100,555| 1,966,433 2,197,002 .47
6 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2025 15 2,137,991| 1,999,647 2,181,717 .44
7 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2024 15 2,078,697 1,983,194 2,155,356 .39
8 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2023 15 1,958,187| 1,908,802 2,031,954 .14
9 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2024 10 15 1,926,421| 1,858,320 2,023,463 .12
10 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2028 15 1,663,292| 1,582,830 1,828,740 .72
11 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2030 15 1,766,317| 1,606,036 1,767,630 .60
12 |Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro 1.400 2025 26 1,391,568| 1,208,412 1,592,881 .24
13 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2026 15 1,482,148| 1,415,733 1,590,889 .24
14 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2030 15 1,513,590| 1,363,692 1,506,629 .07
15 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.375 2025 15 1,299,927| 1,208,481 1,420,846 .89
16 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2022 15 1,309,500| 1,287,319 1,318,882 .68
17 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 15 1,105,792| 1,082,929 1,199,159 44
18 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.750 2028 15 1,033,396 964,699 1,176,570 .39
19 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2022 15 1,108,899| 1,089,150 1,121,413 .28
20 |Fannie Mae, TBA 3.500 2051 1,122,939| 1,057,000 1,116,436 .27
21 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 950,210 953,981 1,067,102 .17
22 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.000 2026 15 806,695 759,353 904,482 .84
23 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.000 2046 15 787,446 697,563 884,052 .80
24 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875 2029 15 809,745 751,196 874,607 .78
25 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250 2025 15 822,049 782,817 856,136 .74
26 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2022 15 807,571 806,274 840,243 .71
27 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2042 15 832,318 703,338 838,929 .71
28 |Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro 0.400 2030 15 794,006 614,868 808,214 .64
29 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 687,650 693,005 780,554 .59
30 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2045 15 555,317 551,167 659,804 .34
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2021

71,434,645 7,850,667 17.25 1,896

2012 31
99,037,985 10,884,275 17.06 1,875

2013 31
89,446,622 9,830,184 17.06 1,875

2014 31
80,930,802 8,894,295 16.62 1,827

2015 31
62,793,186 6,900,971 16.62 1,827

2016 31
38,241,199 4,202,708 17.10 1,879

2017 31
38,320,854 4,211,462 17.13 1,883

2018 31
38,097,687 4,186,936 17.79 1,955

2019 31
39,629,858 4,355,321 19.08 2,097

2020 31
2021 31 49,135,309 5,399,970 20.59 2,263
2020 44,658,940 4,908,018 20.02 2,200
10 43,868,392 4,821,136 19.89 2,186
11 44,319,905 4,870,758 20.11 2,210
12 45,761,349 5,029,172 20.41 2,243
2021 46,118,455 5,068,418 20.49 2,252
46,376,074 5,096,731 20.00 2,198
47,744,873 5,247,162 20.05 2,203
48,411,114 5,320,381 20.36 2,238
49,128,259 5,399,196 20.59 2,263
48,447,828 5,324,416 20.70 2,275
49,740,307 5,466,460 21.23 2,333
51,397,794 5,648,618 21.17 2,327
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949,910 914,313 4,141,989
(949,910) (914,313) (4,141,989)
2,884,060 1,221,594 5,804,455
(2,884,060) (1,221,594) (5,804, 455)
258,740 819,629 5,243,566
(258, 740) (819, 629) (5,243,566)
590,870 965,008 4,869,428
(590, 870) (965,008) (4,869,428)
364,900 1,456,548 3,777,780
(364,900) (1,456,548) (3,777,780)
212,200 1,753,400 2,236,580
(212,200) (1,753,400) (2,236,580)
86,150 85,370 2,237,360
(86,150) (85,370) (2,237,360)
17,260 113,350 2,141,270
(17,260) (113, 350) (2,141,270)
124,270 188,409 2,077,131
(124,270) (188,409) (2,077,131)
390,420 81,250 2,386,301
(390, 420) (81,250) (2,386,301)
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USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank
Secrecy Act
CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10
476 CSSF CSSF
2021 10 30 2022 10 31
100 10
10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50
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2001 100
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5,000 1972 Exchange Control
Act 1972 BMA
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100
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2021

31

2021 31

62,281 6,845
0 0

18 2

102 11

11 1

317 35

73 8
7,296 802
0 0

TBA 2,239 246
134 15
125 14

0 0
72,596 7,978
16,213 1,782
2,969 326
25 3

202 22
638 70

0 0

TBA 3,356 369
0 0

21 2

0 0

0 0

0 0

17 2

10 1

1 0

9 1

0 0

0 0
23,461 2,578
49,135 5,400
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58,398 6,418
0 0
74 8
(35) =(4)
0 0
49,135 5,400
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20.59 2,263
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2021 31

1,347 148
0 0
1,347 148
201 22
112 12
103 11
9 1
17
0 0
442 49
905 99
1,245 137
0 0
294 32
(514) (56)
43 5
1,068 117
1,408 155
0 0
®) (€H)
(61) Q)
® (€H)
1,333 146
2,401 264
3,306 363
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0 0

0 0
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2021 31
3,306 363
(131,916) (14,498)
129,632 14,247
(1,616) (178)
1,642 180
(58) ©)
294 32
(513) (56)
30 3
TBA 7,420 815
43 5
19 2
356 39
TBA (11,959) (1,314)
@ )
2 0
0 0
0 0
2 0
2 0
2 0
(1,245) (137)
(294) (32)
514 56
(1,408) (155)
5 1
61 7
(36) C))
(829) (91)
(6,545) (719)
9,549 1,049
(1,606) (176)
147,752 16,238

(150,146) (16,501)
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0 0
6,601 725
56 6
28
84

18 2
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2021 31

19.08 2,097
0.41 45
1.10 121
1.51 166

20.59 2,263
7.91

49,135 5,400
0.99
0.95
2.03

0.01
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0 3,226

200 1,802
19,482 100,873
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JITF
2021 31 2021 31 2021 31 2021 31
16 1,655 10 1,103 333 13,075
4,526 81,947
an|  (7.642) @l  (5,094) @17 (28,250)
(10,360)|  (186,147)
68|  (5,987) B9 (3,991) 384 (15,175  (5,834)  (104,200)
2021 31 2021 31 2021 31 2021 31
88 5,587 38 422 390 7,826
134 4,012
5 404
13 835
29 1,566
47 644
37 1,139
@171) (10,802) an)| (1,922 G| @,627)
(270) (8,150)
(®) (581)
@4 (1,648)
(50) (2,806)
(3,029)|  (44,761)
(68) (2,098)
(83) (5,215) (3,188)  (51,444) @34 (1,500) 309 6,199
2021 31
489 38,036
161 16,732
50 4,921
5 526
240 22,516
2,870 310,406
“23) | (32,168)
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(41) | (23,433)
(10) (985)
322) | (30,350)
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1,243 136,529
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US GAAP
2021 31
2021 31
15
2021 12
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2021 31

0 i Lol
{ T-Hif) [-FHi{ir)

4. 2500 due 10,14/ 2021 5 0 5 88

Jrske Realkredit A/S

1. DOO% dus 10,01,/ 3050 DEE 2 250 1568

1. 000% due 10,01,/ 2053 ; 2

Nordes Kredit Realkreditsktisselskah

0. o0 due 10,01/ 2043 456 T3

1. 000% due 1001, T060 153 23

Nykredit Roalkredit A/S

1. 000% due 10/0),/ 2060 3,820 08

1. 000% dup 10001, 2053 I, 79 276

1. 500% due 10,/01,/3063 400 5

2.500% due 10/DL/I4T 3 |

3. 000% due 10,01/ 2047 8 |

Reslkredit Danmark A5

L. DOC% due 10,01/ 3053 ok B2

2. 500% due 04,/001,/2047 ] 1

1,783

Isperia]l Brands Finsnce PLC

3 125% due 0726,/ 3024 i 20 212

Utah Acquisition Sub, Inec.

3. 150% due 06/ 15,2021 K 2K
412

ATET, Inc.

2. BE0% due 1201,/ 2033 251 R

Petrobras Global Finance BY

5. 003% due O/ 15,2030 (£ 152
355

RO 2, 600

(xR $2, 515

Fannie Mae

0 H2% due 0725,/ 2007 L] L]

0. ATI% due 0725,/ 3037 10 10

0, 532% due 06,25,/ 2036 B ]

L 348% due 10,01/ 2044 2 2

3. 000% duc 05,00,/ 3043 76 52

4. 000% due 08/01/I043 250 23

Fannie Mae, THA

3. 500% due 07/01/m51 (k) 1,087 L. I8

Froddio Mac

0. T00% due 12/15./ 2037 13 13

Ginnde Mas

0. 599% due 08/20,/I068 2] 2]

SR BT R Oa £ 1, 564

(HR A $1, 548)
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2021 31

i B
{ T-HEfE) [

CERIRY B S TES 100, 4%

Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (c)

0.175% due 01715/ D022 5 s L1 5 1,319
0, 125% due 04/15/2002 1, 089 1,120
0. 125% due 07/15/2022 06 #40
0, 125% due O1/15/2023 2068 1%
0. 125% due 101552024 1, 558 2,023
0. 125% due 04/15/2025 (1) 2 000 2 182
0. 125% due 10/15/2025 306 537
0 195% duc 07/ 155026 1, 053 1. 158
0, 125% duc 01/15/2030 1, 606 1. 768
0 125% due 07/ 1575030 1, 354 1. 507
0125% due 01/ 157/2031 (F) 2,910 3, 185
0, 125% due 02/15/2051 153 1180
0.250% due 01/15/2025 783 856
0, 250% due 07/15/20%8 (F) 1. 966 2 157
0, 250% duw 02/15/2050 13 145
0. 375% due 07/15/2023 7 a3
0, 375% due 0715/ M025 520 G
0.375% due 01/ 15/2027 954 1. 067
0.37%% due 07/15/2027 - :
0 500% duc. 4 155024 (F) v | plir (vl
0, 500% duc DI/15/2028 (F) 2. |5 2 487
0, 625% due 07/15/2021 118 11
0. 625% dus 04 1570023 (F) 1, G 2082
0, 635% due O1/15/2024 (f) 1, 95 2 155
0. 625% due 0L/ 15/2025 1, 416 1, 551
0 625% dus 0215,/ 5043 133 161
0. 750% due 07/15/2028 1. 58 1, 829
0. 750% due 02/15/2042 70 0
0. T50% due 02715745 851 (=]
0. BT5% due O)/ 15,0020 i1 Hio
0. 875% due 02/15/2047 154 814
1. 000% due 02/ 15/ 5046 e HE4
1. 000% due 02152048 7 o
1, 375% due 02/15/2044 (D) 3, 62 4, 381
1. 750% due 01/15/2028 965 1, 176
2. 000% due 01/15/2025 750 90l
2. 125% due 02/15/2040 08 307
F1IEN due 02/ 15/5041 435 it
2. 375 due 0L 15302 1,208 1. 421
2.500% due 01/ 15/2029 318 110
33758 due O/ 15/7032 175 251
3 625% due M/ 150028 p 321
3. 875% due O1/15/20%9 1 14
.5 Treasury Bonds

1.625% due 11/15/2050 (F) 500 =
T R R B 49, 323
(MR I 345, 580)

E— A ? o b & GENE 4, 8%
AREIT Trust

L7215 duc D) 152037 6 T
Banc of America Funding Trust

d 140% due G0 204T 62 61
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage Trust

1. 150% due 09715/ 3066 35 38
Bayview Dpportunity Master Fumd I¥a Trust

B ATER due 06,28,/ 0034 37 37
CIM Trust

L. 082% due 02/26,/ 1045 20 20
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2021 31

0 BY

{ T-HEfE) [FHLE
Countrywide Home Loan Mortgage Pass-Through Traest
0. 672% due 04/25,/2065 1 105 H a7
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust
2 UREE due 10,27,/H058 a1 2
5 First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
0. 712% due DL/25,/ 2032 115 112
GSAE Trust
082S due DASI5IE (d) 26 b
G5R Mortgage Loan Trust
2, 049% due 09/25,/ 2035 15 18
Hewksmoor Mortgnges
10998 due 06,25,/ 1053 GBI 197 pi 1)
Home Equity Asset Trust
0. T6TS due 0225/ 70036 3 100 o3
HSI Asset Securitization Corporation Trust
0. 252% due 05,25,/ 2057 56 55
IndyMac INDK Mortgage Loan Trust
0. 572% due 0725,/ 2005 141 137
0 B32% due 05,28,/ 3034 127 125
JPuorgan Mortgage Trust
2, 560% due 06/25/2035 i i
Leohman X5 Trust
1. 242% due '12/25,/ 7037 (d) 1l 43
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust
08276 due 0825,/ 2035 =2 =
Mellon Residential Funding Corporation Mortgage Pass-Through Trust
0. 961% due 05715,/ 2082 | 7
New Rosidential Mortgage Loan Trust
2. 750% due 07/25,/M549 156 164
Option One Mortgage Loan Trust
0. 847% due 1125,/ 2034 75 75
Residential Mortgage Securities 32 PLC
1, 295% due DES20,/ 2070 GEI o 131
Sazon Assot Securities Trust
0. 502% due 0925/ 2037 3 13 18
Strutton Morteage Fundipg FLC
1. 2455 due 0G/25/M061 Gar =1 116
Tewd Point Mortgage Funding Granited PLC
Lo 110% due 10,/30,/5051 62 rat |
Twin Bridges PLC
Lo 10 due 06,12/ 3053 194 g
Wally Mortgage Pase-Through Certificatos Trust
28874 due 0325/ 2007 (d) 3 21 |
E—4—1F < 200 7 EERTRE 2, 381
(EFE $2, 200)
0, 5200% due 1215,/ 2060 EUR 5 305
Cairn CLO IIT BV
0, 650% due 1020,/ 7028 d14 plE
CBAM Ltd.
1. 420% dug 10,17,/ 2029 1 00 a0
Grosvemor Ploce CLO BY
O T20% due 10030,/ 3020 EUR &2 14 b
Harvest CLO XIV DAC
0. 630% due 10718/ H029 a2 B
5t Paul's CLO IV DAC
0. 8500% due 04,25,/ 3030 50 405
STWD Ltd.
1. 181% due 07,15,/ 2068 5 100 100
T b« Aw P ERSH 1,575
(MM 31, 563)
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2021 31

0 oy BYER

{ T-HEfE) {FHife)
Argentine Treasury Bills
G5, 108% due 04,700,2022 ARS BE3 3 i
Australia Government Bond (c)
1. 250% duwr DL/21/ 2022 AUTY HIE 435
3. 000% due 06/20,/ 2025 (] 70
Canada Governsent Bond
1. 250% due 12/01/2026 (e) CAlr 158 172
France Govermsent Bond
0. 1005 due 03700/ 0026 (c) ELR P F i
Italy Bucni Poliennali del Tesoro (c}
0. 400% due 05,15,/ 2030 15 Hi
1. 400 due 0536,/ 2025 1, 08 1. 53
Japan Gowernment CPI-Linked Bond (c)
0, 005% due 03/ 10,2031 ¥ 3, o8 250
0. 100% due 03/ 10,2028 a0, 328 282
0, 100% du 0310,/ 2029 40, 158 HrH]
Mezico Government Imternational Bomd
4. 500% due 11/22/3035 (e} L 226 17
Poru Governsont Intormsticmal Bond
5. 0% due 02712/ M09 PEX 10 H
6. 150% duc. 08/12/5032 K B
7Y AR 4, 321
(M ER 34, 06g)
Australin and Now Zoaland Banking Group Ltd.
(0L 20000 dun 06,01/202] AU 28 21
0 005% due D61 2021 5 6 74
Bank of Nava Scotia
0. 002% due D6/, 2021 15 15
BN Paribas Bank
(0. 550%) dae 06,/01/202] K 1 1]
(0, 310%) due 06,/01,/202] ¥ 5] |
0 005% due D6/01,/ 2021 i} 8 [
0 005% due 06,/001/3021 i 7l 7l
Brown Brothers Harrisan & Co.
(0L 31000 dur 06,01,°202] ¥ L] 1
Citibank M. A
0. 005% due 06,01 2021 5 42 42
DES Bank Ltd,
0, Q0SS doe 05,0102 4 i
DnB Hank ASA
(0. T80} due 0G0/ 202 FUR 3 i
0 005% due D6/01,/ 2021 3 3 3
HSBC Bank PLC
(0. TB0%) due 0G0 /202] FUR s e
JPorgan Chase Bank HoA.
0, 005% due D6/01,/ 2021 3 5] &
MUFG Bank Ltd.
(0L 310%} doo 06,/01/202] ¥ 44 0
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
(0, T80 due 06/01,/2021 EUR 26 3
(0. 310%) doe 06012021 i A6
0, 005% due 06/01/ 3021 GRP 2
00055 due 06,01 5021 3 3 i |
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2021 31

0 LB

{ T-Hkfir) [
Sumivomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd
(00 3100 due 0500,/ 202] ¥ BT L ]
0. 0054 due 06,01,/ 221 GBI 1 0
0, 0% due DG/00/M02] 5 ]

487
s L N
34 117% due 06,30,/2021 ARS 2 BER 17
BT TEF due 06,/30,/2021 371 2
38,043 due 073052021 340 2
40, 541% due 10302021 L] -]
26

S e A Ei3
(R IE 3514}
RS (a) 126,88 % 62, 2E1
(e IR 354, 506)
AW DT R () (0,29 (107}
(AN E 72 7 A, Bl $035))
F0BOREE LURN. MW (26 6% (13, 038)
PR 100, 0% ¥ 40, 135

O E AR A e S R e - T, MIRERR L)

* Ve, TRASRCESEA ShtERieERLTv 5D bR,

(m) 202194 5 B 31 8 MECEMPE N L S RN EERSHoRSL. RECET SHFRO0T. 3%, BSLMRESECN SE S8 ED
foEizlnigRaha,

(b} RITRRRFIER,

() ESCHEHERLIA -7 o LTS TV A,

() MBS,

(o) &—al, WRETORED R,

A kTR Ol O RS R

b e B LA S

WEH HASH" (AR (ASBSE fAEY b

By LTS 05/ 172021 06,01,/ M2 3 7. 106) 5 {7, 106}
BN L4 0B0L/202] 06/ 15/ 121 (7. 257) {7, 257}
GRE 0, KR 5/ 24/ 3021 O 202 {3 [ H
GRE 0, KR 05,2520 06,08/ MY {347 (A7)
GRE 0030 05,/05,202] 07,06, 1021 {123) (123}
GRE 00B0%  06/14/2021 07/ 14/ 2021 (2443 (243
GRE . (e a5/11./2021 o7/ 125002 {123) 13
GRE 0, 60 05/ 1272021 07/ 1252l {630 (AN
e o o S 5 (16, 213)

142/361



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

2021 31
w¥E e H AR LRI
wry HASHY (B89 (AAHAE) HRAE" B &G
=N 0. G0 05,/ 28,/2021 0E/DL /202 5 {2 apo) _I- (2, W)
AR LIRE A i
S oRIESENR
F—rt—FAF
BEU
F o] WRET N EMNEWA 90 Mg FS o
2 LR
I § (7, 106) § iny § (L iE § N
I LN PR 3 i 3 (.18 § o 3
AR LR
WeluR § (2,969 3 0 § { ] [i] (2, )
89/ MR LISt 2968 _§ 0 0 0 (2, 968)
A ER § (10,078 1 (1, 139) [] 0 {11, 925)
L L UL AR LIRS s et Dol n ™ § (11, 825)

s TR L R S I 5 | O

EUFL, 2021 25 H 31 BRMED, MFRFS Lo MFARG SIS 2 OBROR- SRR IR O L RS (S ShtafkoRNTha,
() 2021958 31 BAYE, TEDAS—NEOSMIZE-SE, WERELL 058 % FACEAERMERE 22T S,

e T 0, WL AR LUt
Pind  BLARBE RICENE  BEDE  FOMORE BE (28 =7AX—3

nEH N S prikLe  RBe  paikie WEARISGHE ) r—MEY

Fa—rife» v A ¥ — - -H5E

L] § o 04,363 3 i ] LUB S E R0 E S = - T it

GRE [ (1, 8500 4 Q {1, 350) 1. 853 3

A ¥ —BEA T 4 U FI IR

CEN L (2, BEa) L] 12, 96a) 2972 3

0
HEA S LR U R £ L] 0§ OE203) 0§ (nus)  § [1]

*OLELRER A 3 PAE, 114 K FAnBRGREE TR,

ol 5 A 31 A RTINS, e TR AL 12, 502 4 Facr, MRS 0 18T et PERARE, IR G, W
BV LIRS 85 LT LB e 2 LG

R RO R OISR, (L26TVE P That

Bl - e, R TRITIROR PR okl e IBRLnRiLE) ol R, AL L PLOROR SR S
# Rpe= A —rk, F- ol E S0 A - RRI RS IR SRS TGRSR S TR S LD, A —HRERIZMT o8
IR RIC o TR, RS S EREOES (A -HBRE LBEnIE,
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2021 31

A
] wE E) RE (MR Wil AR
Bupn-lob] 5-Tear Note Jume Futures Long 06/ 2021 6 i [F4] H [} i [11]
Furg~BTFP 3-Year Note Jumw Futores Short 06/ 2] 2 W] [1] ¥]
Euaro-BTF 10-Year Bond June Futures Short G202 -] ] o a
Buro-Hund 10-Year Bord September Futures Loag 2021 ¥ 3 o (3
Eopro-ux] 30-Year Bond June Futures Short G 32 a5 B W i
Buro-Schota I-Year Note Sepresher
Futures Shart 202 6 n [t (1
U.5 Treasury 2-Year MNole Septeaber
Futures Fhors 92020 b (2 [ 0
IS5 Treasury 5-Year Note Septesber
Futures Long ey ia (1 H] ] 8]
.5 Treasury 10-Year Note September
Futures short a0 3 i [ 1]
U. 5 Treasury 20-Year Bond Septesber
Futures Short 092021 14 {12} o (5
1.5 Treasury Ultra 10-Year Nove
September Futures Shore [Tl 5 44 [ ()
1.5 Treasury Ultra 30-Year Rond
Seprember Futures Shere 0 202 5 ] L 4]
St i @ H 13 § Q8

3
= e o] SEpE _ EREERE 0
EBRaF  ERhEHIER i (HABA) MiERTE B P b5 B A
P S-Menth EURIEOR 1, 5215%) 11,521,203 EUR 1. 40 -1 4] 3 [ 1 [ 1 ]
45 J-Meath S0-LIEOE 1. DEE% 10/06,/2022 L] 3. 000 53 53 L1} L1
i §-Year French CF1 Ex

Tobacco Dally Referepce

Irde=x ) (e 03 15,2024 EUR {0 1] i} 1] L] Li]
a1} B-Month JPY-LIBOR 0. 450% C3/20, 2004 ¥ 1070 (31 S 1] Q [
Y Eurosinn Eurozene HICP

Ex Tobacco Unrevised

Sories NS4 o, 000 0515,/2022 EUR i) 9 ] 1 o
i Eurvstat Eurasene HICP

Ex Tolmwen Unrevised

Series NA 0, DO 07/ 15/2022 101 3 3 [i] o
& Eurostat Eurogene HICH

Ex Tobsweeo Unrevised

Series NSA 0, D00% 03,/ 18/203] A {14y (L L 12}
gt ] UK Rerail Price Imdex 0, DO 03/ 15./2022 GBpP 101 4} (n 0 L]
B UK Hetail Price Index LI a115,/2025 L, A0 k2 M) L] {3}
gt 1] IE Retail Price Index LR 08,15,/ 2050 G0 {200 {20 L] 2
o IE Reradl Price Imdex b, DO 04515/2081 ] o 1] 0 1]
it o] IE Revail Price Imlex i, 000% 03/ 15./2056 a0 (Bh (5) 0 {1}
g S CP1 Urban Consumers

HEA ih, 000 11/0272021 5 101 (3 (3 Q L]
Zm L% CP1 Urban Consumers

] 0. 000% a1/ 19/2022 3Kl () {3 1 ]
Tl 15 CPI Urbun Consimors

KEA o, DT a1/21/2022 130 [2h {2 1] o
i IS CF1 Urban Consumers

NEA 10, 000 02,701,202 3 () L] 1 L]
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2021 31

S
b ] W e EEWAE ___ XPERE
EBeR  EHEnNN HEel (N0 BERA WE (%) RE ik
o LS CP] Urban Consmsers

HEA 1, DO 04720 b1 300 H] 6] 5 {6) 1 1 5 ]
2 I'5 Pl Urban Consimers

H3A 0, D00% 02,105,/2022 100 L] {2 0 0
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund discusssd in this repact (each a "Fund” and callectnedy, the ™ Furds™), wiedh also indudies sadh dass of units of thal Fund (each & "Olass™ and collectivily,
the "Classes™), is a senes rust of PIMCO Bermuda Tt (e "Trust™), an open-ended wnit tust established under the Laws of Bermuda a5 a multi-series trust purssant
Lo fruest e oo tisd Bry Wincdhestter Global Trusd Company Limted cn August 8, 2001 (a5 Smended from time 1o time, the "Trust Déad™) Effecthe o of the dose
of business (Exstem time) on September 249, 2017, Maples Trustee Senaces (Bermuda) Limited (the “Trustee™) was appointed as trustes of the Trust Pagic investment
Management Company LLC (CPIMCO", the "Manager™ or the " Investment Adwsar™) is the sponsor of and was responsible fior sructueing the Trust

Thie Trust 5 sulbject 1o regulaton snd supendsion a5 provided fog In the Invesiment Funds A0t 2006 and related rides refating to standasd fumds

The terms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to establish further funds in addtion o the Funds
aumently in operation a5 of the date of this report

References o umithobders (each, 3 “Unitholder”, and collectively, the “Unithcdders "} in, or units of (or an investmentin), the Fund shall mean Unitholders of the Fund
whed hold urits, or dasses of wnits (as applicable), which are atrdbutabie to that Fund

The Funds presented in this report are fisted below:

Fend Difered &
PINCI) Bed mude Formign Lowy Dorasan Fund DHeied ooy 1o bond with 2 Tond of Funds” socturs, a5 delfeed 0 Bhe e of e el end Tk
PIMCD Batmigda 1,5, Love Deratice Fond Acvirtion, Japes, o i bk with somiar o ruciore s any other pradcsion

PIMCD Emergng Mart s Bond Fund UITF)
FIMCD Emargng Mades Bond Fund {fentadged

FRMCD Emergeog Mart e Bond Fund 0

PIMCD Bro Total Retumn Fund Ofered 10 redd irvasion in Jepan by wany ol pablc offerng shiomgh & derbuba i Japen, end iy

PIMCD Real e Fund B ol red 50 othes setion ot e deceetion of the Kasger

PIMED et Term Sirate g™ DHered 10 et irvesion in Japan by wery of pubdc offeneg thiough & detibuter sadior & sales
Hardding com parry i Japan, and may be offered 10 other invetion at the deoeton of the Wasager

FUECD Emergng Mart s s Bond Furd W) {Hared arly o other Fundk 10:0enve 6 an underling imeesim st vehicle Bor guch Fundk

= p S ! VUGN i i O T Dot -l Sty e i 1 o it i T i Py ™ ity i dalieiet i Wk vl s irvhToiet [t it i 5 55 il uath 3 vl iR Ty 2 a0 SR pRokE

Tl £ (500 e i A B D iy e ey i i gy i ooy e i i ey vt e il o ook Pl

Linits. of the FMCO Buro Total Retum Fund, PIMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUC. JFY, and US0 Classes of FIMCO Short-Term Strategy have been regrsfensd wnder the
Finanda Instruments and Exchange Law of kspan. Units of each of ihe remaning Funds and the C (USDY, B{IPYY, and ) (USE) Classes of PIMCO Shor-Term Strateqy
have not been and are not cuently expected to be registered umder the Ananda Instruments and Exchange Law of lapan Accordingly, sudh Units of these Funds may
niot bee, directly o indirectly, offered In Lapan of to any resident in Japan, excoepd in compliance with applicable lapanese |aws and regilstions

2. SIGRIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The folbowing 14 2 sumenarny of Sanificant sccounting polases conusiently follcwed by the Trwst in the preparaton of its Bnandal statements in confanmity with
acoaunting princples generally accepted in the United States of Amenica (TUS GAAFT). Each Fund is treated a8 an investment company under the reporting
requirements of LS. GAAP. The preparation of fnancal statements in accondance with U5 GAAP requines mana gement o make estimates and assumptions that
affent the reported amounts of assets and lisbilides and dedosure of contingent assets and Babilifes 21 the date of the finanda Satements and the reported amounts
ofinceases and dereases in met assets from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates

{a} Acquired Funds The Trustee and the Mansger may appdy all of @ portion of e assets of PIMCO Emerging Markers Bond Fund (TR, PIMCO Emerging Markes
B Funed (Y en- Hedged), and PIMCO Emergng Markets Bond Fund 1 feach refiered 5o heren 2 8 "Fund of Funds™ or She ~Acquinng Fund™, which inveas in ather
Fursds) o the respective areckt of the PIMCO Emergng Martets Bond Fund (M) {refermed (o herein a5 an " Acquired Fund(s)") Any assets 5o applied will be held i such
Arquired Fund(th a5 il recehsd dirscsy. Whene 3ot ts oo 5o appied, the Acquired Fund(s) will recond the issue of units i the relevant Acguinng Fund At the i price
per unit of sudh units and will repurchase such wnits at the repurchase price per unit of sudh enits 3t the tme of repurchase

Ratigs showm in the Fnangal Highlights de notindwde expenses of the Acguired Fundis). See Mote 9, Fees and Expenses, for further information regarding fund fees,
a5 appicable

(b} Securities Transactions and bvestaent Income Securities Fansacions are recorded a5 of the trade date for finanaal reporting purposes. Seawities purdrased o
Siodd on awhen-sssued of delayed-deliveny Basis may De seqthed beyand & standard setiement period for the Securiny after the rade dite. Realized gaens and |asses
from seunities sold are recorded on the identified costbasis. Dhvidend imcome s reconded on the ex-dividend date, except certain dvidends from Toreign seasities
where thi ex-ghadend date may have passed, whech are reconded a5 5000 354 Fund s inforened of she ec-didend date Imterest income, adusted for he agretion of
discaunty and Enornzation of premiemd, i4 recondid an the acmeal basis from settlement date. with the sxepton of tecriies with 3 forwand staring effective date,
wihere interest income |5 recorded on 1he sooudl bass from effiective date. For comvertible seasities, premiums steibutsblz o the conversion feature ane not
amortid Estimated L lLabilites on certan foseign setumities ane feconded on an acorual bases and are reflected &% componenis of inberest RO of el change in
unredized appredation (depredation) on imestments on the Statements of Operations, a3 appropriate. Tax liabilities realined a4 3 result of widh secunity sales are
reflected & a component of net realized gain Jossh on imvestments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and losses on mortgage-related and other
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Notes to Financial Statements

assel-backed securities, if any, are recorded a5 companants. of interest inoome

o the Siements of Operatons. Debt cbligations may be placed on non- Fond i AV Corrermy F:“
accrual status and relased interesinconme may be neduced by ceating cument =
acerudls and weiting off interest recetvable when the collection of all or g DT ] Jaganess yen 115, dollar
porticn of inlerest has become doulbtful hased on consistently apptied = JIEAA) Jepaneda yen U5 dedlar
procedures. A debt obBgation is rermdwed from non-accual status when the FIMECD Eura Total Fetum Fund Eiro [
PSALIT nesLrTes ENTEnes] panmrents of whin collectability of ntenest is probabie AN Roal Riegum Fund U5 dolar U5 dollar
fcl Cash and Foreign Currency  The financial statements of eadh Fund are Hm.m::nm Seregy .
presented using the asrendy of the prmany econamic evvirenmentin which it S ;‘;“{;‘;“u”" 3 ; ﬁ
operates (he “functicnal cumency™), The functional aumency for each of the . JUPW i TE
Furds i< listed in the below tabie s, e poplnhic)

Jwpanesa yen U5 dollar
The masket valees of foreign seauriies, cumency holdngs and other assets LI Jepnesa yn US. doller
anc Rakilites are randated into sad Fund's functional asrency based on he = UsD U5 dols U5, dollar

ClTent encanoe tates each busnes day. Purchases snd sales of seounises
aned inooied amd expente items dencminated in foregn qurnendes, if any, ane
trandated into eadh Fund’s respective ancsonal quency 31 the exchange
rate in effect on the transacion date The Fends di not separately repoet the
eflects of changes in foreign exchange rates from dhanges in market prices on
securities held Such changes are induded in net realized and net changes in
unteaized gain of loss Fom investments on the Statements of Cperations
The Funds may invest in foreign cumency denominated securities and may
engage in foreign currency transactions. either on & 5pof (cash) basis at the
rate pravailing i the currency exchangs market at the ime or Brough a
forward foreign qurency conract, Bealized foreign exchange gains or lgsses
anising from sales of spot forelgn cumendes, quFrency gains of ksses reghped
Betwien the trade and serdement dates on securities ransactons and the
difference besseen the recorded amounts of diidends, interest, and foreign
withholdng taxes and the funchonal asrency equvalent of the amaunts
actualty received or pad are induded in net realized gain of loss on Toresgn
QU nCy DRAMSICU0NS o the Srabements of Operations. Nit unslized fl:lf-':i!}"l
exchange gans and latses ansndg from dhamges in Boreign exchange rates on
Toreign dendminated assets and liabikties other than investments in sequnties
held at the end of the reporting period are induded in net change in
unredized appredation or depredaton on foreign cumendy aytets and

[ Mudtacless Operatiens Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
righits b the assets of the Fund squal to that of other Classes of the same
Furd, emcept for spedfic assets and gains and osses designated to a Jass
refating to cummency hedging operations. ncome, non-lass spedfic expenses,
and non-Class spedfic reafied and unrealized capital gars and losses are
allocated to each Qlass of units based on the relative net assets of each Class
of the respeciive Fund (lass spedfic expenses aumently indude
mananement, advsony, adminisiratve, agency, and distnibution fees, whire
apgicable

[e} Distribution Palicy The foliowing table shows the antiopated frequency
of distribusions for each Fund. Distibuwlions from each Fund may be dedared
and distritwted to Unithodders only upon the authonization of the Manager,
which authorization may be withheld at the Manager's discretion

Dirclired Dasty and Paond Masthhy

FRMCT Ewes Tortal Pedun Fusd

Dieclaed and Paid Monthby:

FEUCT] Errvar g Mt stz B ond Fund LIITRY
M G0 Ervvas g Bawrkons Bond Fiand [Yen-Hedged

[iahilities on the Statements of Operaticns FRUACT] Erner g Mladkes Blond Fund 11
The Met Assst Value ["NAV™) and total retums of certain Funds (or Classes PRUC) ShorrTenm Sramay
thereaf, &% applicable) are preserited in the currency forwhich the NaVis o j 'f];

reported (the "HAN currency™) a3 detailed in each Fund®s Odfering d
Memacandum (the "Cffering Mernorandum™). For the purpoes of the Declared and Paid Qoarterhy,
presentation of the MAV and the total retumi in the N&V currency, the FolbCT] Bermvoda Femagn Loww Durason Fund
begnning and ending MAVS are gomvverted wsing the period beginning and RN Bermuds U 5. Low Durséos Furd

ending exchange rates, respectively, and distrbations are comveted usng the Disclared sd Pid Anoualiv:

exchange rate a1 the time of the distibuton See the folowing tabde for the
Ny oumency of ead respective Fund

FIMCT Rl Pleture Fusd

PN ShereTorm Sramgy
P T
Fuuref T NAY ey Elari . COGH
- JPY
PIMAC) Blerrmurda Formgn Lowe Dusaton Fund Japanecs ven US dolla s U
PMCD Bormuda U 5. Low Curation Fund | dapaspven | U cklty The Manager doss mst epeci s declare disiributions wiith respeet 19 this Fomsd
P‘I“:ﬂ-fmmuyh; Band Furd LIITE) dpanesn yo U5 dolly for Classes thereod, if applicable), but may, in its discretion, declare and pay
Hh{.ﬂ-:rrmq:g;:hﬁu: Bord Fusd ] U5 ok B el dis wibutions to 1he Unithalders a1 any time.
-
PR Emargeng Martews Bord Furd Cenfindgedl | Dspanmoye | U5 ailw A0 Erwrging Moo Bund Find 14
FIMCE) g Mharkarm: Bard Fusd | deparnsie yen U3 dlly Dkttributions, if any, will genirally be mads from the relevant Fund's (o
= Ao Clarss™s, if appticable) net investment income In addition, the Manager may
o ANA authorize the payment of net realized capital gaing available for distribution
= JIR Agditional disributiors may be dedared a5 the Manager desis appropeiate
2 I Eéstributions paidwith respect to amy Fund {or Class thereod, if applicatie)
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will recpce the NAV of such Fund dor Class thersof, if appicable). At the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash dismibutions from a Fund (or Class theseaf,
it applicable) iy & ther be resmvested in addiionad urits of a Fund (or Class
therecd, If applicatle) or paid to 3 Unathalder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the HAW aurrency of the Fund. Eadh Fund {of Class theneod, if
applicable) may dedane further distmbutions d considered necessary in cader
L aimtain 3 feasonable level of destibutons or & Fund (or Class thereaf, if
applicable) In the event that there is inadequate net ncome and net realized
capital gains to pay a distibution of 3 Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
reguired by the Offering Memaorandiem, the Manager may pay a distribuion
congstng of a portion of the capital of sudh Fund {or Class thereof, if
applicable). Drstnibutions not oollected within st years from their due date
will lapse andwill aconse 1o the benefit of the relevant Rend {or Class thereof,
if applicable)

19 News Acceunting Pronsuncem enis and Regulatory Updates i March
2020, the Rnancial Accauntng Standands Board T FASB™) issued an
Ancounting Standsnds Update {"ASU"), ASL 2030404, which provides
optional gadance 10 eate the potenti i accounting burden sesosated wath
transioning away fom the London interbank Criered Rate {TLUBDR") and
aher refenenoe rates hal ae expecisd o be decontinued The ASL L
etiective immediately upon release of the update on March 12, 2020 through
[Crecemiber 31, 2022, At this time, management is evaluatng the implications
of these thanges on the finandal staements

3. IRVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

{o} Investmem Valuation Pelicies The price of 2 Fund's wmits is based on
the Fund's NAY. The HAV of 3 Fund, o each of its Classes, a5 applicable, is
determined by dividing the total valiee of porticlio Envestments and other
assets atmibutabde to that Fund or Class, less my::ﬂtﬂlillﬁ by the ot
number of urets cutseanding of that Fund or Class On each Fund's Dealing
Dray (a4 datcribed in the dament Crifering Memocandum of he

Trust), Fund units are ordmarity valued as of the dose of regular wadng on
thie Newr York Stock Exchange ("N SE Close ™) Infaimation that becormes
kniowm to the Funds or their agents after the time 3 of whidh MAV has been
cabculated on 2 particular day will nat generally be used bo retroacively adust
the price of a security o the MAV detérmined ealier that day Each Fund
resenves Me right to change the time as of whidh its NAV is calafated if

the Fund dases earlie

For purposes of calaulating WAV, portiolio securities and other assets for
which market quotes are readily avalable are valued at market walue Market
wale is gener ally determined on the basis of official dosing peices or the last
reported sales prices, of if no sales are reported, based on quotes obtained
from established market makers or prices (induding evaluzted prces) supplied
Ery the Funds’ appraved pricing serdces, QUOCaton feportng sysiers and
aher therdkparty sources (ogether, "Pridng Senices™). The Funds will
ncareally use peicing data for domestic equity secunties received shartly after
the HYSE Close and do nat nonmally take into socount wadng, dearances of
selllerments that take place after the WYSE Cloge | markel value pridng is
used, a foreign (non-U 5 ) equity sequrity traded on 3 foresgn exchange of on
e han one exchandge i5 tpically valued wiing prdang nlormation from the
exchange congderad by PIMCO fo be the pamary exchange. A foreign (non-
L% ) equity security will be vatued a5 of the dose of rading on the foreign
exchange, of the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ooors before the end of
tradfing on the foreign exchangs. Domestic and foreign fnon-L 3 ) fixed
ncome seqsites, non-£xchange traded derivatives, and equity opdions ane
rarital by walued on the Baus of quates oblained from brokers and dealers of
Fricing Sendces wsing such data reflecting the prindpal markets for those
securites, Prices oblaned fom Pricing Sendces may be based on, among
other thands, Infofmaton prow ded by marked makers of ssbmates of maret

walues obtaned from yield data relating to investments of securites with
similar characreristics. Cenan fed inoome semunties purchased on 3
defaped-ditlivery batis are marked o market daly unil seidement an the
foneard setlement date. Exchange-raded optons, eucept equity oplions,
futures nd ophons on futures ane valiued an the settiment prce degemmined
bry the relevant mochange, quotes obiained fram a quatstion reporting gystem,
estatlished markelmakers of pridng wenvices. Swagp sgreements ane valwed
on the bats of markeldased prices applied by Pricing Services of quabes
obtained from brokers and dealers. A Fund's investments in open-end
management investment companies, otfer than exchange-raded funds

ey

("ETFs"), are valued at the NAVs of such imestments

If & forelgn (non-US ) equity seouity’s value has matenially changed after the
dioze of the security’s primary exchange of principal market but before the
NYSE Close, the sequrity may be valued at fair value based on procedures
established and approved by e Manager. Foreign don-U S ) equily
senuities that do not trade when the NYSE is open e also valued 2 fair
value. With respect (o Toregn (non-L1S b equaty secunbes, & Fund may
determrane the L value of irmestmentt based on information provided by
Fricing Services and other third-party vendors, which may recommend fair
vl of adusmrents with rifenence 10 ather Securitses, indioes of 35w
considering whether far valuaion is required and in delermnining fair

values, a Fund may, among other things, comsider significant events which
may be conddered 10 indude dhanges in the value of U5 sequrities o

s ties indices) that ocour after the dose of the relevant market and before
the NYSE Close. 4 Fund may utilize modeling tools provided by thisd-party
wendors to determine fair values of foreign (non-UL5 ) seaurities. For these
puposes, any movement in the applicable reference index or instrument

(" 2000 triger™) Detwesn the eadier dose of the appScable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 1o be 2 significant event, prompting the
apedication of the pricing mode (effecively resulting in daiy fair

valisstions). Foresgn exchanges may pemiit rading in foreign (non-U5 )
equity securities on days when the Trudt is not open for business, which may
resuli in & Fund's portfolio e saments being sffected when Unitholders ane
unable b bury o sell units

Semor seogred foating rabe loans for whidh an SCthee Secondary matkel exdsty
1o a reiable degree will be valwed at the mean of the a5t available bidfask
prices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Pricing Senice Senior
secired floating rate foans for which an active secondany market does not
exisd 10 a refiable degree will be valued at fair value, which is ntended 1o
approximate marked value. In valuing 3 senice secured floating rate loan at
fakr value, the factors considered may indude, but are not limited to, the
fiollowing: (2) the creditworthiness of the borrower and zny intemediate
partidpants, () Se terms of the foan, (0 recentprices in te market for
sirndar loans, if ey, and {ch rescent pibces in the marker for irstruments of
similar quality, rate. period until mexd mberest rate reset and matunty

I e S wvalied in cusmendcies other than the funcional ourmency

of & Fund are convered to the fancionsd CUITEnCY Wng exchange rates
oblsned foin PrRdng Sendost. As  residt, the value of audh ifettinents and,
in tm, the MAY of the Fund's umits may be alfected by changes in the walse
of currendies in redation to the functional currency. The value of imvestments
fraded in foreign markets of denominated in arrenoes ather than

the functional currency may be affected significantly on a day that the Trust is
not open for busmess. As a result, to Bhe extent that a Fund holds foreign
(non-L15 ) imvestments, the value of those investments may change at times
wien youl cannot purchase, recesm of exchange units and the value of such
inestments will be reflected in the Fund's nest calodaned MAY

Inwes tmen s for which market quotes or market-based vauations are not
reaclly arvad ablie & vabued at far vlue &5 detemmined in good faith by
the Manager of persons acting a1 ther dinscteon. The Manager has adopted
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methecds Sor valuing securities and other assets in drosmstanes whers
kel quanes. are rof readly dvalable, and has delegated 1o PRACO the
respanstulity for spphying e far valuation methads. In the event that market
quotes of market based valuations are not readly available, and the seaurity
of a%eR cannon be valwed pursuant o & Manager appnoesd valuation
rmedhod, the value of the seamity or asset will be determined in goad faith by
the Valuation Corniraites. Markel quotes e oonsdened not readsly oealable
in anonmatanoes where thene is an absence of current or reliable market-
based data e g, trade information, biddask information, indicative market
quotations (T Broker Quotes™), Pricng Sendces’ prices), induding where
events ocour after the dose of the relevant market, bist prior to the NYSE
Close, that materially aifect the valies of the Fund's secusifies or assets. In
additon, market quotes ae conshdened not readly avalable when, duelo
extracedinary drourmtances, the exchanges o markets on which the
SECUFIGes rade dy not open for Trading for the entire vy 3nd mo other
rridkoet pricies ane available The Manager is nesponsible for ronitoning
significant events that may matenaly athect the values of the Fund's securities
of Jists and B determrining whethir the valise of the applicable tecunives of
assets should be reevaluated in light of such siqnicant events

Whien 2 Fund uses far valoation to determine the value of 3 pordoho seaurnity
o other asset for purpodes of cakulating its MAY, sudh imvestments will not
be priced on the bass of quotes from the primary market in which they are
traded, but rather may be priced by another mathod that the Manager of
persans acting at their direction believe reflects far value. Fair valuation may
require subjective detenmingSions about the value of a sequrity. While

the Trust's policy is intended to result in a caloulaBon of & Fund's NAY that
farly reflects sequrity values a5 of the time of pricing, the Trust cannot ensure
that fair values detemmined by the Manages oF persons Bang a mheir
direction would scourately refect the pce that a Fund could obtzin for a
security if it were 1o dispose of that sequrity & of the dme of pridng (for
ins1ance, in a forced of distressed sale). The prices used by a Fund mary differ
Tromm the ke tha would be realized if the securilies wene sold

(b} Fair Valus Hisrsrchy U5 GAAR deteribes fair valse a2 the price tat

a Fund would recefve w0 5ell an aoset or pay o ransfer a Babilityin an ordedy
Lransnhon betwbin market participants at the meauanement dae It
establithes a fair value hierarchy that priceifizes inguts to valuation metods
and requanes desdosuse of the $ar value herarchy, separatiely Ioe each majors
categony of astets and HabiiBes, that segreqgates fair value messurements inlo
Fevets Level 1, 2, or 3). The inputs or methodology used for valueng secunities
ari nof pecessanly an indcalon of e ridks Meodated with imeesting in thos:
securifes. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined a3 follows:

» Level |—Cuoted prices in active markets of exchanges for identical assets
and liakiities

w Linvef 2—Sinificant ather cbservable inputs, which may indwds, but ane
nok limited o, quoted prices for similar asseds or lizbilties in markets that are
active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or lizpllties in mankets that
are nof active, inputs other tan quoted prices that are cbrservable for the
assens of labiliges (swch as interest rates, yield qunves, volatilities, prepayment
speeds, loss seventies, aedit nsks and defaudt rates) or nther market
corroborated nputs

* Level 3—Significant snobsenvalie inputs based on e bect information
availabie in the droumstances, to the extent ebservable inputs ae not
dviailabbe, which may mdude ssumpdions mude by 1he Manager or persons
acting at ther direction that ane used in determining che fair valee of
immvestments

In acccedance with the requirements of LS GAAF, the amounts of transders
in and out of Level 3, if material, are disdosed in the Notes to Schedule of

Imrestments 1o each respective Fund

Eor fair valuztions usng significant unobeervable inputs, LS, GAAR requires
to chsclone transfers into and cut of Lewel 3 of the fair vaue hierarchy and
punchates amd imses of Level 3 eets and liabalties dunng the periad
Agditionaly. U5 GAAP requires quanitative Information regarding the
sgnificant unobdervable imputs wed in the detanmananon of tir vaue of
assets or Eabilities calegorized 2 Lewed 3 in the far value hisrarchy. In
acoordanae with Be requirements of U5 GAAF,  faar value higrandhy, and if
materiad, detsls of significant wnobservable mputs, have been nduded in the
Maotes to Schedule of Imestments for eadh regpective Fund

el Vel tiom Techniques and 1he Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewal 1 and Lewel 2 trading essets and trading liakilities, a1 fairvalue The
wvaluation methods {or “techniques™} and significant Inputs used in
determining the fair valses of portfidio secunties o other asets and fabilizes
categorized as Level 1 and Level 2 of the far value Rieranchy are 35 follaws:

Fioed irioome seauri e induding composate, convertible and municpal bomds
and notes, LS, government agendes, U, reasury obligaions, sovereign
ismies, bank loans, comeertible prefemed seaurites and non-LS. bomds ane
nomalty valued on the basis of guotes ablained from brokers and dealers or
Fricing Sendces that use broker-dealer quotations, reported rades or
valisation estimates from their intemnal pricdng madels. The Pricng Senvices”
internd models wse inputs that are observabie such & isswer detals, inberest
rates, yield urves, prepayment speeds, aedit risksSpreads, default rates and
uoted prices for smilar assets. Secunties tat use Smile valuaton
technigues and inputs. 35 dascribed abowe are Categonized 3 Leved 2 of the
faE value Peerandy

Fined Ingome seounies purdnased on 3 delayed-deliveny basis of 35 3
repistchate SoOMTEMENE if 4 sale-buyback Fanssmon are marked ba rmarke
daly until sertlement at the fornwand setlement date and are categorized a5
L 2 of he fair value hieraedhy

Mofigage-related and assat-badbed secinities are wiually istsed a4 separate
ranchis, of dasses, of seounties within cadh deal These seomites sre alka
nomnally valued by Fridng Senvices that use broker-dealer quatations,
reported rades of valuation estimates from heir mtema pridng models, The
pricing madels fof these securities wsually consider tranche-devel attributes,
cument market data, estmated cash fows and market-based yisld spreads for
each ranche, and incorporate ded colateral performance, a5 available
Mongage-related and assel-badked seaunties that use sAirelar vahiatan
techniques and inputs 35 descibed above are categonized a5 Leved 2 of the
fair value hierandyy

Commen stocks, ETFs. exchange-traded notes and finandal dervative
insbnaments, sidh &5 fulures coniracts, rghts and wamants, of opliods on
futures that are aded on 4 national secuntied exchange, are stated at the
st reported sale of sertement price on the day of valuation To the extent
et Seipfiting. e actively Iradied and vatuation sdjus rents are ot appled
they are cateqorized as Level 1 of the far value hieranchy

Ivvestments valwed (denaminated) in cumendes other than the fnctional
cumendy of a Fund are converted to the funciond cumency using exchange
ranes (eumency spot and famward rates) obtaned from Pricing Servdoes. Asa
resudt, the NAY of 2 Fund's units may be affecied by changes in the value of
cumendes in relation 1o the funcional curmency. The value of seqmities traded
in fareign markets or dencminated in curencies cther than the functional
cumrency may be affected significantdy on a day that the Trust is not open for
business, Valuation adustments may be apgiied to cerain sequrites that are
Lolely raded on 3 for elgn exdhandge o acoound for Bhe rarkel movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NY3E Close. These sequrities
are valued using Priaing Services that consider the comelation of the [rading
patterns of the faréign secunty o the ntradsy Trading in the U5 markels for
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imvestments. Senuities using these valuation adjustments are cateqoeized &
Leswel 2 of thie Bale value hierarchy, Preferred sequnities and other equites
tracied on indcSve markels or valusd by reference to similar irdFuments are
also categorized as Leved 2 of the faw value hierardy

Ecqity-lmkd seasities ane valued by referemang the last reported sae of
settiement price of he lined referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign mxchange o iments ane applied to the Last reported price o
convert the linked equity”s trading cumency to the conlract’s setfing cummency
Thede imvedtments ane cabbgpodized a8 Level 7 of the far value hieranchy

Imvestments in registered open-end Rwestment companies (other than ETFs)
will b valued hased upon e NAVS of sudh investments and ane categonzed
as Level 1 of the fair walue hieranchy Investments in nregistered open-end
meestment comparies wil be caladated based upon the NAVS of sudth
imeestments and are considered Level | prosaded that the NAVS are
observable, cabodated daily and are the value atwhich bath purchases and
sales will be conductied

Valuation adustments may be appfied to certain exchange raded futures and
optiens to aooount for marker movement between the exchange setement
and the NYSE dose. These sequrities ane valued usng quetes obtained from a
quokaion reporing system, establshed marker makers of pridng serdces
Fenanoad derivatives irang e valiation sdusiments ane calsgorined a5
Lewed 2 of the taif value hicranchy

Ecuuity exchange-traded ophons and over the counter finandal demvatie
mstruments, such & forward foreign qurmency contracts and oplions coniracts,
derive Bneir value from underking asset prices, Indices, reference rates, and
other inputs of & comienation of these factors. These contracts are nommally
watyed on the basks of guates obtained from 3 quotation reparting system,
etlablished market makers or Pridng Senices (normally detemined as of the
MY 5E Clese), Depending on e product and the tenme of the trantaction,
financial derivative instruments can be valued by Fridng Senvces using a
senies of techiniques, ndudng Srealation poang models. The pnong models
use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets siach a5 guoted
prices, issier details, inchoes, bidfask spreads, intenest rates, implied
wilatliies, yield aurves, deadinds and eochandge rabes. RAnanadl denvatne
imstrumen ts that use similar valuaton technagues and inputs a5 desdibed
abowe are categonzed as Level 2 of the fair value Feranchy

D?ﬁl.l'dﬂ:r desred avaps and over the counier s4Eps déive their value from
underlying asset prices, indices, rebenence rabés, and othes inputs o a
cormbination of these factars. They are valued wsing 3 broker-dealer bid
quotanon of of markel-based pices provided by Prang Seraces (Rormaty
determined a5 of the NYSE Close) Centraly deared swvags and over the
counter swaps can be valued by Fridng Senices using a series of tedhniques,
incuding simulation peicng models. The pricing modsls may use inputs that
are obsenved from actvely quoted matkets such as the overnight index swap
rate (O™, LEOR fonward rate, Interest rates, yield qurves and gredit
Spredds. These seouniies ane cabegonzed a5 Level 2 of the far valye Foeranchng

Level 3 trading assets and irading liabilities, #t fair value When 3 fa
walyation method is applied by the Manager that wses significant
uncbservatie mputs, investments will be priced by a method that

the Manager or persons scing at their drection Believe reflecs far value and
are categorized as Level 3 of the fairvalue herardy. The valuation
technigues and significant inputs used in determining the fair values of
portholic: aseets and Ratslines categonized a5 Level 3 of the fair value rsranchy
are a5 boilows

Progey pricing procedures s the base price of a fued income secuity and

subsequenty adpust the price propomionally 1o marker value chanoes of 4 pee-
diterimitied Secunity deemesd t be comparabide in duration, generally a LS

Tregsurny of sovereign node based on oountry of issuance. The base price may
be a broker-dealer quote, wansaction price, of an intemal value 35 derived by
analysis of marked data. The bate peice of the secunity may be reset ona
periodic bass based on ihe availability of market data and procedures
appnoved by the Valuation Commities. Significant changes in thi
unobeervable imputs of the prosy pridng process (the bate price) would result
in direct and proportionsd changes in the f2r value of the ssaunity. These
a0 ties, are calegonized 2 Level 3 of the fair value hierardry

It Bhirdkparty eval Med vendor pang is Aot sealable of not deemed 10 be
indicative of fair value, the Manager may elect to cbtan indicative market
quotation directly from the broker-dealer of passed-through broker quate
frorm a third<party vendor. In e event that far valee i based upon a ange
sourced Broker Quate, these seamities are categorized as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Broker Cuotes are typicaly received from established market
patidpants, Although independently recerved, the Manager does not have
the transparency o view thi underying inputs which suppcet the markes
quotaticn. Signifcant dhamges i the Broker Quote would have direct and
proportional changes in the fair value of the security

Short-1emy debt mstaments Gudh a5 commerd Jl paper) indng J remaning
maturity of 50 days or less may be valued at amortized coat, 50 long a5 e
Amortized oSt vl of such short-term debil Bnstruments is appecodmatedy the
sarmoe 35 the tar walue of the instrument as detenmined without the use o
amrtized oosl valuation These seamilies are cateqorized a5 Level 2 or Level
3 of the fair value hierardry depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

[a) Deleyed-Delivery Transectiors Certain Funds may purchase or sell
senifies on 3 delayed-delivery basis. These transactions involve 2
commitmient by & Fund to purdhase or sell seqsities for 3 predetenmined price
o yield, with payment and delvery taking place teyond the qustcemary
seidement period When delayed-defivery iransactions are cutsiandng

& Fund wall designane of receive &5 collateral liquid assets in an amount
sisfficent to meet the purchase price of respecive cbigations. When
punrchasing & secunity on 3 delayed-delivery Dasis, 4 Fund asssmes the rghts
and risks of owmerthip of the seaunity, induding the nsk of price and yield
fluctsations, and takes such factuations ke socount when determining its
MNAY. A Fund may dispose of of fensgol Ste 3 del aped-delnery ransaction
after itis entered into, which may result in a realized gain or loss When

a Fund has sold a sequnty on a delayed-delivery basis, te Fund does not
partidpate in futuré gans and losses with respect to the sedurity

[l Infiationdndexed Bonds  Certan Funds mayinvest in inflation sndeoed
bonds. Inflation-indeced bonds. are fived income sequrities whose principal
walus 14 periodically adusted by the rate of mnBanon. The nbsfedt rate on
these bands is generally fixed atiswance at arate hower fan typical bonds
Creer the life of an infladion-indexed bond, hownever, interest will be paid
based on @ prindpal value, whidh is adusted for inflation. Any inredse or
decrease in the princpal amount of an inflationdrndexed bond will be indeded
a5 imerest income on fhe Statements of Operations, even though ivestors do
not receive their prindpal wned matarity. Repayment of the onginal bond
principa upon matanity (35 adjusted for inflation) is guarantesd in the case of
L5, TIPS, For bonds that do nol provide 3 similar guarantee, the adusted
prindipal value of the bond repaid at manrity may be les than the orgnal
prindipal

fe] Loan Participations, Assignments and Driginatiors  Cenain funds may
ISt in denect debi instrurments which are indefests i maounts owed to
lepders o lending syndhcates by corpofate, goverrmental, of other boriwwers.
A Fund's imeestments in loans may be in the formof pariidpations in koans of
assigriments of ol or a porion of [ands from thind partes o imesiments n or
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onginations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by 3 bank: of
other fimandal instinution (the “lender*) that acts a5 agent for all holders. The
agent admiristers the terre of the loan, a5 specified in the loan agreemént

A Fund may imvest in muliple series or ranches of 2 loan, which may have
wanyng tiemns and cary different assodaned isks. When o Fund punchases
assignmenits from lenders it aoquires direct ights agains! the bomawers of the
lonanis. Thiete loans may indude pardpatons in bedge |asnd, whath ané [oans
Laken out by bomrowers for 2 ghon peniod (ypically [e4s than one year)
pending arrangement of more permanent finandng through, for example, the
issuance of bonds, frequently high yvield bonds issued for the punpose of
acquititions

The types of knans and related investments in whidh the Funds may invest
indude, among others, senbor loans, subordinated |oans (induding second
lien lgans, B-Motes and mezzanine |oans), whole loans, commesdal real
eshate and ather comemendal leans and struchined bans. A Fund may
oniginate loans of acquire drect interests in loars through primary [oan
distributions andor in private ransactions. i the case of subordinated loans,
thee muy b ggnificant indebtedness ranking ahead of Se borrower's
obligation to the holder of such 3 loan, induding in the event of the
bosrowe™s irtolvency. Mezzanine loans ane typically seaed by a pledoe of
An equity interest in the mormgage bormower that own's the real estate rather
than an interest in 3 mortgage

Imestments in loans may ndude unfunded |oan coemmitmen ts, which are
contraciual ciligations for funding Unfunded koan commitments may indide
revolving credit fadlities, which may obligate a Fund to supply addtional cash
b the bomower on demand . Unfunded loan commitments. represent a fuure
obdigation in full, even though 3 percentage of te committed amount may
nok be utdized by the bomower . When irvesting in a loan partidpation,

a Fund has the right to receive payments of prindpal. interest and any fees to
wehich it i5 enitiled only from the lender selleng the | oan agreemint &nd only
upon receipl of papmen i by the lender frof the bomawer. A Furd ray
receive & comemitment fee based on the undrawn portdon of the undérhing
lene af credit portian of 4 [oan. In cemain drourmrancies, o Fund may reoense 3
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower, Fees pamed of
e are recorded &5 3 CoPMPONEnT OF BnTEne] iR00Te OF iRlEnest Eene,
regpecively, on the Statements of Operaticns. Unfunded loan commitments
are reflected a5 a liabdify on the Statements of Assets and Ligbiliges

|} Mertgage-Related and Oiker Assat-Backed Seewrities Certain Funds may
HmeEst i morigage-related and other asset-hacoed secunies thal deecty of
indirecty represent a partidpation in, of are seared by and payable from,
loans onreal property, Mortgage-related sequrities are eated from pools of
resdential o commendal mortgage loans, induding mortgages |aans made by
savings and loan incBhetions, mortgage bankers, commerdal banks and
others, These sequrities provide @ monthly payment which consists of both
interest and principal . Intenest may be determined by fived or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underking mongages will affect te price and
walatibty of a moengane-related sequrity, and muay have the effect of
shirterind of extendag the effectve daation of the tecuity felatve to what
was anticpated at te time of purdhase. The timety payment of prindga and
Imnerest of certain morcgage-rel sted weouribes |5 guarantied with the full faith
and aredt of the L5 Govemment. Pool reabed and guarsntesd by nan-
QUWernmenta issuers, nduding qovermmmen-2ponsonsd CRpOrasons, may be
supppearted by various forme of insurance or quarantess, but there can be no
assurance that private insurers of quaranbors can meet their obligations under
the irsuranice policies or guarantes amangements. Many of the risks of
imeesting in mortgage-related secunties secured by commerdal mortgage
fpans reflect the effects of local and ofher econcmic condiions on real estate
rrarets, the ability of tenants to make lease payments, and the abilityof a
property o attract and retain tenants. These securities may be less liquid and

may exhibit graater price vilatlity than other types of mortgage-related or
oifver assei-backed securities. Other asser-badved securines ane aeated Fom
many types of assety, indluding, but nod lirited 1o, 2010 loans, accournts
recedvable, such a5 aedit cand recelvabies and hosgetal acoount receivabies,
homne equaty loans, siudenl loans, boat boans, mobile horme [aans,
recreational wehicle loans, manufactured housing loans, aircratt leates,
computer lesses and syndicated bank boare. The Fund may seestin drry bevel
of the capital structure of an issuer of morigage-hacked o agsel-badked
securities, induding the equity or "firstloss”™ wanche

(e} Callateralized Merigage Obligatiers ("CMOs") are debt obligations of a
gl ertiny that ane collateralized by while mortgage losns of private
mortgage bonds and divided into dasses. Chi0s are structured into multiple
diasses, often referred 1o s “tranches”, with each dass beaning a different
stated matwrity and entitled to a different schedule for payments of prindpal
and interest, including prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhbit
reater price volafility than ofher types of mortgage-related or asset-backed
e

[l Seripped Morigage-Back ed Securities  ("5MES") are derivative muli-das
mortgage securities. SMEBS are usualy structured with two dasses thal receive
different proportsons of the interest and principal distributions on a pod of
mortgage sets An SMES will have one dass that will receive 3 of the
interest {the imterest-only of "107 dass), while the other dass will receive the
entire peindpal (the prindpal-only or "PO" dass). Payments receved fior IO
are induded in interest inoome on the Statements of Operafions. Because no
principal will be recetved a1 the matunty of an |0, adjustments are made o
the coat of the Leaity of & monthly basis untl mateity. These adjisiments
are induded in interest noome on the Statements of Operaions Payments
received for POS e redted a5 reducions 1o e st snd podvaue of the

s ties

[g) Collateralizad Debt Obligations (TCDC0%™) anclwde Coltateralized Bond
Ciodigations ("CBOS™), Collsteralized Loan Obégations ("CLOS™) and ather
arndarly stpctueed securites. CBOS and CLOS Sre types of asset-backed
senpities A CBOS & trust which is badeed by a dversified pood of ligh i,
befow imvestment grade ficed income searities A CLOis a trust typically
coll sterakized by 3 pod of boans, which may indude, smomg others, domestic
and foreign senicr secured loand, senior unseaurad foans, and subordinate
conparate bars, induding loans that may be rated below investment grade of
equivalent unrated boans. The risks of an imestment in a CDO depend largely
on the type of the oollateral securities and the dass of the C0Oin which

& Fund invests. n addition to the normal risks associated with ficed income
seurities disoussed elsewhers in this report and the Funds® Offering
Memorandum (e, prepayment sk, qedit sk, liquidity risk, market s,
structarad sk, begal risk amd interest rate misk dahich may be exacebated if
thie i berest rate payable on a stnactured finanding changes based on
mraltples of chan pes IM NDEnest fales of imversedy 10 dhamges in intenest
rates)), CBOs, CLO%, and other CDOs carry addiional fides induding but not
limted ba, ) the possitaity that dstributicns from collateral sequrities will not
Do anchencpurantie b riabos inRerest o other paymments, (i) the qualiny of the

coll ateral may dedine in value of default, (i) the nsk hat 3 Fund may imeest
in CBOs, CLOs, of other C00s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v)
the gomple strucure of the seqanty may nod be fully understood at the Gme
of investment and may produce disputes with the issuer or unsxpecied
Investment results

[hl Payment In-Kind Securitses  Certain Funck may invest in payment in-kind
seapities [TPIKE™) PIKS may give the suer the apfion at each inberest
payment date of making interest payments in gither cash andfor addiional
e securities. Those additional debt sequrities vsually have the same teoms,
indlding matanty dates and interest rates, and assodated nidks as the
origenal bonds. The daly market quatations of the ceiginal bonds may induds
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the aooned interest {referred fo 35 3 "dirty price™) and reguire 3 pro rata
adustment from the unrealized appredation of depredation on investments
Lo inberes receivable on he Statemunts of Asuers and Liabalities

(i) Resrricted Securities  Certain Funds may hold investments that are subject
tor legal of contractual restmictions on resale. These sequrities may be sold
prnvanely, Dt ey De requared 1o De registensd o exernplid from such
registration before being sobd to the public Frivate placement seourities are
generaly considensd to be resmicted. Disposal of resiricLed imvesiments may
ifetlve lime-CoRsUMming fegal 30ons and epenies, snd prompl sale at an
acceplatie price may be difficult 1o achieve. Restncied imeestments held by
e Funds 3t Mayg 21, 2021, a5 applicable, are disdosed in the Rates 1o
Schedube of mestments

) Struciured Naites Certan Funds may investin stiuciured nates and other
redated instruments, which are privately negotiated debt obligations in which
the principal and’ or interest ks detemined by reference to the performange of
a benchmark asset, marker of inberest rate {3n “embeddad index ™), sch as
selected Leourities, an index of ssounites or spedbed intenean rates, or the
differential performance of two sets of markets, sudh a5 indexes reflecting
[cands. Siruchured irdnaments may be issoed by conpecations, indudng
baniks, s well a5 by governmental agenides. The tenme of idh struciuned
nstraenents noemally prowdce that thelr prncpal andtor interest punyments ane
L b achusted upsvands of dowerrevards (but ondinasly nod below 2erd) 1o
reflect changes in the embadded index white the stictured instruments are
oustandng. As a retult, the mbenest andion pranapal payments that may be
rrezde on 3 strpchuned product may vary widely, depending on a vaniety of
factors, induding the wolatility of the embedded index and the eflect of
changes in the embedded index on prindpal anddfor inferest payments

kj LL5. Gevernment Agencies or Government-Sporserad Enderprises

Certain Funds may imvest in seqrities of % Government agendes or
gowvernment-sponsored enterprises. L3 Govemment sequnifies are
obligations of and, in cenain caes, quarantesd by, the LS, Govemment, its
agendes of instrumentalities. Some U S, Government sequnities, much a5
Treasury bdls, notes and bonds, and securiies quaranteed by the Govemment
Kationsl Morgage Assodation CGNMAT or “Ginnie MaeT), ane wupported
Ery the Tull fath and credit of the U5 Govemiment: athers, such as thise of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by She right of he sauer o
borow from the 15 Department of the Treasury (the "5 Treasury™); and
others, such as thase of the Federal National Morlgage Assodiaton (TFRMA”™
of “Fanme Mae”), ae suppoied by the disaretionary authority of the U5
Goverment o purdhase the agendy's oblagations. U5, Govemment sedurilies
mary indisde zero coupon securiies, which do not distribute interest on a
cument bass and tend to b subject 103 greater fisk than interest-paying
securifies of similar matuniies

Govemment-related quarantors (e, not backed by the full faith and credit of
the U5 Government) indude FHMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation ("FHLMC® o “Fredde Mac™) FNMA is 2 government-spomsored
corporason. FNMA purchases corventional (e, nat insured of quaranteed by
any government agendy) residential mortgages from a listof approved
sellersfenacers whndh indude state and wederally dharmened Siandgs amd [oan
Awoaatons, mutual swindgs banks, commendd banks and aedt urions and
mafigage barkers. Pass-tindiagh secunmies issoed ey ENMA e quarantied a5
Lo Hirrwedly piryrrienst Of prancipad and inberest by FHMA, but ane not badoed by
the full taith and credit of the U5 Gowverrment. FHLMC Fsues Particpation
Certificates (TFCs™), which are pass-through sequrities, each representing an
undivided interest in 3 pool of residential mortgages. FHLMC quarantess the
tmely payment of interest and ultimate collection of prindpal, but PCs are not
backed by the full faith and credt of the U5 Government

n June J01S, FNMA and FHLIC stated Bouing Unifom Mongage Baded
Securities (CUMES") in place of thir curent offerings of TEA+ligble
Secapities {the ~Single Security initamve™) The Single Seourity nidatve seeky
10 suppoet the overall liguidiy of the TBA market and digns the
characrerisics of FMA and FHUWC certficates. The effecs that the Single
Security Initiative may have on the market for TBA and othér mortgage-
ke sequnities ane uncertain

Rell-Bming sirateges can be used where a Rund seeks to extend the
expiration of matunly of 3 position, sich 4% 4 TRA Seaunily on 0 un deriying
assed, by cloging out the podition before expiration and opening a new
position with respect to substanBially the same underying asset with a later
expiration date TBA secufities purchased o sold are reflected on the
Staterments of Assets and Liakifities as an asset or liability, respectively

1) Whendssued Transactions  Cetan Finds may puichase of sell seasities
on & when-saued basis Theds rantactions ané made condiSonally because a
sequrity, Athough authonized, has not yet been issued in the market
Tramsactoans o punchidse or sal Lt on 3 when-ssaed Dadls mmaohe

a commitment by 3 Fund bo purchase o sl these securites for a

prede termened price of yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyord
the axstomary setiement period A Fund may sell when-issued seamities
beefiore they are defiverad, which may result in a realized gain or loss

[m) Bank Obligatiors Eank cbligations inwhich a Fund rmay imvest indude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fized me deposits
Certihicanes of deporsit are negobigble certificates issued against funds
deposited in 3 commendial bank for a defirite period of time and eaming a
spedified refurn, Bankers” acceptances. are negofiable drafts or bills of
exchange, normally drawm by an imponer of exporter 10 pay for spedific
merchandise, which are "accepted” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bank unconditionatly agress to pay the face value of the Instrument on
maturity Fixed G deposits ane bank obfigatians payable 3 3 wated
maturity date and tll?a-l'l!"ll] inkerest 4t & fixed eate, Fived ime deposits iy le:
wathdrawn on demand by the imoestor, But may be subject o sarly
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market condiions and the
remaning mahurity of the obbgation

5. BORROWINGS AHD OTHER FIRARCIHG TRANSACTIONS

The following disdosures contan information an the Funds” ability to lend o
b cash or securities o the extent permitied under the Offeing
Memorandurn, which may be viewed a3 bormowing or Srandng transactions
bey the Fumds. The location of these instruments is desaibed below . For a
detailed desoription of cedit and counterpaty risks that can be assodated
with bormowings and other finandng transactions, please wee Note T,
Frincipal and Other Risks

[a) Repurchese Agreements Certan Funds may engaos in repurchase
agreements. Under the fenmes of 2 typical repurchase agreement,

a Fund purchases an underhing debt obligadon (collateral) subject toan
obligation of the seller o repyrchase, and a Fund to resall, the obligation at
an agresd-upon price and time. In an open maturity repurch e agresment,
there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
tereminated by the Fund of counterparty at any me. The market value of the
Col| ateeral st B equal b oF exdeed th 1otal amaount of B repunchas:
obEgations, indwding interest. Repurchate agreernents, induding aciued
Interest, are included on the Statements of Assers and LiabaRies Interest
eammed is reconded 25 4 companent of inlerestincome on the Statements of
Cperations. In periods of increased demand for collateral, 3 Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of Collatersl, which may result in interest experite ta the Fund
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(b} Reverse Repurchase Agreements Certan Funds may enter inho revens
repurchase agresments In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund defivers a
security in exchange for cash 1o a financial instituBon, the counterparty, with
a simadianecus agreement to repunchase the same of substantially the same
security at an agreed upon price and date. in an open maturity reverse
requrdhase agreement, there is no pre-getenmined repurchass date and the
agréerment Can be termanated by the Fund of counterpaty af any bme

A Fund rs enfitled to receive pancpal and interest payments, if any, made on
the seauminy delvered o e countepaty during Se term of the agreement
Cash recenved in exchange for shurites delivened plus accrued inderes
payments o be made by 4 Fund 1o counterparties are reflected a5 a liabslity
on the Statements of Assets and Liabdities. Intenest payments made by a Furnd
to counterpares are recorded & a componsnt of interest expense on e
Staternents of Operations. In periods of ingreased demand fior the secunity,

A Fund may recenve 3 fee for wse of the seominy by the counterpany, whid
rmary resalt in ingerest income 30 3 Fund. A Fund will seqregate assets
determined 1o be bquad by PIMCO of will athenwise cover its cbligations
LR Teverse PepUnchass Sniements

fc] SaleBuybacks Certain Funds may enter into finandng ransactons
referred to a5 "sale-buybacks’ A sabe-buvback finandng transadon consisks
of asale of 3 sequrity by & Fured 10 a finandal institution, the counterparty,
with a simultameors Sgréerment 1o repanchase the Sime o wbstanoaly he
Same S04ty 3t a0 agresd-upon price and date. A Fund is not entided to
receve princpal and mierest paaments, iT sy, made on Mg sequnity sold 1o
the counterparty during the term of the sgreement The agresd-upon
proceeds for secunities 10 be repurchased by a Fund are reflected & 3 fability
o the Srate rments of Asters and Liabdines. A Fund will recogrene el iname
represented by the price differential bebween the price received for the
tranferred secunity and the agresd-upon repurchase prige. This is commenly
referred 1o a5 the ‘price drop” A price drop consists of () the foregone intenest
and inflationary income adjustments, if any, a Fundwould have otherwise
recerved had the sequrity not been sold and (i) the negatiated finandng terms
between a Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and infiationary income
adustments, if any, are reqrded a5 components of interest income on the
Sraterments of Operations. INterest punmnents based upon negotiated fnandng
Lesrng friade by @ Fund to counbérpanies ane recondied 25 a component of
bnnerest expense on the Statements. of Operations. In period of inoeased
dernand for the secunty, & Fund may recerne 3 fee Bof use of the secunty by
the counterparty, which may resdt in interest income o a Fund A Fund wall
segiegate disets deterrnined 1o be Bouid by FINCO or will othervwise cowver its
obligations under sale-buybadk iransactions

{d} Short Sales Cértamn Funds may enter inbo short sales sransactions. Shan
saled are transactions i which the Fund sels a seaurity that it may not owm

A Fund may make short sales of Seamities 1o §) offsel potential dedines in
bomg positions in Smilar secunties, (5) 1o ingrease the fledbility of the Fund,
(iii} for imvestment retunn, (vl as part of 3 risk arbirage strategy, ard (vh a5
part of its overall portiolio management srategies imeohang the ute of
derivalive instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may borrow
the security sobd shoet and deliver it to the: counterparty, The Fundwill
ordinanly have o pay & ik e premau i b boemow & Sedufity and be cbiigated
to repay the lender of the security amy dividend or Enterest that acones on the
SECUAIY during e penod of thetoan Seqmities sold in thon dde Tansation
and the dividend or inserist payable on uch searties, if any, are refleced as
payabbe for short sabes on the Staterments of Assets and Wabilities Short sales
exnpode Bhe Furd o the Ask thatatwl be required B0 cover IS Shoft poation
ata time when the seaxity or other at9et has appredated in value, thus
resulting inlosses 1o e Fund. A short sabe i "aganst the box™ i

the Fund halds in its portfolio o has the right Lo aoquire Bhe security sold
short, o securities identical to the searity sold short, at no addiiona cost

A Fund will be subject to addBonal risks to the extent that It engages in short
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sabes that are not " against the box = A Fund's loss on 3 shor sake could
thecretically be unlimited in cases whene the Fund is unabbe, for whatever
reasan, b dose out its thort position

B. FIH ANCIAL DERIVATIVE IRSTRUMENTS

The fedlowiang disdoasnes contan infemation on bow and why the Funds ase
finandal dervative instruments and how Snandd defvative instuments
affect the Funds” financal position, results of operations and cash fows. The
locaton and tair value amounts of these instruments on the S1anements of
Assets and LiabaliBes and the net realized gain Joss) and net change in
unrealized appredation {depreciation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categon zed by type of financial dervative contract and related risk sxposure,
are induded in 3 table in the Motes to Schedule of Imestments. The finandal
derivative instrumenis outstanding a5 of period end and he amoums of net
redlized gain (ioss) and net change in ynrealizd sppredation {depredation)
on finandal derivative instruments during the period, 5 dsdosed in the
Motes 1o Schedule of Fnesiments, serve a5 ndicatons of te wolume of
financial dervatve acinaty for the Fonds

[a) Forward Foreign Currency Comtracts  Certain Funck may engage in
fonsard foreign ourrency confradsin connection with seting planned
punchases of sales of seorites, 1o hedos the oumency exposune assonaned
with some of 3ll of a Fund's sequnties of & part of an investment sirategy. A
fewiard foreign Cumency COnITe0 IS an AQreemient bebween o pamies i biry
and sell 3 aerency at a Se1peice on a Tuture date. The market vahse of a
fonesard foreign amency coniract fluchuates with changes in foreign cumendy
exchandge rates. Forward fansgn querency coniraos ane marked to market
daly, and the change in value is recorded by & Fund 21 an wneali 2ed gain o
loss. Realized gains or losses ane equal bo the difference bebween the value of
the contract at the dme itwas opened and the value a1 the tme itwas dosed
and are recorded upon delivery or receipd of the cumency. These contracts
may imvohve market sk in excess of the unealized gain o logs reflecied on
the Staterments of Assets and Liabilites In addtion, 2 Fund could be exposed
to risk if the counterparties are wnable 1o meet the terms of the contracts or if
the walue of the currency changes unfavoradly to the functiond cuerency. To
fratigane asch fisk, cash of Yetuntied dy be exchandgsd a3 collaterdl puriuan
e the terms of the undertying contracts

Certan Funds, having a hedged Class, may Alod enter into foowand foneign
ey contracs designed 1o offset the effect of hedging at te Fund level in
ceder 10 ledne the hedged Class wath an expotire 1o cuirendes ather than the
functiona curency. There can be no guarantee that these (lace spedfic
faneiard foreign curmency oonracts will be sucoesil

[b) Futures Contragts  Certan Fiands may enter in1o fures contracts. A
fufuires CORERACT is &N Agneerment 10 buy of sell & security of other 241 for &
el price on a future date and i baded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fubuires, Cnbraces 1o man age it expdute [0 the wsuntes markets of 1o
mimements in interest rates and curendcy values. The primany risks assogated
with the wse of fulures contracts are the imperfect correlafion between the
change in market value of the securities held by a Fund and the prices of
fubures conbracts and the possibility of an iliquid market, Fulures contracts
are valued based upon thir quoted daily setfement prices. Upon entering
into & futwres confract, a Fund i required to deposit with its futures broker an
amountof cash, LS. Govemment and Agency Obligations, or select sovereign
deit, In accordanae with the inital mangn requirements of the brober of
exchange Ramnes conimacts ae marked oo market dasly and baed on such
morements in the price of the confracts, an appropriate paysble of receivable
for the change in value may be posied of colleced by the Fund (" Futures
Variation Margin”). Fulures Vaniation Marging, if amy, ane disdossd within
cenirglly deared finanaal demedtive inStnaments on the Stabements of Assets
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and Liatslities. Gains of losses ane recognized but ot ansicered reali zed unis
the: coniracts expire of dase. Futures coniracts imehes, 10 vaning degrees,
sk of hoss in exceds of the Futures Vanation Mangn induded within
exchange traded or cenirally desred nandal dervative nstruments on the
Sraternenis of Assets and Labilities

Ic) Optiors Contracts Certan Funds may wille of purdnase opsons (o
enhance retwns of 1o hedge an exsting position of fubre investment. Certain
Fureds ey write call ard put aptions of sedun tes and fnandal derivatve
natrurments ey own of in which Ty indy envest Writing put cpions tends
Lo increase a Rend's expodure 1o the undedying instrument. 'Writing call
opfions bends b decneste 3 Fund s spdsure 10 the underdang instnument
When a Fund wntes acall or put, an amount equal o the premium receved is
recorded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the curment value of
the opfion written. These amaunts ane indwded on the Statements of Assets
and Liatdities Fremiums recesved from wiiting opSons which expire are
treated a5 resfined gans, Premiumns recefved fnom wriing apfions whidh are
exeqcised of dosed e added o the progeeds o offset Fgairat amounts paid
on the underying fitures, swap, seournily of QuTendy Famsaction to deteming
the realized Qan o loss. Certan oplions may be whitten with premaurns to be
disterrminied of 2 furture date The premmiurms for thise opBons e based upon
irmplied wolatlity parameters a1 spedfied terms. & Fund a5 a writer of an
opbon has no contral ower whether the underhing snstument may be 1ol
(Tcal ™) o purchiased ("put”) and &5 4 resudt bears the market nsk of an
unfaeceatle change in the price of the instrument underhysng the written
option. There i the fisk & Fund may not be able toenter nlo a doding
tramsacton because of an illiquid market

Certan Funds may alse punchase put and call options. Furchasing call aptions
tends toindrease 3 Fund's exposure (o the underh@ng instrument. Purchasing
put options tends 1o dedease & Pund's exposure o the underying insinament
A Fund pays a premivmiwhich is induded 25 an asset on the Statements of
Assels and Ligblities and subsequently marked to market to reflect the
curent value of the option. Premiums paid for pundhasing options whidh
expire are reated as realized losses. Certan options may be purchased with
premaung 1o e determined on & future date. The premiums for these options
arie bused upon implied volassity parameters. st spedfed e, The ik
asodated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the prerum
paid. Premmiiens paid for purchasing options whidh are exeroned of dosed e
added 1o the amaiunts paid o offsel againg the procésds on the underying
imeestment transaction fo determine the realized gain or loss when the
underling iransachon is eecubed

Credit Default Swaptions Certain Funds may weite of purdhiase oedi
default avaptions to hedge exposure b the redt msk of an imestment
withoutmalking a comnmitment 1o the urderhdng insrument A aedit default
Swapdon it 0 aplion o sell o buy aredit protectaon 1o a spedific referenoe by
entenng into a pre-defined swap agreement by scme spedfied date in the
future

Forwign Currercy Options Certain Funds may wile of pdhase foreign
curency opions bo be weed a5 3 thom or long hedie agandt possible
wanaticns in foreign exchange rates of 1o gain exposure (o foreign arrendes

Imtlation-Capped Options  Certain Funds may wnle of punchase mifl aton-
Cappsd aptons 0 enhanc: returns of for hed@ng opporumities. The purpose
of purchasing inflation-capped ophons is 1o probect 3 Fund from nflaticn
engion abdve 3 cerlain rate on a given notional exposure A floor can be
used 10 grve downside protecton 1o mvestments i imflatondinked peoducts

Interest Rate-Cappad Dptions  Certaen Funds oy wiite o punchite intenest
rate-capped options 1o enhance retumd o for hedging cpportunities The
papose of purchasing inberest rate-capped aplons 15 1o protect 4 Fund friam

fipating rate risk #bove 3 certain rate on 3 given notional exposare, A floor
cam be used to gve downite PRotEct on 10 investmEnts. in interest rate linked
peodacts

Inerest Rate Sweaptions Certain Funds may write or purchase interest rate
swaptions which are options 1o enter into 3 pre-defined swap agresment of
[0 sharten, extend, cancel of osheranie !'I!ll.‘lfr' AN ES0R0 S 30 Mjeement,
by some specified date in the futare. The writer of the swaption becomes the
COUNBErparty 10 the swap if the buyer exerdses. The interestrate SWERLION
sdpeemnnt will specty whether e buyer of the avaption will be 4 Sxed-sate
receiver of 4 fued-rate payer upon exendte

Dptiors on Exchange- Traded Futures Comracts Cerfan Funds may wiite o
purchase options on exchange-raded futures contracs (° Futures Option”) fo
hesioe an existing positon of fulure invesirment, for speculative puposes of 1o
Mmandge exposune o makel movements. A Fidures Opoon i5 an option
contract in whidh the underyng inrument is 3 ange Riumes contrac

Dptiors on Securities Cenain Funds may wiibe of pirdhase aplions on
sequnifies to enhange refums oo bo hedge an exsting position or future
InwEstmeEnt. An oplion on & Senmity uses 4 spedied SEOUnTy a5 the undetlying
insthament for the opaon contr.a

[d) Swagp Agresmants Cirtan Funds may st o Svap agresments. Swap
agreements are belaterally negotisted agreements between a Fund and a
counberparty 10 exdhange OfF Svap imvestment cash Rwis, 35815, Tereign
cumendes of masketinked retusms at speafed, futue intenvals. Swap
agresments may be privabehy negatidted in the OTC market or may be deared
through & third party, known a5 2 central counterparty of démanes deanng
crganizaton (Tcentraly deared s ™d A Fend may enter indo asset, gredit
default, goss-currency, interest rate, total refum, vanance and ofher foms of
SWAD Feements 1 manage its exposure Lo dedt, aaTendy, interestrane,
commodity, equity and inflation risk. In connection with these agreements,
sequnities or Carsh may be identfied 35 collateral or mangin in aocondance with
the terms of the regpecive svap agreements. io provide assets of value and
reccurse in the event of default or bankruptoginschvency

Centrally deared swaps are marked to market daily based upon valeations as
determined from e underking contract of in accondance with e
requirements of the central counterpary of derivatives dearing onganization
Changes in market vale, if any, are refected & 3 component of net change
in unredized appredation (depreciafion) on the Statements of Operations
Doty changes in waluation of centrally dedred Swaps (" Swap Varalion
Margin®), if any, are disdosed within centrally deared finandal dedvative
inADAATEALS On thee Statements of Adtets and Lisbdiges OTC awap payments
received of paid at the beginning of the meausement peiod are induded on
the 4tatements of Assets and Liabilides and represent premivems pad or
received upon entering into the wwap dgreement 1o Compensate for
differences between the stated terms of the swap agreement and prevaling
market condtions (oedit spreads, qunency exchange rates, interest rates, and
aithvesr refevant fachors). Lipfront preeniums recevid (paid) are initially reconded
35 liabilities {asets) and subsequenthy marked 1o market 1o reflect the qument
vl of the swap. These upfront premitemes e reconded a5 realized gains or
leesies o Bhe STatements of Cperanionds upon Weiminalion of mannty of the
swap. & liquidation payment received or made at the termination of the swap
1 recorded & realized gain of |05 on e Statements of Operatons. Net
pevicdic payments recenved of paid by a Fund ane induded a5 part of realized
gamns of losses on the Statements of Operations

Fior purposes of applying certain of a Fund’s imvestment palides and

TSR CHONS, Swap dgresments, like amer derpyative inSruemenis, oy be
valued by 3 Fund at market valiee, notional value o full sposure value in the
caze of a oredt default swap, in 2pphing certain of the Fund’s imeestment
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policies and restrictions, the Fund will valye the oredt default awvap atits
notanad value of its full exposuns value (e, the sum of the nosmal amount
far e contract phus the maket value), but may value e gedt defaull wvap
atmarket value for purpeses of applying certain of the Fund's other
imeestment pobd et and réstriciions. Fof example, the Fund may v alue aedit
default avaps at full expodure value for purpodes of the Fund's oredit quaity
uidelines ( any) Because such value in geméral Detber reSects the Fund’s
achual economc exposure duing the temm of the gedit dedault swap
agresment As 3 result, a Fund may, at times, have notional exposure toan
aseel cass (before nettingd that is greater or lesser than the stated limitor
reshriction noted in the Fund's Offenng Memorandum. In Shis coniext, both
the nadonal amount and the market value may be positive of negative
depending on whether the Fund is selling or buying peotection theough the
redit default seap. The manner in which certain sequrites or gfer
nsanments ane valued by the Fund for purposes of Apphing imvestrment
podicies and restricions may difer fom the manner in which those
imeestments e valued by other types of imeestors. Enternginto svap
AgreEren s irvobes, 10 vaning degrees, elements of interest, qedi, markel
and docqurnentation nek in excess of the amounts recodqnized on the
Staternents of Astets and Liabilities, Such risks imedve the possitality tat
thistee wall bee nte |iquid emarket for these agreements, that the counterparty 10
the agresments may default an its cbdigation 1o perfom or disagree as to the
meaning of contractual terms in e agreements and that there may be
unfaworgtie chamges in interest rates or the values of the asiet upon which
the awap is based

A Fund's masdmurm sk of boss from countenparty credit risk s the discoented
et valiee of the cash flows to be recesved from the counterparty over the
CONTANS fermaining life, to the extent that amount s poitve. The rik may
e mritigated by handng 2 raster neng arrangement betwetn & Fund and
the: counierparty and by the posting of collaterd to 3 Fund 10 oover a Fund's
Expidure 10 M CoLnEpanty

T the extent 3 Fund has & poicy [0 Bmil te nel amount owed 1oor 1o be
receved from a single counterparty under existing swap agresments, such
lmatathon only applbes o counterpanies 1o OTC Faps and doss noTapply (o
ceniraily deaned swags whien: the Counterpy IS 4 ceniral OoUnEDaty of
derivatives deating organization

Credit Default Swap Agreements  Cerfain Funds may enter into

credit default swaps on awparate, loan, sovereign, LS. municpal or U5
Treasuey issues 1o provide 3 measure of protection against defaults of the
issusers 1.2, to reduce risk whese 3 Fund owns of has exposure 1 the
referenced cbligation) or bo fake an active long or short position with respect
to the edibood of a partiodar isswes defalt. Credit defiault swap
Acpeenents Fniolvie e party fraking & steam of payrnents (efemed 1o &
the buyer of protecton) ba anather party (the Seller of protecion) in exchange
fear e Rght 10 recerve 3 spefed relum in the event that he referenced
entity, obligaton of index, a5 spedlied in the Svap aqreement, undengoes a
certain credit evenit As 3 seler of protection on gedit default swap
apeernents, o Fund will generally recetve from the buyper of protection 4 foed
rate of incorme hroughout the tem of the wvap provided that there is no
credt event As the sefler, a Fund would effectively add leverage to its
poitfolio because, in addtion foits ot ned assets, the Fend would be
sisbject to investment exposue on e notional amount of te swap

It a Fundis & seller of protection and a credit event acours, 2% defined under
the tems of that parthaular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either i pay to the
busger of pratedion an amount equal to the notional smount of the swap and
Lakce chimery 0F the refineniced obligatin, ather del heradle obdganons of
ungkerkying securilies compaising the referenced index or (i) pay a net
settlernent amount in the form of cash or securities equal b the noticnal
amount o the sweap less the recovery value of the referenced ciigation of

underhing securities comprising the referenced index. f 3 Fend is 3 byer of
peatecion and & aedt event ooours, a5 defined under the terms of that

par ticular swap agresment, a Fundwill either (1) recerve from the seller of
protecton an amount egual to the noSonal amount of the swap and deliver
the rederenced obligaton, other deiverstle obligations o undedying
sefrilies comprising the referenced index or () receive a net setfement
armountin the form of cash o securiies equal to the moons] smount of the
S lets the recoveny value of the referenced abligation of wnderiying
seurities oornprising the referenced index. Recoveny values are estmated by
market makers considering either indwstry standard reovery rates or entity
spedfic factors and considerations unBl a aedit event ocowrs If a cedit event
heas cocumed, the recovery valys is detenmined by a fadlitated aucton
witvetietny 3 menimum number of llowable beoker bids, together with a
spedfied waluation method, are vsed (o calasate the settlement value The
ability to detiver osher obligations may result in 3 cheapest-to-deliver opton
{the buyer of prosection”s rght 1o choose the deliverable cbligation with the
loweest valies Toliowing a credit évent)

Credit default avap sgreements on credit mdices involve oné party making a
stream of payments 1o another party in exchange for the right 1o receive a
sprecified renwm in thie event of 2 write-down, prindpal shortall, inerest
shortfall or default of all or part of the relerenced enfities compnsing the
aedit index A creditindex is 2 basket of gedt instnements or exposures
deggried to be repretentative of some pant of the credit market 25 3 whole
These indices are made up of reference credits that are judged by a poll of
cealers o be the most liquid entities in the medit defalt swap market based
on e sector of the index. Components of the indioes may ndudz, but are
not imited to, investment grade securities, high yeld securities, asset-backed
SeOities, emengEng maskets, andlon vanous credit ratings within each secor
Credit indices e raded ving dedt detaull fvaps with stsndadized tarms
indisding a fixed spread and standand maturity daces. An index credit default
swap eferences l the names in the inde, and if tere is a defaalt, te aedt
evend is setled based on that name’sweight in the index The compasition of
the mvdioes changes petodcally, usrally svery six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weight i the index. A Fund may use qedit
default swaps on cedit ndices to hedge a portiolio of credit default swaps or
beonids, wehich is less expensive than it would be 1o by many oedit default
Swaps 1o achieve 3 similar effect. Credit default swaps on indices ane
instruments for protecting invesiors owning bonds against default, and
traders use them o speculate on changes in oed 1 quatity

vl credht spreads, representedin absclute terms, yilized in detemining
the market value of aedit default swap agreements on corporate, boan,
sovereign, LS. municpal or U5, Treasury issues &5 of periad end, if any, are
disclosed in the MNotes to Schedule of Investments. They serve & an Indicator
of the ourent stas of payrenyperormande itk and represent the likelihood
o rigk of default for the referanced entity. The implied aedit spread of a
particular referenced entlty refleas the cost of buyngselling protecion and
may indude uplront payments required 10 be rmade 1o enter into the
agreement Wider credit spreads represent a deteroration of the referenced
enlity™s credit soundness and a greater’ lkelhood o risk of default or other
aedit evenl oouming &5 defined under the terms of the agreement . For aredt
default swap agreements on asset-badked sequities and aedit indces, the
quoded market prices and resul ting values serve a5 the indicator of the cument
st3tus of the payment/iperiormance risk. Increasing market valuss, in sbsodute
tenms when compared to the notional amaunt of the swap, represent 3
deterioration of the referenced entity's aredit soundness and a greater
likefibood or risk of default or other dedit event ooouming as defined under
thie feeres of the Soreement

The muasimem potential amount of fubure payments {undiscounted) that
& Fund a% & seller of protection could be required to make under a oredt
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default svap agresment equats the notional amount of the agreement
Natonal amounts of eadh indnddual aedi defaul swap agreement
ourstandng a5 of period end fof wiech & Fund is the seller of profecion ane
disdosed in the Motes o Sdhedule of investments. These potental amounts
wiold be parteally affsed by any recovery values of The repectve rederenced
obligations, upfront payments received upon ntering into the agréement, o
el amounts recerved Tron i settiement of buy protection dedit default
wwap agreements entened into by a Fund for the same referenced entity o
entifies

Imterest Rate Swap Agreemeris  Certain Funds are subject to interestrate
Fidk: epotisne in the normal cowrse of purieng tir invesiment objectives
The vaue of the §xed rate bonds that 3 Fund holds may dedreate if interest
rates rise. Tohelp hedge against this risk and o maintain its ability o
generate income a1 prevaling market ranes, a Fund may enter info inbeniest
rate syap agresmeants. Inferest rate swap agreements imvdve the exchange
Ery & Fund with anaither party for thesr respective Commitment to gy of
receive interest on the natonal amount of prindpal, Certgin fomms of interess
rate svap agreements may indude: () interest rate caps, under which, in
renam for 3 premium, one pary agrees to make payments 1o the other to the
extent thatintenest rases exceed 3 ipeafied rate, or “cap”, (i) interest rate
floers, under which, inrewm for 2 premium, one party agrees to make
DTS 1o e athier Lo The extent hat inderest rates fall below a spedfied
rate, of “flooe”, (i) interest rate collars, under which a pasty <slls 4 cap and
purchases 3 foor or vice versa in an atternpd o prodect itsalf against interest
rate rmosements enteeding gven MMM & masmm bevels, (W) callable
imterest rate svapes, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
congderation for the right 1o early terminate the wwap transaction in whole,
al zero 0ot and at & predetermined date and ime prior 1o the maturity date,
{v) spreadiocks, which allow the interest rate swap users tolok in the
forward diflerential (or spread) Detween the interest rate swap rate and 3
spedfied benchmark, or (W) bass swaps, under which bwo partes can
exchange vanable interest rates basad on different segments of money
matkes

1. PRINCIPAL ARD OTHER RISKS

{a} Pringipal Risks In the nommal course of business, the Funds (o Acquened
Fursd(s), of apgiscabde) rade finandal insiruments and enter into Snandal
transaciions whete risk of potential boss exdsis due 1o sudh things a5 changes
i the madket (mareet nsk) or falune or inatelity of te other party 10 &
tramsacton to perform (oedit and cownterparty risdd), See below foe a detaled
description of select prindpal risks

Fund of Funds To the extent that certain Funds invest substantialy dl of
[isif neSpeciive aSSets 0 Acquaréd Fundis), the nues o ded wath imeesing
i theese Fundswill be dosely related 1o the risks assodated with the sequrities
and other imeestments held by the Acquired Fund(s). The ability of the Funds
Loy achivewe their respectang imasstment obpectives may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fundis) to achieve their respective investment objectives
Thiere Can be no assurance that the nvesiment obsective of any Aoquired
Furid(s) wall be achieved The NAY of an Acquining Fund will fluctuste in
response bo changes in the respective AW of the Acguired Fund(s) in which it
sty

In the noema course of bisiness, Acguired Funds) rade Bnanda instuments
and enter into Snandal rarsacions where nisk of potential loss edgsrs due 1o
changes in the market (market rigk), or fadure of inabdity of the oher party to
a transachion o perform (oredkt and counterparty riskh

Market Risks A Fund's investments in finangdal derivative imstruments and
osher fmand d instruments exgeose the Fund to vaious ks such a5, but not

linated to, Enterest rate, foreign: {Ron-LI S ) apmency, equity and commodity
nsks

Interest rage risk is the risk that fixed inoome securites and other instnuments
heedd By & Fund mudy dedine in value becaute of & increase in mberest iates, i
nomnal inbenet! rabes mse, the value of certain fixed noorme seambes held by
& Fund wiild likely decrease. A normngl interest rate Can be desanibed a5 the
sum of a real interest rate and an expecied indaton rate. Interes rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may [ose money if
thiede chiamges are ROt antapated by Fund managerent. A Fund may nat be
abie o hedge against dhanges in interest rates of may choose not bo do 5o for
cost or other reasons. In addtion, amy hedges may not woek a5 intended

Cawation is a measure used to determine the sensitivity of 3 security™s price 1o
changes ininterest rates that incofporaies a seariny’s vield, coupon, final
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Convexity is an
addifional measure used o understand a sequity’s of Fund’s interest rate
sensitiity that measures the rate of dhange of duration in response 1o
changes i inbenest ranes. Fixed noome sequrites with longer durasons tend
by e mare sensitive o changes in interest rates, wually making them more
wilatile than securines with shofler duraions. A wide vanety of factods can
caiese interest ranes of yelds of LS. Treasury Secunties (or yeelds of other
Rypes of bonds) 1o rme i@ ., ceniral bank monelary policies, Inflaton rates,
general sconormc oondinons, etc). This 1 egpeaally tree under ument
comditicns because inferest rates and bond yiekds are near histoncally low
levels. Thus, the Funds currenly face 3 heightened level of risk assodated
with rising interest rates andior bond yiedds. This could be driven by a variety
offactors, induding but nat limited to central bank maonetany polices,
changing inflation or real growth rates, generdl econoamic condifions,
increasing bond kssuances or redisced market demand for low yisidng
investmends. Further, white U 5. bond markets have sieadly grown over the
parsd three decadies, deaber “markel making™ ability has remamned relabvely
stagnant. Green the importance of intefmediany “rmarkel making™ i aeating
3 robist and active market, fed income seunties ane auerently

fadng incressed valatlity and Bouidity ndis. All of thede factors, collectively
andfor indvidualy, could cause 3 Fund to lose value i the Fund o5t enowgh
waliee, thee Fand oould face increased Unithobder redempions, whidh oould
further impair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely atfectad
wiven alarge Unithoider purchases or redeenns large amaunis of units, which
cam odtur at any B and may impact te Fund in the same manner a4 a high
volume of redemplion requests. Large Unithobder ransacions may impact
the Fund's iquicity and net aset value. Such transacions may also inoease
the Fund's Taraction oosts of otherwise calse the Fend o perfom
cifferently than intended, Moreower, the Fund is subject 1o the risk that
oifver Linitholders may make investment dedsions based on the chalces of 3
large Urstholder

A Fund may have Sonificant exposane W ispens in the United Kngdom. The
Unired Kingdom's withdraw 2l from the European Union may impact Fund
refurns. This dedsion may cause substantal vodatliny in foreign exchange
ke, load 10 wiakness in the exdhange rate of the British pound, reult in
a sustaned period of market uncertainty, and destabilize some or all of the
otheer Eurcpean Lnion member countries andfor the Eurozome

Foreign (nion-U'5 ) securitied in this report are dassafied by the country of
ingorporation of 3 heldng. In certain instances, a sequnity’s country of
incorparation may be different from its country of economic exposure

I a Fund imoests directly in foreign (non-U05.) currences of in securities that
frade in, and receive revenues in, foreign fnoa-U5) aamendies, o in finandial
derivative insiruments. that provide exposire to foreign (non-U S ) oumendies,
it will be subject to the risk that tose qamendes will dedine in value relative
1o the base currency of the Fund, of, in the case of hedging positions, that
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the Fund's base curencywill dedine invalue relative 1o e curency being
hedged Currency raes in foresgn countries may fluchaate signiboantly duwer
short penods of time for & nurber of redscers, indudng changes in interest
rates, Interventon dor the faliere to intervene) by LS. or forelgn govemnments,
cenmiral Banks o wprandiond entites wdh 45 the intemational Monetary
Furd, or bey the imposition of currency dontrals or other poliical developments
i 1P Unabed 518%es o abiodd. As & mesult, 4 Fund's irestments in fofeign
aerency-denominated seaunitied may reduce the Fund's relurm

The ivaekel valies of equities, dwich a5 ooenon shocks md prefeed Seculilied
or equity related investments sich as futures and aplions, have historically
risen and fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due to genera market
condticns which are not spedfically related 10 4 particular company, such &
real of perceived adverse economic condiions, changes in the general
outiook for coeporate eamings, dhanges in interest or cumency rates. public
health emengendies, sech a5 the spread of infections diness of disease, of
adverse investor sentiment generaly They may also dedine due to faciors
which aflect a partioula Imdusiry o indusines, such &5 abor shomages o
ncredrsid prodiaction conts and oompe i tve condiBons within an induslry
Ditterent fypes of equety securities may react dfferently to these

vl opemeni. Exquity securities and equity related svestments generally have
greater markel price walatility than foed indore securities

Cisrtan Funds may ifvest in certan nsirurments fat rely i some fashon
upion LIBOR LIBOR is an average interest rate, detenmined by the ICE
Benchmark Adminkiration, that banks charge one anather for the wse of
short-berm money . The United Fingdom’s Finsndal Canduct Autharity, which
regulates LIBOR, has anncunced plans bo phase cut the wse of LIBOR by the
end of 2021 The transition may resultin a reduction in e value of certain
imstruments held by a Fund o 3 redection in the effectiveness of related Fund
tramsaciions. such a5 hedges. There remains uncertainty regarding future
untization of LIBOR and the nanse of any replacement rate (&g, the Secured
Oreernight Rnancing Rabe, whach 15 mbended 1 replace L5 dollad LIBOR and
measunes the oot of ovemightbomowings through repunchase agreement
ransacsions collaterabned with LS. Treasuny securities), and amy potentisl
effects of the transiton away trom LIBOR cn a Fund or on certain instuments
I which & Fund invests e nat known Snd oould result in losses o 4 Fund

Beginning in January 2020, gobal finandal markets have experienced and
iy ConlrLe 10 experience dignificant wolatility resulting from the spread of a
nowel coronaving knawn as COVID-19. The outbeeak of COMIC- 19 has
resulted in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply dhain

AU bons, lower consumer demand and general market uncertanty. The
glohal economey, the economies of certain nations and individua issuers have
been and may continue to be adversely affected by COVID-19, particularty in
[eght of e interconnecivity between onomies and fnands madets, 3l of
which may negatively impact the Funds” performance. In addition, COVID-19
and govennmental responsss 1o COVID- 19 may negatively impact the
capatifities of the Funds’ senvce prosvdders and desrup the Funds” operaticns

Credit and Counterparty Fisks A Fund will be exposed 1o qedtnk 1o
parties with whom it gades andwill also bear the nigh of setlement default
A Fund minirezes concentrations of oredin risk by undertaking ransactions
wath a lange number of Qustomens and counlerpartes on recognized and
repuiabée exchanges, where applicable. OTC derivative ransactions are
Sistect 1o the nide that & counberpaty 1o the rarsacton wall nod fulfll its
contractal obisgations 1o the other party, as many of the protections atforded
Lo centrally deantd dervalive mansactions might not be sealable for OTC
derivative ransactions. For derivalives traded on an exchange o through a
ceniral counterparty, oedif risk resides with the cedibworthiness of

the Funds clearing broker, of the deannghouse itseld, rather than with 2
cointerparty in an OTC derivative transaction. Changes in requiation relating
to & Fund s use of denvatives and related imstnuments could potentially limit

of Bmpact the Fund's ability bo investin denvatives, limit the Fund™s abdity to
employ certan srategoes that use defivatives andior adversely affea the value
o perhormandce of demvatives and the Fund A Fund oould Bose money if the
issuer or guarantor of 3 §xed income sequnity, or the counterparty 1 3
finandal defivalive indtruments oonirad, repundhase ageement of & loan of
portiolio securifes, is unable or unwilfing 1o make timely prindpal andior
iNTERES payrens, of 10 olhenwie honde it obligateons, Seauntes snd
financiad derfvative instruments re subject 10 vaning degrees of credit risk,
which may be refected in credit ratings

Similar to oredit mgk, 3 Fund may be exporsed b0 counterparty rick, of the ik
that an insilution or otfeer enfity with which a fund has umsettled o open
ransactions will default FIMKCO, 35 the Manager, minimizes counierpay
risks to the Funds through a member of ways. Prior to entering into
transactions with 3 new counterparty, e PIMCO Counterparty Fisk
Comamttes condects an extensive qedi review of such Counberparty snd must
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthemmare, pursuant to the tems of
the underying coniract, o the extent thatunpéid amounts owed 1o 4 Fund
exceid a precetermned threshald, such counterparty shall advance collateral
1o a Fund in the Torm of cash or securities equal in value to the unpaid
Armount cwied 10 & Fundl A Fund iy invest dsch collanteral in sequnitied of
othes mistrumeénts and wall typically pay inlerest 16 the cunterparty on the
codl ateral received, If the unpaid amount owed 10 a Fund sbsequently
decréases, 3 Fund would be requined to return to the counterparty 3l o 3
portion of the collateral previcusly adwanced . FIMICO's attempts to mirimize
noEnterparty risk may, however, be unsuocessiul

Al frarsactions in Bsted secanties are settled'paid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties, The risk of dedault is considered minimal, a5 delivery
of sequrities sold is onfy made once a Fund has received payment Faymentis
made on 3 purchase cnce the seaurities have been delivered by the
colmnterparty. The track will fail if either party fails to meet it obiganon

[b) Ovher Risks In general, eadh Fund may be subject to addtional risks,
induding, but not limited to, risks related to govemment regulation and
interventon in finandal markets, operational nisks, risks assodated with
finandal, eooncme: and gobal market disnuptions, and ofwrseaunty fisks
Flease refer to each Fund's offering documents for @ mose detaled
desaiption of the risks ofinvestingin the Fund

Market Disruptions Risk  The Funds are subject o imvestment and
operational rks assodated with finandal, econcmic and other ghobal market
developments and disuptions, induding those arising from war, temorism,
markel ManpUlaBion, Qovemment inlenennons, defaults and shutdowns,
peolitical changes of dplomatc developments, public Realth emengenices
(such a5 the spread of infectious diseases, pandemics snd epidemics) and
naturaliendronmental disasters, which can Al negatreely iImpact the secntied
marbers, interest rates, auctions, secondary rading, ratings, credit risk,
inflation, deflation and other factars relating 1o the Fund's Mvestmisnts of the
Manager's operations and cause a Fund o lode value. These évents may have
adeerse long-tem effects on the U5 and world economies and markets
generally. These events can also impair the technology and other operationsl
systerms wpon which a Fund's senvice providers, induding PIMCO as the
Funds’ investment advizer, refy, and could othensise disupt 2 Fund’s senéce
proniders” ataliey to fulfill their abligations to the refevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an infections respiratony Biness caused by a nowel strain of
cononavngs nown a5 COVID-19) has caused valatdity, severe market
chdocations and Bquidty constramts in mamy markets and may adverely
affect a Rmd's investments and operations

Government Intervention in Finandal Markets federal, state, and other

govemimnts, thesr regulatony agendes, of seff-requiatony organizations may
take sctions that affect the requlstion of the instrments in which 2 Fund
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imvests, of the ksuers of such instruments, in ways that are unforesesatile
Legishation o requlation may slso change the way in which 2 Fund ltseli is
riequlated. Sud lagslation o regulasoen could limat of precisde 4 Fnd's
ability bo schiev: it investiment abjective. Furthenmaore, volatile fnancial
kRt an xpote 4 Fund 1o greater market and liquidity sk and patental
ditficuley in valusng portfolio mstruments held by the Fund. The value of 3
Fured’s hoddings is as0 génerally subgect to the sk of futee local, national, o
glabal economic dsturbances bated on urknown weaknessss in the markers
inwhich a Fund invests. in addition, it is not certain that the U4, Govemment
will intervens in response 1o a future markel dsturbance and the effect of aay
such future intervenion cannot be predicted 1t is difficult for isswers o
prepare for the impact of future finandal downtums, dthough companies can
sesk 10 dentiy and manage fisture uncertanties theough risk management
programs

Fegulanory Fisk Rnancad entities, wuch a5 investment companies and
imvestmient advisers, are generally subject to extenshe govemment regid tion
and intervention. Govemment regulation andr intervention may change the
way a Fund is requlated, affect the expenses. inogred directhy by 3 Fund and
the valie of its investments, and linit andsor predisde a Fund's ability to
achiswe (s irvestment objective. Govemnmand regulation may change
frequendy and may have signeficant adverse oomequences. Moredver,
gerernment reculation may have unpredctable and unintended sffecs

Operational Risk An mvestment in 3 Fund, Bke any fund, can imolve
operaticnal risks. arising from factors such & processing enmors, human emors.,
inadequate or falled inernal or extemal processes, failures in systems and
Lechnchogy, changes in personnel and errors caused by thind-party Service
providens. The ootumence of any of these failures, emors of breadhes could
reesltin @ loss of information, requiatany scruting, reputasonal damge of
ather events, amy of which could have & matenal adverse eflect on a Rnd
While 3 Fund seeks to mirimize such events throwgh controls and oversight,
Uhvesree muany' arill B failusres that could cause bosses 1o the Fund

Cyber Security Risk A the use of technologqy has beconm: more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become potendally more sscepsble
b operational and infmation security ricks resulting from breaches in oyber
security A breach in cybeer secunty refers 1o both interticn d and
unintenSonal cyber events thal may, among olher things, cause a und to
lose proprietary infoemation, suffer data comuption andfor destruction or lose
operatond capadty, result in the unauthonzed refedcs o other misuse of
confidentid information, or ctherwise disnupt noemal business operations
Cyber seurity failures or breaches may result in fnanca bosses to a Fund and
it Unitholders. These tathures or breaches may also result in disruptions. to
business operations, potentatly resulting in inancal losses; interderence with
4 Fund's abilieg bo cabaslate it net el value, prooess Unithohde
Lransactans oF othensise ransact busness with Umthobders; impediments o
trading: viokations of applicatli privacy and other s regulatony fines,
penaltes; reputational damage; fermbursement of ofier compensation cost,;
additional compliance and oyber seqeity i management cosls and other
adverse consequences. In addition, substantial costs may be incured in order
b prevent any cyber incdents in the Suture

B.MASTER HETTING ARRAHGEMENTS

Ene Fureds may be subject tovarious netting arrangements (" Master
Agreements”) with select copnteparties. Master Agreerments gowem e
tearns, of certain transactions, and ae intended to reduce the coenterparty risk
associated with relevant ransactions by spedfying gedit protecton
rechanisns and proiding standandization thatis miended o imgrove legal
certainty Each type of Master Agreement gvems Certain types of
transacmons. Diffenent types of transactons may be waded out of different

Iegal entities or afiiates of a particular organization, resulting in the need for
mreluple agreements with 3 single counterparty. As the Masier Agreements
are specific bo unigue opersticns of diferent 35521 types, tey aliow 3 Fund o
dioss out and net s total exposure to & counierpaty in ihe event of 2 defaudt
with respect 1o-all the a0 sachons governed wnder 4 snge Madter
Agreement with a counterparty. For finandal reporting pampodes the
Stanements of Assets and Liakilities ganesally present dervative atsets and
liakslities on 4 gross basis, winch reflects the full riges and exposures price to
netting

Master Agreements can also help limit oounterparty risk by spediying

ooll steral posting arrangements at pre-aranged exposure bevels. Under most
Master Agreements, coilateral is routinely ransfemed if the 1otal net exposure
tr certain fransactions {net of existing collateral already in place) govemed
under the relevant Master Agreement with a counterparty in 3 given socount
exceeds a spedfied hneshold, which typically ranges from zem 1o §250.000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agresment. United
Stanes Treasury Bt and WS, dollar cash are generally the prefemed forms of
ool ateral, Although other Securities iy be wied depanding on the s
cutned in the applicable Master Agreement Securities and cash pledged az
collateral are reflected 25 25508 on the Statements of Asses snd Labiines. 5
either a component of Investmentd at value (secunties) or Deposits with
cownterparty. Cash collateral received is not ftypicaly held in 2 segregated
acoount and a5 sudh is reflected a5 a lisbiling on the Statements of Assets and
Liabilities a5 Deposits from counterparty. The market value of any secunties
received s collatera is not reflected s a component of Hav. The fund's
crver 8l exposure ko COUNGErparey risk Can -.'|'IMI='||': mb‘,'.mn&-‘;.- within a short
period, as it is affected by each ransadtion subject to the relevant Master
Agpeemint

Master Repurchase Agreements and lobal Master Repurdnase Agresments
(individually and collectvely ™ Master REpo Agreements™) govem repundiase,
feveiie repunchase, and sale-buybadk Tardactions bétwesn e Funds and
seled counterparies. Master Repo Agreements manlan provucns for,
Armong affer thitgs, initiation, incorme payments, ewents of defalt, and
mantenance of collateral. The market value of transachons under the Masher
Riepo Agresmenl, collateral pledped of meceived, and the net expotre by
counterparty a5 of period end are dsdosed in the Motes o Schedule of
Investments

Master Secutities Forward Trarsadion Agresments (T Master Forward
Agreements”) govem certain forward setiling ransactions, such as TBA
seqities, gelayed-deliveny or sale-buybad: ransactions by and

betwreen the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Foreard
Agresments mainain provisons for, among other ting, initlation and
conrmation, payment and transher, events of defsult, temmination, and
maintenance of collateral. The market value of forw ard settling ransactions,
ool atiral pledged of received, and the net exposuee by counterparty & of
period end ané disdcdied in the Nobes o Schedule of imvestments

Curshormer ACoount Agreements. 3nd redated sddends govemn desed
desivatives iransactions sach as fulures, options on fufures, and desred OTC
detivatives Such transacions eequire posting of iniial mangin a5 determined
by mach redevant deanng agency whidh i seghegated in an scoount At a
futures commission menchant {"FCM™) registered with the Commaodity
Fuures Trading Commisson (CCFTCT) [m the Linited SEanes, counterpaty fisk
may be reduced a5 creditors of an FCM cannot have 3 daim fo Fund assetsin
the segregated acoount, Portability of expesure in the event of an FOM
cefault scenario further reduces risk to the Funds. Variation mangn, of
dhanges in marked value, are generdly exchanged dasly, but may not be
netied between futures and deared OTC derivatives unless the paties have
deed 10 4 Separite STGEMENT IR resped of fund margineng. The market
value or acoumelated unredlized appred ation (deprediation], initial margin
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9. FEES AND EXPEHSES

Each Fund is subgect to the foll awing fees payable at the Sallowing anfual rates (tated & 4 percentage of the sverage daly et ssets of eadh Fund, o Class, i
applicable, taoen separateh)

Fees

Fund Managemem AudhAzary fudministrative Agency Distribion
PIRCTO Bermuda Fereign Low Duration Furd 0236% - - - -
PIMCD Bermuda ULS. Laws Duration Fund 0236% - - - -
PIMCO Eurs Total Return Fund - 045%™ 0IE%= 002% ik T
PIMCO Real Retwrn Furd B 046%" DIE%™ 0% ik )
PIRICT Shert-Term Sirategy

= AUD D As%™ - - 010%™ LT

= Ciusm = = = = =

= AP - - - - -

= I LED) = = = = =

. R 045 %" - - 010%™ ik

= 20 045 %M - - 010%™ 057 '™
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i Sy oo vy el 0% o on ol e Vs o ooy i s DR ) il

. T ' o T e il ! 5 e afomc ratory e il e i i e et e i P Sl %6 por i gl o iy e £ 55 sl e Vv et st &8 5% o e gl 0 2 ! O
wllon o g Fond'r oo avems and 0% pwe e ey vu ol i i P v s apory & ey & 500 T sl

. T A oy Tl Retes Frodl byt ¢ it S 34 v e Pl et o i vy P’ i el 310 o i e ottt L S sl Vi ' et it (F 5P e o s v 8 ot (OOT S
wallpn o Sy Fond'r oot averty and § % poe avwwe gy i o o e P vt ey i oy 9 OR 1 alipm
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it ey g 5% gt o ol S Voo st oty i e 51 il
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Notes to Financial Statements

v P (e o sae o0 g i o o vy Baend it vite Pndsadl Fands Targer R (it psicy T i 7 ier i’ 30 e sy Ly S s ek 7l conand by vt v i1 %, e e i ol o % o i e iy
by v iy vy o e (1 SR P e e e ol e 7% iy gt ety o e e’ iy e i e PV 7% etk e e 1 50% 0 e ot s f g e’ i it ot | (e d %, S vy e el e
& Sl ot oy o S s oy vaiw 8 5% i e shen e S il 0 S o ey o ety S oy e i e ey o oo el 36 Blarapo el yelr a0 poparale e A © e grir

Thee rrunagement, adviery and adinisrative fees, if applicable, are puid monihily in amears to PIMCO for providing of amanging for the provisan of advsony,
adminishrative and third-party seraces induwding aud, anstodal, rustes, porttohio accounting, rouling legal, transher agent and printing seraces. The agency and
distribution fees, if apgficable, are paid monthly in amears to remburse finandal intermedianies that provide senices and distibuBon refating to the units of the
applicable Fund {or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the PIMCD Bermisda Foreign Low Duration Fund and FIMCO Besmuda U S Loy Duraion Fund, FMCO
out of its management fee, will bear the costs aswaated with advisory and administrative senvices, 0.1% of whidh is designated 1o cover administrative epenses in
emchange for dis fee, PIMCO will bear the costs of certain third-party services required by the Funds, including audit, custodial, trstee, pertfolio accounting, legal,
transher agent and printing services. FIMCO, and not Unitholders, woukd benefit from amy peice derease in the oost of such third-party sendces, induding dedreases
resulting from an ingease innet xsets. In addifion, with respect to Funds that are subject to an administrative fee, PIMCO generally mates a profit on sudh a fee

As noted in the table above, certan Funds and Classes of Funds ane not idect bo man ajemenl, adisory, sdmanismatve, agendy of dsmibuteon fees. PIMCO Japan
Ltd, PIMCO™s affifiate in Japan, is pad a fee from the Japanese wvestment Trusts or osher imeesment vehicles that investin such Funds or Classes and a poriion of
sisch fiee i then 2located to PIMCO (o compensate it for it seniges

The Funds (or Classes thereof, a5 applicablel may bear otteer expenses related to their operation that are not covered by the management, ad,ii::':.n_ administrative,
agency of dimbution fees, indudng but nat limited 1o (i} tazes and girremmental tees (i) brokerage fees and comimessions and other pOFTCIG Tansaction expenses;
(i) ooses of boarowang maniey, induding interésl expende; (v exraordnary @penses, indudng oots of inigation and indemnification expences, and () afy Expinsss
allocated or allocable w g spedfic Class of wnits, a5 applicabde. PIMICO has paid the I tional expenses wsodsted with PIMCO Short-Tenm Srateqy’s mitial set-
up

PEAACO has paed the onganizationdl expenses ssodatedwath the deabon of the Trust, M further Fumds sre Baurdhed, sudh costs directly attvibutable 1o the eelevant
Furd may be bormie by the rdevant und

10. RELATED PARTY TRARSACTIONS

The imestrment Adviser is & related party (o the Funds and i 3 magon ty-oened subsideany of AllianT Ascet Menagement 4G Feet paid 10 the related party, it any, ane
discdoted in Note 9, and acmed related panty fee amounts, if any, are discosed on the Statements of Assete and Lishilities

Certan Funds are permitted 10 purchase o sl seosities from or to centain related affliated funds under speafed condbons outined in procedunes. adopted by the
Imresiment Advaser. The procedures have been designed 10 ensure that amy purdhase or <ae of seamities by 3 fund from o 1o anather fund that is or could be

consgdered an affifane by virtwe of having a cormmaon adviser {or affiliated investment advisers), is effected at the cwment market price. During the period ended May

fund Purcheses Sl
PMCO Barmuds Foresge Low Derabon Fued 2 L 128
FIMECO Berrrude 115 Loww Ducaton Fuad am e
FIMCD Erver g Mark et Bord! Ford (W) 18,832 1mEn
FIMCO Ewros Teesl Rieasm Fund fan M5
PAMGCD Final Fegam Fund 1,06 &l
FIMCD Shar t-Tam Strataqy 22194 143,185

11. GUARANTEES ARD INDEMRIACATIONS

ik

Unider the Trust's organizational dosments, certain parties (ndwdng the Tnustee and FIMCOO) are indemnified against cerain liabilities that may anse out of
peerformance of their duties oo e Fumds. Addticnally, in the normal oourse of business, the Fands enter inlo contrecs that contain a variery of indesnification dauses
The Funds’ rmasimim exposure under these HTANGQEMENTS is urknown &5 this would involve futee dams that m.\-l.'lje e aganst the Funds that have not i
occurred, Bowever, the Funds have nothad pior daind o [0sses. pursuant to thiese contrads

12. URITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust may rssue up 10 S00,000,000,000 units. The Rends may have 3 significant concentration of rick, as certain Unitholders own more than ten percent of the net
assets of each respeciive Fund Sudh concentration of Unitholders' interests oould have a matenal effect on the Funds in the event these Unitholders request to
withdraw substantial amounts of cagital at the same time, Subsariptions and redemptaons of units of the Funds are dencminated in the Funds® NAV amrency and
conviertisd 1o thi Funds' undsonal qurrency at the 4pol rate on the rantascton date, Lnis of eadh Fund ane isaied wathout pae vialue. The Trustee, with he oonsent of
the danager, may in the future create and offer 2 addiional Fund or Class or Chasses of units
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Notes to Financial Statements o

nanges in urets of benefical interestwere a5 follow 15 and amounts in thousands )
Your Encled Your Encled Yoar Ended Yuwr Enced
My 31, 2001 ey 71, 200 Wy 71, 50 Ny 31, 2021
Urits Aot Uriw hmount Unim Anrt Unit Amor
Rcxirs for urie sokd (| 1855 W ¥ 118 n & 13005 N N
<) Wi N H# NA ] S0 Li-T ] ¥ B34
Coxt of writs rackamed [ e [T (5050 Mn 26,2500 N [
|50 L A L] L] R L IC] 10.35m [N
Mt [decrpers] nessking from
Fund uni? s resction [} ] 55T [ 3 (3.881) (k1] 5 (X178 {5830 £ Dboa
Yoar Ended Toar Ercled Your Ended T Ended
My 31, 201 My 1, 301 My 31, M7 My 31, 203
Unm Bmpt Unm hmo Uniz Amman lniw Amoum
Amaipe for i a0kl = H 5587 HA MN& 3 EIR LF 0 H i)
1AL Ty NA m. F 4 | T Nk T8 N
) DK N L2 -] 1 KR R N8 Mk
J ONR: N& WA 13 35 A St ] N& NiA
I Y M WA el 1,586 L Nk N Wik
TR N L) i B4 A Hk e MiA
| (ZAR T} [ 37 1138 [T [T " N4
Cat of writs raceamad {17 10802 H& M (¥ (1,822 B FLE2N
J [ERALY N Atk 2% 18150 L] 0] ] L 1C]
| 0Fd T N B [0} [T Nk N N4
i T} N [71]] 1548 TR Wik [T} N
J Y H& Petd R |2.526] R A & M4
Hil N . 2 L] L1 Nk N'& Mik
H& 18 e 12.058) 1] Ni& - M4
& BAY BaB B4 0134 EUR 0,500 M & fE
Yiuar Ercad
Wy 31, 21
Uniz R
@ |0
16 18712
L 480
- 526
IFY 4 21516
uE0 28m T0A08
Cort ol wrife rucsnmped
ALD L] (32168
C fuste M 18158
Lip {241} 23430

175/361

rvvan| Bapart | M



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements

Yiear Erad

My 31, 201
Uns At
| D a3 [
IFY el (30,350
e .4} 11515200

Nt ey nerlting from

Fund urit e reection e S I & |

= & o babhen n ey 1ot DnEd BTeEE rendeg T MEs T ot

13. REGULATORY ARD LITIGATION MATTERS

fedendants in &my matenal ROGaton of Miiiranan proosed ngs and e not aware of ary matenal Migaticn or dasm pending or
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund

L I50% duow 1 DRARIEE 2 = (R I

b Aralboredit &5

000 due 1 IVR0E]) bE 2260 6

1 E00% doe 10VIRIZEE3 kL] i

Wardes Eredin Reabosdisnies ek ad

RUS00% doe 1082043 L m

TD00% due 10002060 153 ]

Hrylredd Realkreda A5

1000 dus | AIRI2050 i 3B

1000% due 1 049812053 1 in

15004 due 1OOL2053 1] -]

2500% de DOTLTINT 3 1

J000% ds 1T i |

Realredit Danmark &%

1000 due 102063 k] &

TE00 e D4ABL20T 3 |
1,793

Al A%
Imperial Eramds Fisase e PLC

0I5 o TR H Fii | 212
Urak Azqeiaiies Sab. |ae,

J050% dos DBVSRIET il | i
nz

1550 doe VAR il 3

Petrabras Glebal Finaes BV

ST doe 01V 142 158
£l

Tetal Corpaeate Banss & Habm 600

Ewt 4 2518)

U5, OOVERMMENT AOENCIEE 3.2%

Fasais Maw

QA% b OTERGT [ ]

QAT doe DIE2GT 1] L]

BTN doe 0SS0 5 5§

D4R e 1 DTS20 1 1

J000% o OS2 L] &%

J00% due ORAA203 o] Fi. ]

Fanain Mat, TEA

J500%: due OTAN208H (W 1057 116

Fredde Ma

DT01% dw 1 2ESRIGT 13 12

Dimain Maw

590 dos (BRG] L] ]

Tatal LS. Bovernmend Ageacies 1.568

Cut $1.568

1.5 TREASLREY DBLEOATIONE 100.4%

Tremury lalistiss Protacind Sacaritin &)

D25 d 1ESRMED 1260 am
QI25% due (4202 1.08 L3
BAZS% due DTS00 BIE B
N25% due D1ASE) Ll L]
WA25% dow 1 IVER2004 1,058 L0
BN o /VS0ES () 1,00 Al
BN2E% due | IVIN2DS E L] kiig
0 I25% due DTVER2I0E 1063 (R}]
RI25% dow 01200 1 BlE 1.7
D025% oo OTVER2000 1,364 1,507
025 o (1SRN 100 EAL:]
RI25% due D2FW2051 153 1@

Sev musmpanying neun

FRECIFS
BN T wa
LU 000

0250 due DINS2025 L] [0 B G55
0280 e 0052020 16 1,968 a7
0 Z50% due [RN52050 ] 15
B35 % due MNSZ003 [} 0
0UI75% due I0NST005 50 i
0375% due NS0T 254 1,067
0 375% due O0S200T 643 1Bl
0500 due DRTHTOZ [ 257 a1
0 500% dos ASTIER 6 2. LAET
QUG due (MAS20H 118 1%
DU due DRNS20ZI (0 1,908 203
DLE2S o (1520 00 1,583 215
0 E25% due MITSZ006 1418 1501
DEXS% due RNS7043 13 161
0 750% dus IRNS2008 1540 1824
0 750% dus [RNST042 i L2
0L 730% e MNS20H5 551 2
DE7S% due MAS2009 74l AT:
LB75% due [RAST047 L] 614
1.000% dus [RA5T0M6 [ B84
1.000% due [RN52043 L] o
1.375% e NS08 0 ki &30
1, 70% due DINS2008 565 ()
2 000% due MAS20E [ S04
TA25% due IRNS20MD L E T
E125% due [RASI4 45 47
375 duee MNSEITS 1208 1Az
2 500% due MNS2000 HE [
3375% dus ENS7032 178 261
I due RNSI00R e ] Eri
JHTY due ANS202 B (4[]
US. Treasary Beads
TR due NAGR0R0 0 R Lre
Tetal LS. Treasmry Diligations 4831
Te1 45980
AEEIT Tras
£ T % due DENST0I7 il L
Bamc ot Bmerica Feading Trast
3 H0% due 0G0204T B2 Bl
Bamcary Commercial Marigage Trusd
1.151% due BS2006 3 33
Buyviews Opportaaity Master Fasd Vi Tret
3 AT due (BEETITH n ki)
CIM Truss
1.082% due [RA57043 il b
Comntryaide Hame Lown Mertgage Pass-Thrangh Trest
0 677% due LGS2035 15 a7
Crodit Sbse Marigage Capital Trmt
2 336% due 10002053 a n
CS§ Firit Beaten Mertgaps Secarities Corp.
O72% due MS2002 113 112
GEAMP Trast
BT due (B52035 () ¥\ Fi-
GER Marigage Lean Trust
2 540% due (BO57035 15 16
Hawimmasr Martgeges
1.099% due (BE50053 GE? a7 20
Heme Equity Bosed Timst
0767% dus (RG50006 1 1 o
HEd Baset Secaritization Carparation Treat
D5 due [RO52007 £ W
Imdyblar IROX Marigage Luan Trast
D572% dus (MOS2005 L1 137
DL dus (GS2004 (Kl 135
JPMargan Marigage Trest
2 T0% due BAST05 4 i
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L] [Lei]
Lehman X5 Trest
1. 200% due 1 20037 14 3 in ¢ i3
Leng Ersc b Mestqags Lags Tret
&% due DEES2035 2 ke
Mulae Resicdential Faacisg Corparation Merigage Pass-
Thrangh Trest

551% due 08152032 T T
R Rsidemtial Martgage Leaas Trmt
2 T50'% due 00220059 158 1]
Diptias Due Mesigage Lase Tred
0547 due | VESGOH e i
Rmidential Mertgage Secorities 12 PLE
1:18'% due DE20T0T0 GEP nr (kL]
Sause Bzsel Smmnities Tresi
LA due 05250037 3 L] 18
Strattes Marigige Fandag PLC
1. 200% due 250051 - a e
Terwed Poit Mastgage Fuscing Grusiced FLC
1111 due 1602051 74 il |
Twin Exldges FLC
1 18% due DB 27053 1 1
‘WaMs Martgage Pass Throagh Cortificates Trast
2B due DERT0XT 14 ! Fi| Fl]
Total Marigage-Buaclord Securithes 230
Lo 42299
Beapheres CLO [V DAC
(LE0% due 1 2150030 HIR 15 05
Calra CLO M BV
[LE50'% due 1 DF0TE a1k} ]
CHAM Ltd
AN due 107 120 3 i 309
Gresvemar Place CLO BY
0720 due 1 0EM0EY HIR Az 1z
Haresst CLO XPY DAC
(XS due 1 1RG0 52 il
51 Paal's CLO ¥ DAC
(B0 due MZS00H0 150 s
STWD Ltd.
1 1B % due OTA1S03G 1 ] 108
Total fsset-Backed Seeurities 1576
Cot 41580

S IVEREION ISSUES AR
Brgentina Treasery Bils

35.108% due DLOGT0TE AR %] i
A tralia Geverement Samd €

1. 790% diw D37 LENEE AlD i6a JT5
D00 due 09005 B M
Canach Gavernment Bond

L300% due 12000 K CAD 158 112
Framce Grosrmment Boad

(S0 dum (ORI e R 2 il
Itaty Bvani Palivanali del Tezode £}

[LAD0% g DSRS0 B% 208
1A% dus (ISTRANES 1208 1,593
Japan Gavermman CPI:Limbed Bamd i)

(LRE: dus (K310 LAy i)
[0 800 dum (F10E0E .38 Fi.Fl
[ 000 due 03102029 0,158 -]

Munite Davarement laterastinnl Bead

A S00% due 1UTHI0IS MXK i ] 17
Pem Governmest lotermatioma Bead
5 S0% due 120039 PEN 1 ]
B §50% due BBA D 1] BE
Tetsl Sovaciiga ik 3
et 44 06D
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)

1 1
5y |
B i
5% due OBAIE 4 n H
Erwos Breth e Harriman & Ce.
00 31 ) e DB ST ¥ 1] |
Citibank MA
BID05Y% due DETLDIY ] 2 iz
DES Bank Lid
D05 o OBTR20M 1 ]
OmB Bank ASA
0 THIMG] due OG1002) I 3 ]
QDS due DETLDI0 ] 1 3
HEEL Eank PUC
401 TROM] e 0NN 2021 B2 x| ]
JPlbargan Chade Bk ML R
[N5% due QBTG 2 i ]
MUFG Eaakid
SRR B ¥ ] 1]
Semiteme Mitiui B
5 mn ® 0
¥ L] 1}
GEP 2 3
] H H
Samiteme Mty ui Trmt Bask Lid
G ITO%) A OBTNG03) ¥ ar 5
BIE05% de D 7l GEP L] E.i]
RUENS% duw DETRZ0 [} k] k]
487
MRS 7587 1w
3 Y an 2
10 045% dem D30GIN L] 1
AT G4 1% o TRTAROH BB 5
2B
Totsl Shart-Torm lestraments 513
Exmtiflg
Tetal lwwesimenis m Secnriiies b 126.8% i oErm
Lot 53,358
Fimameial D# rivaina
lesiramants fgidd M.2% nem
Exst ar Frembms, an $ 05
Oiher Baxets and Liakiliies. oot (26 8% 013039
et Assrts 100.0% 8 48136

NOTES TO SCHEDULE DF BNVESTMENTS (AMOUNTS IN THRUSAND 5™, EXCEPT NUMEBER OF CONTRACTS)

A mere balsncs may refl et sctusl amounts rounding to leis than one thounand,

(3) The allecation of Total Investmants by gesgraphic regien a8 of May 31, 2021 is W7T.2% of Net Assets in the United States and other countries
eamprising of 1905 of Net Ausels In aggregate.

(&} ‘Whendssued security.

[¢) Principal amsgunt of Recurity i+ sdjusted for inflation,

[d} Security s in default

[#) Coupen represents 3 yisld 1o matudty,

Say sinsmpiaying s ewn e Bapor | May 31, 2621 1]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)

BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Payalile dur
Feverse Pepurchass
Caumterparty Agreemants
HEN ] {7, 106}
HEN .50
GRE
GRE 15 o Fild
GRE (RN
GRE URGE Ui
GRE 4
GRE
Tetal Reverse Regurchase Agrermenis ¥
Payahle bar
Barrawving Settlement B turity Bmsunt Sale-Buwyhack
Caumtwrparty Hatr Date Date Barrwweed ! T ra i b
5N 0 s IRen ¥ ] [de 3 ri L]
Tetal File-Buybick Tramctsm ¥ REEN

Remaining Comtractusd Maturity af the Agresments

Overndght and Grewisr Than
Centines s U %2 30 s 3190 days 90 duys Tatal

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

% Gomenmeni Dabn [ 17108 ] Tkl [ ] 1 1% ¥ i § R
Tutal Reverse Regurchass Aqrermenis & ﬂ,1w ] 711} § i1 E (] 1] 1] ! !Eﬂ
Sale-Buyback Tram-actisns
U5 Cowinmini Debi L] [P ] ] £ L] J ] 1 ] [ e
Total Sale-Buyhack Tramaciinns & 2 989 ] ] E ] ] ] ¥ 2,868
Total BEsrrwwdngs ] {10,078} § 711} § 1,134 § ] ¥ [11,825)
Payable bar Aeverse Repurchase Agreem ests and Sale-Buyhsck Transactians'™ ] Lk BEE
The: dolowing & u vemmary by comasrpariy of #a mat o1 valie of Borrowsings: and thes Fnencng Trangan mons: and oolateral pledgedaosnsd) ax of kay 31, 700

% g“urfﬂ“ with an aggregate market value of §11.958 have baen pledged o9 collptaral under tha tarm s of the Follewing master agraements a8 of May 31,
021,

Ragurchaze

Agreement Payable fur Tatal

Procens Rwwverse Payahle far Berrwwsdngs and

LT Repurchass SileBuyhaeck Payubls bar  Osher Fimancing Calataral

Cousterparty Reewived Agreamems Tranactians Ehert Sabey Tramsactions  PlodgedRecebvad] Mt Expesure®
Globaiimter Repuhm e Agresmem
HEN 4 n 1 (d3Em 2 0 3 n = neEn ¢ L % 7 238
GRE 0 [1,6501 [ ] 116501 1463 1
Magtee Sacenii: Fofacind T randacborg Agies et
5N 1] i @ sl 1] 12,5681 8m 3
Tatal Bercowdngs snd Othar Finarcing Trantections & B & fen:y & [T 0

® Colomernl ol 2100 m sbarthed e ol My 31
W i mwmegn maan of booTowmegs uauredneg Aurmey the pered mrded w11 300 s 12 W20 wwesghied meamge mrwres mre of 0 V1% Avimge ber g oy e Be- ke 1 e b wed revire rgaiasn
igtemmetts # Bed doieg the paned

Ul rosarrs repot bona agrwsants nbilay of 517 47 | ewindng o pened and

P Bt | DG N TR L T e | 1 v R | Co Ty o e o el Depnars from Dot need s BT DOReoNE D ool b e Bre st o0 e ande tha
SR PoRH O g Ens Wt (it e gl aeily S Mot | by Mg TG ArmrspmEds m iy Hete o hamonak Saivmed bar mony ndormes on i MU T o 20 2 21

»
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)

) FINARCIAL DERFUATIVE INSTRUMENTS; EXEHANGE- TRADED OF CENTRALLY CLEARED

Urrealized
Expiratian #af Appreciatisns Warlatam Margin
Descriptign Type Comrict  {Depreciatien) Haget Limbiliy
BorpBabl 5 ear Nots June R Log B & 17 ] I m
BaroBTP 37 aw Kote June Fuigume Shart g ] o
Euro TP 10-¥ea Bord Jore Fiturne Shen § 1 (]
Buro-Bend 10-Year Bond Saprsmber Fubss Liong I 3 1} (i}
BBl hait 5 15 ] 1]
Brichig ' i e hart ] (1] D (1]
3 Shan " @ ] n
g &5 I i (/]
U hai k] 0 [k}
x ' hart 4 ] &
U5 Treacory URre 10-ear Kobe Sepae : Sha 5 ] m
15 Treavery Ulre 30 ear Bong Sepoes ber Fuing i 5 3 ] [£]]
Tutal Fubores Cantracts & 20 & 13 ] [
Uerralized
Pay Receboe Piatianal Market Bppreciation’ Warlatien Margin
Flaating Rats Flaating Rats lmdex Fluwd Rats Amsunt Walas (Dagraciatan LT Liability
Py 3 kvt HIR 1,80 & b H @ § < i
Fay 1 6E% H 3500 i i3 X H
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)
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PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31
0 2,959
0 1,622
15,038 59,632
1,105 0
543 0

68,085 73,763
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JITF
2020 31 2020 31 2020 31 2020 31
23 2,366 15 1,577 684 27,407
6,157 102,829
@yl 4,242) enl @.82n) @72)|  (30,141)
12,973)|  (216,161)
as)|  (@.87) anl  @,250) @8 @730  (6,816) (113,332)
2020 31 2020 31 2020 31 2020 31
154 9,677 100 1,098 124 2,348
169 6,856
18 1,475
20 1,424
23 1,366
227 3,348
59 1,986
(202) (12,746) ©D| (1,019) @188)  (3,424)
247) (9,673)
(O] (412)
34 (2.349)
7 (2,823)
4,679  (77.821)
(83) (2,820)
48) (3,069) 4,578)  (79,407) 9 79 65| (@,076)

2020 31

313 21,393

3740 | 37,767

49 4,627
18 1,758
99 9,049

1,502 158,694
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ar) | @i,370)

5P| (5,395
(606) | (56.314)
@y | @.osn
@07y | (37,290)
(718) | (75.588)

368 44,274
2019 29 2020 31
13
14
US GAAP
2020 31
2020 31
15
2020

224/361



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statements of Assets and Liahilitiescont)
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Statements of Assets and Liahilitiescont)
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Statements of Assets and Liahilitiescant)
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Statements of Operations [Con)
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Cont)
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Statements of Cash Flows [cont)
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Finaneial Highlights (cent)
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGAMNIZATION

Each Furd distussed in this repoet (each & “Fund™ and coflectively, the "Funds™), which also indudes eadh dass of units of that Fund (eadh a "Class™ and collectively,
the "Classes™), i 2 senies trust of PIMCO Bermuda Tnst (the "Trust™), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Barmuda a5 2 mulB-senies trust pursyant
10 & brust deed exeqated by Windhester Global Trust Company Lirmited on Apgust 8, 2001 (a5 amended from Sme 1o ime, the ™ Trust Deed™). Effective &5 of te doge
of busmess (Eastern time) on Seplermber 29, 2017, Maples Trushee Senaces (Bermuda) Limeted (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 rustes of e Trust Paalic nvestment
Managernent Cornpany LLC ("PIMCO™, the “Manager™ of the “Inwestment Adviter™) is the spondor of and was mapondble for structuring the Trust

The: Trust i subgect 10 regaation and wuperaton as provided Tor in e nsestment Funds Act 2006 and redated nules relating to standand funds

The: temms of e Trust Deed confer upon the Tustes, with the consent of the Manager, the power, i the future, to establish further funds in additon 1o the Funds
curently in operation a5 of the date of this report

The Funds presented in this report are [shed below:

FIMCT Barmuda Forasgn Low Disration Fund Oarad only to fusds with a “Fund of Fends® stuciure, as defined mn tha rubes of the

FIRCT) Barmada U 5 | Low Duraton Fund Imvestment Trysts Assoaanon, Japan, of bo funds wath & simdar stryciua in sny oghsr

FIMGO Emarging Markets Bond Fund LIITF] junsdchon

FINCT Emenging Barbets Bond Fund {Yan-Hadged)

FINCT) Emrging bAsrkets Bond Fund i

PN Fuso Totsl Aeacen Fund T Fresd i tetail (Messton im Japsn by way of pUhr offang ticugh @ O ot in

PINCT) Raad Rasturn Fend Jagan, and may ba offined to othid imnisions at B dizaBion of the Manager

FIRACL Short: Tewm 5 rategy™ Orffiened toretal investors m Japan by wey of public offanng theough 3 distibaber andior a
sales handling company in Japan, end may be offered to othar imiesioes at the discraion
of thi Mansgir

FINCT Emargin g Markets Bond Fund (M) [ Freeeed coniy e othe Fands o sarve a3 an undardying mwastmean twehide for such Funds

* B LT el (OE Samae f rite PIREET o -Sore Srarogy are s i 1 v it Tond Vil ™ s o ilinwd o 0 ey o i by oty Ao Samam o B o wich p wrmder i Ty o my A pedTO R
Tl (UG (e 2 AR e love Sty of o S il o0 0 Fasteli 1 v i 0 i i) vt et el o ookt Pty

Uit of the PIMCO Euro Total Return fund, FIMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD, JFY, and USD Classes of PINKCO Short-Term Strategy have been registered under the
Fenancial instrurments and Exdhange Law of Japan. Linits of eadh of the remainng Funds and the O QUSD), J OFY)L and J (USD0 Classes of PIMCO Short-Temn Sirategy
have not been and are not curently expected to be registered under the Finandal Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. Accordngly, such Units of these Funds may
ot b, cirectly or indirectly, offered in Japan or to any resident in Japan, except i compliance with spplicabde Japanese [aws and regulations

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUINTING POLICIES

The followang is & sumensny of sigmficant accouming pofides congstently fobowed by the Trust in te preparation of its finand @ statements in conformity with
accaunting prindples generally acepted in the United States of Amenica (TULS. GAAP™). Eadh Fund i treated 35 an investment comgany under the feparting
requiremnents of U S GAAP The preparation of Snandal statements i accordance with Ll 5. GAAP requines management 1o make estimates and assumplions that
affet the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and dsdosure of confingent assets and Babilities at the date of the finandial statements and the reported amoaunts
of increases and decreates in net assets from operations during the reporting perod. Actual results could ditfer from those estimates

{a} Underying Fand The Tristee and the BManager may apply all or a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (0TF), PFIMCO Emerging Markets
Bord Fund (Yen-Hedged, and FIRCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il (each refermed o herein a5 3 “Fund of Funds™ or the " Acquiring Fund”, which invests in other
Funds) to the respective qedit of the PIMCD Emerging Markets. Boned Fund (M) freferred to herein 25 2n "Underhing Fund™ or the ~Acquired Fund(s)™), Arry 3ssets 50
appdied will be held in such Acquired Fund(s) a5 if receled deecty. Where asets are 5o applied, he Acguired Fund(s)will recoed the issue of units 5o e relevant
Anguining Fund at the issee price perunit of sudh units and will repurdhase sudh units at the repurdnase price per unit of such units a1 the dme of repurchase

Ratigs shosvr in the Anandal Highlights do notndude expenses of the Acquired Fundis). See Mole 9, Fees and Expenses, for further informanan regarding fund fees,
a4 applicable

(b} Secunities Transactions and luvestmeont Income Secunlies ransactions are reconded & of the rade date fof inandal reporting purpodes. Securities pudchased o
sold on a when-issued or delayed-delivery basis may be sedtled beyvond a standard settement pericd for the security after the rade date Realized gains and losses
from secunties sold are reconded on the idenfified oot basls. Dividend incoeme is recondsd on the ex-dhidend date, extept certain dvidends from foraign seounities
whenk the exc-dridend date may have paised which ane reconded & s00n 25 a Find i infonmed of the aedadend date Interest income, adusted for the Jdreton of
disoounts and amartization of premiums, i reconded on the acoual bases from seatement date, with the esceplion of searities with 3 fansard Starting effective date,
wihere mnlerest income 15 fecorded on the aconual badis trom effective date. For comvertible seqmties, premsurms altnbutable o the converson feature e not
amortized. Esfimated tax liabilities on certain fioreign secunifies are recorded on an aooual basis and are reflected 2 compan ents of interest income or net change in
unredized appreciation (depreciation) on investments on the Statements of Operations, as approprate. Tax liabilities realized as a result of such security sales are
refiected a5 & component of net realized gain (Joss) on investments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gaens and losses on mortgage-related and other asset-
Buacked tetuiites, i any, s feceaded 42 corponents of inlefedt incame on the Statements of Operations. Debl abligations may be placed on mon-a0udl status and
redabed inbenest incodre may be reduced by ceasng Qarent aomuas snd wris !}g"j':flﬂ'.‘{"l'r':ﬁt receivable when te collection of all of @ portion of interest has become

St Repart | May 31, 2000 ]
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doubstful besed on corsistently applied procedures, A debe obligation is
remadved from non-acdual status when the iSser resumes nisnest payments
or when collectability of interest it probable

{e} Cazh amd Foreign Currency The fnandal statements of each Fund are
presented uang e currency of the primany economic enronment inwhich it
operates (the "funcBonal currency™), The functicnal curency for each of the
Fureds is [rsted in the below tatie

The market vakies of foreign sequnties, curmency holdngs and other assets
and lahilities are transhated into each Fund's functional asrency based on the
curent exchange rates each business day Purchases and sales of sequnities
and income and expense [tems denomenated in foreign currendes, if sy, e
trarihated intd sach Fund’s respective Juncional asrendy at the exdhangs
rate in effect on the ransecion date. The Funds do Nl Separ abely repoft the
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from changes in market prices on
secuities hetd Sudh changes are mdided i ned realized and net changss in
unreabiped gain of loss from imeestments on the Statements of Operatons

The Funds may imvest in foreign ourmency denominated securities and may
engage in forégn ourmendy randactions either on a spat fcath) basis at the
rate prevailing in the qurrency exdhange markel &t the fime or through a
forveard foreign aurency contract. Realized foreign exchange gairs of losses
anising from sales of spod foreign qurmendcies, qumency gains or |osses realized
betarien the rade and seddement dates on senudities ranssctions and the
ditference between the recorded amounits of deidends, mterest, and foreign
withholdng taxes and the o aurency squivalent of the amaounts
achaally received or paid are indudedin net realized gain or loss on foreign
Qamency ransactions on the Statements of Giperaticns. Met unseabized foreign
exchange gains and lodses anyng fromm changes in fofeign eochanoe rates on
i.'lfﬁ';\'l denormnated aisers s leabili Bes omher tham Bves Iments in Sounbes
heelid it the end of the reporting pericd are induded in net change in
unnegliped apprediation or depreciation on foreign quiTendgy 355e1s and
kakilities cn the Statements of Operaions

Thee Bet Asset Value ("HAV") and totad retums of ceman Funds (or COasses
thereod, a5 apglicable) are presented in the qumency forwhich the NAY s
reported (fhe " NAY cumency™) a5 detailed in each Fund's Offering
Memaorandum (he "Offering Memorandum™), For the purposes of the
presentaton of he NAY and the tatad reum in the NAY aurency, te
beginning and endng MAVE are converted using the pernod begirning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dstibutions are comeerted using the
exchange rate at the ime of the distribution. See the folowing table for the
W&y ourrency of each respective Fund;
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FundiClas: T — :
PIMGD Shout-Toen Sormingy
= AD Aushalion dollae | US dollar
. CluEm L5 dofls UE dollar
e JUPY Jupass yin U5, doltar
= JuEm Japanssayin US. dollar
. FY Japatse yan L5, dollar
. ] U5 dallas U5 dollar

FAMCT) Bl Formign Lows Dusstion Fund Jepanena yen UE dolla
PILACO Bermuda 15 Lo Duranien Fusd Higin s in [ENET
AN Ermanerey Mk Bond Fiuned LITE} Jegean eca ven WS dolla
FIMCD Emesgng Machee Band Furd (M) 115, dollar W5 deollat

= 5D
FIRICD Emangeng Markn s Bord Fusd (Yen Hadoed) dapan e yen UE dollae
PIMCD Emaspiniy Maskue: Bod Fused ) Jagran g yn 0% dallar

= JiERl}

. EDA)

= JiKA)

* JMON)

L J [TRM)

»  JER
FIbCD Eure Totai Hetarn Fond Euroy Euro
PibAD Real Repam Fund LS dollar UE dolla

{d] Multiclass Operations Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
righits 1o the assets of the Fund equal o that of other Chasses of te same
Fund, wasept for spedfic assets and gaing and losses designated o a Class
relating to aFrency hedging operations. Incorme, non-Class spedfc expentes,
and non-Class specfic realized and unrealized capital gains and losses are
#ocated toeach {lass of units based on the relative net assets of eadh Class
of the respective Fund. Jass spedfic espenses qumently indude
managernent, Shisory, adminisirative, agendy and dsmitaution fees, whene
applicable

() Distribution Pelley The folloeing table showes the antidpated frequency
of distributions $or each Fund. Distributions from each Fund may be dedared
and distributed to Unitholders onfy upon the authonzation of the Manager,
wihich authorization may be withheld at the Manager®s desretion

Declared Daiy end Peia Momhiy:

PRACO Ewe Total Ashun Fond
Declored and Peid Monthly:

PRACO Emer g Marketz Bond Fand [HTF)
PIMCO Emergeag Markets Bond Fund [en-Hedgad)
PRACO Emerging Markas Bond Fund |1
PRACH Short-Term Suateny
a UM
= =

Doalered and Pad Quartacy

PRACO Berrmisda Forergn Low Duraton Fund
PRACO Barrrudla LS. Lows Duration Fund

Declarad and Peid Annually

PIMCO Rl Return Fond
PRCD Bt Term Strateqy
« AUd

Thes Munager ¢ oo not expect to declare distributions with respact 12 thia
Fand {or Cluzsas 1hereof, if applicable], bus may, in its diseration, deciers and
dintribulians to the Ursthalders at sy tisse.

PRACO Emerging Markets Bond Fund M)

Distibutions, if any, will generally be made from the relevant Fund’s {or
Clags's, if applicable) net imvestment income. In addition, the Manager may
duthorize the payment of net realized capital gains available for distibution
Additional distributiors may be dedared as the Manager deems appropriate
Custritwtions paid with respect toany Fund (or Class thereod, if spplicabie)
will reduce the NAW of sisch Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable). At the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distibutions from a Fund (o Class theneof,
it applicabde) may esther be reinvested in additional wnits of a Fund (or Class
thereat, it applicable) or pasd o 3 Unithalder in cash. Cath paymen 14 wall be
paid in the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund (or Class. thereof, if

Baveai| Repert | My 31, 2000 n
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applicable) may declare further distribitions if corsidered necessanyin order
10 intan a reasonabie level of distibutions for 3 Rand (or Class thereod, if
applicable) In the svent that there is inadequate net income and net realized
captal gains 1o pay 4 dstnbubon of 4 Fund (of Class thensal, 11 appdicatde)
redquired by the Cffering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
congsting of a portion of the capital of such Fund {or Class therect, if
applicable). Distributions nof oollected withan sixyears from their due date
will lapee and will acorie to the benefitof the relevent Find dor Class theneod,
if appficable)

il New Accounting Prencmmcements I Miirch 2070, the Hpanoal
Acocunting Standands Board (" FASE") rsaued an Acooiniting Standards
Uipcate " ASUT), ASU 2020-04, which pronedes optional quidance 1o ease the
patential accounling burden sssodiated with rangtioning e ay from the
London interbank: Offered Rate (TLUB0R ™) and other reference rates that are
expected to be discontinued. The ASU s effectively immed ately upon releass
of the update on March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022 At this Sme,
mandgement i evaluatng the implications of thee dranges on the fingndal
statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASLUREMENTS

{a} Investment Valsation Pelicies The price of a Fund's units i3 bazed on
the Fund's NAY. The NAY of a Fund, or each of its Classes, as applicable, is
determned by dividing the: total walue of pontfobo imestments and ather
assels attmbutable to that Fund or Class, kess any ligbilities, by the total
ffeer of units cutstanding of that Furd of Class On each Fund's Dealing
[y {35 desoribed in the aament ':"f'!l?l'lﬂfl Memorandism of the Tnast,

Furd units are ordinanly vaboed as of the doge of regular trading on the New
Tork S1ock Exchange ("NYSE Clote™) Infoemation that becomes kndwn b9
the Funds or their sgents after the Bme as of which NAV has been caloulated
on 3 particular day will not generaly be used to retroactively adjust the price
ofa SEcunfy or the NAY determined eadlier that day. Each Fund resenes the
right o dhange the time &5 ofwhich its NAV i5 calaulated if the Fund diodes
earlier

For purposes of caiqulating a NAY, portfolio seqenties and other assets for
which marker quotes are readily available arevalued at market valpe. Market
wale 15 generaily determined on the bass of official dosing prices or the last
reported cabes prices, of if no Sales are fepcited, baded on quotes obtained
froen established marker makers or peices (nduding evaluated peices) suppbed
by the Fundt” appeoved pricing services, quotation reporing Systems and
ofher third-party sources (bogether, " Fridng Sendces”), The Fynds wil
noirnally e pricng dans for domesic equity seasities received shorty after
the W5E Close and do not nonmatly t3ke into socount rading, dearances or
seitlements that take place after the NYSE Close. If market value pracing is
used, a foreign (non-U 5 ) eduity secunity raded on a foreign exchange oron
mare than one exchange i5 fypically walued using priding information from the
entfiange consadensd by the Manager to be the primany exchange. A foreign
{mon-LU S ) equity sedurity will be walued a5 of the dose of radng on the
Tareign exchange, o the NYSE Chose, if the NYSE Close aoturs before the end
of trading on e foreign exchandge. Domeshc and Tofeign (Ron-U 5. ) teed
income sequrities, non-exchange traded dervatives, and equity oplions are
nomnally vaued on the basis of quotes cbitained from brokers and dealers o
Fridng Semices using data reflecting the earier dosing of the prindpal
fkarkets fof thode secufitied. Prices oblained fram Pricandg Sendoes may be
based on, among other things, infomation provided by market makers or
estimates of market values obtained fFom yéeld data refating to investments of
secyrities with similar characteristics, Certain ficed inoome seqanities
purchased on a delayed-gelivery basis are marked o market daity untl
setriement an the forwand settbernent date. Bcchange-traded options, except

equity options, futures and oplions on futures, are valued at the setdement
pernce determaned by the relevant eidhangs. Swap agreements are valued on
thie hass of bid quates obtained Trom brokers and dealers or market-based
prtced supplied by Friong Seraces of other plang sonces. A Fund's
imvestments in open-end management investment companies, other than
exchange-iraded funds ("ETFs™), are valuad at the NAYS of sudh investments
Open-end management investment companess may indude afSliated funds

& faregn (rom=L05 ) edquity seaunty’s value hat matenaly changed after the
dhose of the sensiny's primary exchange of princpal macket but before e
NYSE Close, the security may be valued at fair value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U S equity
sequrities that do not trade when the NYSE ks open are also valued at fair
value, With respect to foreigen (non-U 5. equity securities, 3 Fund may
determing the fairvalue of imedments based on information provaded by
Fricing Senvices and other third-party vendors, which may recoemmend fair
value or adustments with reference to other secunities, indices or a2l In
considering whether far valuation is required and in detenmining fair

values, 3 Fund may, among other things, consider significant events fwhich
may be considered to indude changes in the vatue of LS. sequities of
st incheed) that aoour after the dede of the relevant market and befeore
the NYSE Close A Fund may whilize modeling tools provided by thind-pary
vendors o detenmine fai values of foreign (non-U 5 ) seaurities. For these
purposes, amy movement in the applicable reference index of instrument

(" Zenc trigger ) between the eafser dose of the applicabie foreign market
and the NYSE Clode may be deerned fo be a sgnificant event, prompting the
application af the pricing model (effectivety resulting in daity far

valuatbors), Foreign exchanges may penmit trading in foreign {non-U.%)
equity secunities on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may
tesulein & Fund's peatfolio imvestments Being affected when Limtholders ate
unabde 10 buy of sl units

seniior secured floating rate loans for which an active se@ndany market exsts
o a reliabile degree will ba valusd at the medn of the last available bidlak
prices in the market for such loans, a5 provided by a Pricing Sendce. Senior
seaued floating rate loans for which an active secondary market does nat
exist 0 2 relidble deqgres will be valued at tar value, which is miended to
appeorirnale macked value In vauing & senor seduned floatng cate loan at
fair value, the factors considered may indude, but are not lirmited fo, the
following: (a) the creditwartteness of the borrower and any intermedate
partidpants, () the terms of the loan, {c) recent prices in he market for
sarmalar [oans, if amy, and {d) recent prices in the market for instuments of
sumilar quality, rate, penod until naxt inderest rate reset and matunty

Ivvestmen s vakued in cumendes other than the functional cumency

of a Fund are converted to the Junctional currency using exchange rates
obdained from Pricing Services. As a result, the value of such investments and,
in oum, the Hay of he Fund's units may be affecied by changes in e valus
of cusrencies in refatson to the functional cumency. The value of irvesmenis
traded in for £ign markers o denoeminated m curmendes ogher than

the fumcional currency may be affected significanthy on a diy that the Trust is
ot open for business. As a resulk, fo the extent that a Fund holds foreign
fmon-LU5 ) imvesimnents, e value of those nvesiments iy charsge i Gmes
wihien you cannod pundhase, redeem of exchange units and the value of such
Invvesaireen b will e eeflected in the Fund s next calod ated NAY

Inveaments for which mackel quotes o market bated valuabons are nat
readiy available are vaued at fair value a5 determined in good faith by

the Manager of persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adopied
mithads bof valuing secaunies and other assels in ahoumalances whers
market quotes are noT readily available, and has delegated o PIMCO the
responsitafity for applying the far valuation methods. In the event that markset
quites or market based valuations are not ready availatie, and the sequrity
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oF asset cannod b2 walued pursuant to & Manager approved valuation
e, thee vakue of the sexurity or a3set will be determined in good faith by
the Valuation Committes. Market quates are considened not readily available
I arasrsLances wiverd thene 15 an atsence of aurment or nelfaile marke
based data (e g, rade information, bedfask information, ind cative market
quotations "Broker Quotes™), Fridng Sendces’ prices), induding where
events oorur after the diose of the relevant market, bt prioe o the NYSE
Close, that matedaly sffect the values of the Fund's secusities of Gisels
addition, markel quatet are considered not readity avalable when, due to
extraordinany droymstances, the exchanges or markets an which the
secunifies trade do not gpen for trading for the entire day and no other
market priges are available. The Manager is responsibiz for monitoring
significant svents that ey matekally affect the values of the Fund's seaurities
of assets and for determiming whether the value of the applicible seqinties or
Agsets should be réevalisated in light of sudh sigmficant events

When a Rend wees far waluanon o determine the valwe of a porthalio seanty
or ather asset for purposes of calaulating its NAY, sech investments will not
b priced on the bads of quotes from the primany market inwhadn they ane
traded, bul rather may be priced by another method that the Manager o
persons acting 81 their ditection believe refects fair valde. Fairvaliation may
redquine subjective determinations about the value of a secunity. While

the Trust's poibcy is intended to result in a calotation of 3 Fund's NAW tat
fairty reflects sequnty values as of the time of prdng, the Tt cannot ensgre
that fair values determined by thi Manager of persons acing a1 ther
direction would acosrately refiect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security if it were to dispose of that sequrity as of the time of pridng ifar
instance, in a forced or distressed sale), The prices used by a Fund may differ
froe the value that would be reafized if te seouriies were sold

il Fair Vadue Hierarchy L5 GAAF desorines far value a5 Me pice hat

A Fund wiould recerae to sell an asget of pay 1o ransher a Hability in an orderly
ransaction bebween market participants at the meadusrement date. it
establiches & fair value hierardhy Hhal priclizes inputs 10 waluation methods
and requires dsdosure of the fair value hierarchy, separately for each major
category of ascets and labilities, that tegregates far value Mesurements N
levels (Leved 1, 2, 0r 3). The inputs o methodobody used for valuing seoaities
ane R0t neoetaily anindicaton of the ks astociated with imeting in those
securities Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value Heranchy are defined as follows

» Level 1—Ouoted prices in active markets or exchanges for identical assets
ans iabiliges

* Leved 2—Significant other absenvabie inputs, which may indisds, but are
nal bmited to, quoted prices for Smilar assers o Habeities in markers hat ane
active, quoted paces fof identical of dmilar ssets of lisbikies in markes that
are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are chservable for the
assets.of liabilities (such as interest rakes, yield quves, volatilifies, prepayment
spieck, loss severites, aredit isks and defaull rates) or other market

o obarated inguats

& Level 3—Significant unobsenvable inpts based an the best information
available in the aroumatances, 1 the edent observable inputs ane ot
availabde, whidh may indude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
aciing at their direcsion that are used in determnining the falr value of
invesments

In accandance with the requicements of U S, GAAP, the amounts of ransfers
i and cut of Level 3, if material, are dedosed in the Notes 10 Schedule of
Imvestments for each respedive Fund

For fair valuations wsing significant unchservable mputs, U5 GAAP requires
to discdese wansfers inte and cut of Level 3 of the fair value hierardny and
purchates and iscues of Livel T ascers and liabilites during the pesiod

Addtionally, LS GAAP requires quantitative information regarding the
siqnificant unobsenvable imputs used in the derermination of fair value of
Feets of liabilives categorized 34 Level 3 in the far value hierarchy In
acoofdance with the requiremints of LS GAAF, a fasr vabue Fierarchy, and it
material, details of agnificant unobservable inputs, have been induded in the
Modes to Schedisle of Imestments for eadh respective Fund

{e] Valustion Techniques nnd the Fair Valus Hierarchy

Level 1.and Level 2 rading a=sets and trading liabilities, at bair value The
valuagon methods {or "techniques™) and significant inputs used in
determining the fair valuwes of portinio securities o other assets and liabiiges
categaized a5 Leved 1 and Level 2 of the fair vatue heerarchy are 35 follows:

Fixed income securifies includng corporate, convertibde and minicps bonds
andnates, U5 government agéndes, LS. meaisry obligabions, soveredgn
Iszues, bank loans, comer tible preferred securities and non-lU % bonds are
normathy walued on the bass of quaotes cbtained from beokers and dealers of
Fricing Sendces that use trcier dedler quotations, reported frades or
valuation estimates from their intemal pricing models. The Pricing Senices’
internal rodels ute inpuis that e obtervable wsch 3 issuer details, interest
rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, credit riskafpneads, default ranes and
quobed prives for Smilar asets. Securiies that use mila vauation
technbques and inputs a5 desibed above are categonized & Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Fiwed mcome secuiies purdhated on 4 delaped-delivery batis or 5 a
repurchase commment in & sale-bayback transacion are marked to mad:et
daily unitil setdement at the forwand settlement diate and are calegonized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Morgage-retated and assel-backed sequrities are usualy issued a5 separate
wandches, of dasses, of secuniies within sach deal. These secunties ane also
reoemally valued by Fricng Sendces that use broker-dealer quotations,
feparted rades of waluation estimates from heir intema pridng models The
peicing madels for these seaurities usually consider trancheJeved atfributes,
qurrent market data, estmated cash flows and market-Dased vield spreads for
each anche, and ingorporate deal collsteral performance, a5 available
Mirtgage-related and assel-badoed seourines thatuse smils valuation
techinbques and inputs as described dbove are categonmed a5 Level 2 of the
fanr value hieranchy

Coremon stodes, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and finandal dervative
ingtruments, such a5 futures contracts, rights and wamants, of opions. an
futures that are raded on a national securities exchange, are stated at the
I3t reported sale of sefthernent price on the day of valuation To the exten
these seounites are actvely traded and valuation sdjusirents sre not applied,
theey are categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierandhy

Investmen ts valued (denominated) in qumendies other than the lunclional
ourrency of a Fund are converted to the functional oeTency wing exchange
ranes {ourmen oy $pod snd fonward rates) abitaned froem Pricing Serdces. As A
result, the WAV of 4 Fund's uniis may be affected by changes in the vialue of
currénces in relation o the fenctional carendy. The vabae of securibes traded
Infioreign markets or denominated in qumendes other than the functional
qurrency may be affected sgnificantly on a day that the Trustis not open for
buginess. Valuation adustments may be spplied 10 eriain senrities that ae
solely traded on a foreign exchanges 1o acoount for the market movemen(
between the dise of the foreign market and the WY 5E Close These securnities
are valued using Fricing Sendces that consider the correlation of e fracing
pattems of the foreign secunty to the infraday radng in Se U5 markets for
investments. Sequnities usng these valuation adustments are Categonized &
Lewel 2 of the tair value hieranchy. Preferred sedunbes and other equites
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traded on inactive markets or valued by reference to similar instruments are
also categorzed as Level 2 of the fair value hierardy

Evuiny-linked securites are valued by referencing the Last repormed sale or
seftlement price of the linked referended equity dn the day of valuaion
Foreign exchange adjustments are spplied to the last reported price 1o
convert the linked equity"s rading cumency to the conlract’s setting cumency
These imestments ane categotized a5 Level 2 of the far value heerardhy

Irvesiments in regisiered open-end mvesiment gpmpantes (oiher than ETF)
will b valued based upon the NAVS of such invesirmenits and ane cateoonzed
as Level 1 of the far value hierarchy Investments in unregistered open-end
imvestment companies will be calod ated based upon the NAVs of wich
ivestments and are considerad Level 1 provided that the MAVS are
obsenvable, caloulated daty and ane the value Jtwhich both purdhases and
sales will be conducted

Equity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandal denvalive
mamrusmenty, sich &% fonyand fersgn Currendy Conract and oplions conracs,
derive thesr vaue from underbang asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
other inputs o 3 coenbination of these facors, Thess conracts are normally
valued on the bases of quates abrsingd from a qualason repaorting Sysbm,
estabiithed market makers of Pidng Seraces (normally determined a3 of the
NYSE Clase). Depending on the product and the temms of the ransaction,
financal derivative insuments can be valued by Fridng Senices using a
series of bechiniques, induding simulation pridng modsls. The prcing models
use inguts that are atrserved from acively quoted markets sud &5 quoted
prices, Bsuer detals, indioes, badiask spreads, inmteredt rates, implied
walatilities, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. Finandal derivative
instruments that use similar valuason tedniques and inputs 25 desdibed
abiove are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy

Cenfrally deared swaps and owver the counter swaps derive their walue from
underlying assel prices, indices, refierence rates, and other nputs of a
combination of these factors. They are valued wing a broker-dealer bid
quotation of on matket-based prices pronded by Fricing Services (nomnally
determined as of the NYSE Close), Centrally deared swaps and over the
Courter Saaps oan e valued by Pricing Sendces using 8 senes of technogues,
induckng simutation pricng models. The pridng models may use inputs that
are obsineed l'-‘l'.ll'l'ldl]l'\ﬂ':hf quioted rmarkers sudn &5 the cverright index Svag
rate (TOIST), LIBOR forerard rate, mterest rates, vield cunvet and aedt
spreads. These sequrities are categovized as Leved 2 of the far value hierandy

Level 3 trading assets and bading lbilities, at fair value 'When a fair
valration method i apgiied by the Manage thal uses domficant
uncdservable inputs, invesoments will be priced by a method that

the Manager of perwons s78ng a1 their direction believe reflects fair value and
are ctegarized a5 Level % of the fair value hierarchy. The valuation
techniques and sigeficant inputs used in determining the fair values of
porifolic assets and Rabilites categonized as Leved 3 of the far vakie hierardy
ane a5 follows:

Procy pridang procedures set e base price of & fooed income seqinty and
subsaquently aust the price propartion dby 1o market value changes of a pre-
determined secunty desrmed o be comparable in duration, generally a LIS
Treasuny or soversign note based on country of issuance. The hase price may
be & broker-cealer quote, ransaciion price, of an internal valwe a5 derived by
analyas of markel dala. The bate price of the sxurily may be resst on 3
peericadic bass based on the availability of market data and procedures
approeed by the Valuation Commattes Significant dhanges in the
unokservabe inputs of te proxy pdng process (he base price) would result
in direct and propostional changes in the far value of the sequnity. These
securities are cabegorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierandhy

i third-party evaluated vendor pricing is not available or not desmed to be
indicative of fair valise, the Manager may ebed (o obtain Broker Cuotes
direcy from the broker-dealer or passed through from & thindparty ven dor
In the event that f2ir value i$ based upan a single sourced Broker Cuote,
these sequmities are calegonzed a5 Level 3 of the fair value hisrarchy. Brober
Cuates are typically received from established market parSapants. Although
independently recenved, the Manager does not have the transparency o view
the undething inputs which sepport the maket quotation Significant
changes in the Broker Cuote would have drect and propcetional deanges in
the fair value of the sequrity

Short-term debt instruments (sudh a5 commerdial paper) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, solong as the
amioetized cost value of sudh short-temm debtinstruments i approvimately th
saire & fhe fair vaue of the instrument a5 detemined without the wse o
amiortized cost valuation These securities ane categorized as Level 2 or Level

3 of the tar valwe hierardy depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

() Delayed-Delivery Tramsactions Certan Funds may purchase o sell
senurifies on 3 detayed-delivery basis, These transacmons imvobve 3
comimetment by @ Fund fo purchase or sell securities for a predetermined price
o yiekd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the qustomary
setement penod. When delayed-debvery ransactons are IZII.II.‘.-‘ui‘"jI'II;.

3 Furedwill designate of recee a5 colfateral Bigusd assets in an armount
sufickent Lo meet the purdhase price of respective obligations. When
purchasing a seasity on 4 delaved-delivery basis, 3 Fund assumes the ghts
and ks of ownersup of the seaunty, induding the Ak of prce and yield
fuctuations, and ties such flecuations inta aocount when detemmining i
MAV. A Fund may dispase of or renegotiate a del aped-delivery ransaction
after it is entered into, which may result in a regiized gain of loss. When

& Fund has sold a sequnity on a delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
partidpate in future gains and losses with respect to the sedurity

(b] Inflstion-Indexed Bomds Certain Funds mayinvest in inflation-indexed
bonds. inflation-indied bonds are fixed income securifies whose prindpal
valug 15 pediadically adusted by the rate of inflaton. The miened rae on
these bonds is generally fixed atissuance at a rate bower than typical bonds
Creer the life of an inflanon-indeoed bond, however, interest will be paid
based on 3 principal value, which is adusted for inflation. Ay increase o
decrease in the prindpal amount of an inflation-indeced bond wil b2 induded
5 interest income on the Statements of Operations, even though investors do
o Fedino their prnapal untd matunty. Repayment of te ongna bond
peindpal updn matuity (s adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the cate of
U5 TIPS, For bonds that do not provide 3 smilar quarantee, the adusted
prindpal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the ongina
peirdpal

{e} Leam Participations, Azsignments and Driginatieas Certaln Funih may
imeest in direct debt inmstruments which are interests in amounts cwed 10
lemders of lending Syndcaties by corporate, govemmental, of ofher bormowers
A Fund's investments in [oans may be in the form of partidpations in loans or
Fxsignments of 3l or a partion of eans froen thisd perties of imvestments in of
caiginanons of laans by the Furd. A losn is often admirestensd by 4 bank o
other Srand 8 mstitstion (he “lepder”) that acds a HEnL for all holders. The
agent adminessters the tarms of the ban, &5 spedhied in the loan agreement

& Funed may ireest in mulBple series or Tanches of 3 loan, which may have
vanying terms and camy different assodiated risks. When a Fund purchases
assignments from lenders it Joguines dredt fights sgainst the bomowers of the
laans. Thiede loans may ndude pariapations in brdge loars, which ane [ans
taken out by bomosvers for a short period (ypically less than one year)
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pendng amangement of more permaenent finandng through, for example, the
issuance of bomds, fregquently high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
ACUiE N,

The types of logns and related inwestments in which the Rands may irest
indude, among athers, senior [oans, subcrdnated loans (nduding second
fien boans, B-Motes and mezznine loans), whole loans, commiercial real
estate and other commerdal loans and structured Ioans. A Fund may
afgnate |oans of oquine dinect iIntenests in loans through primary boan
distributhons andror in private ransacions. In the case of subordinated boans,
there may be sgnifcant indebbedness ranking ahead of the bomowers
obdigation to the hodder of such 3 loan, indleding in Se event of the
Domower s insolvendy. Mezzanine loans & typicaly sequred by a pledge of
an equity Entersst in the mortgage borrower that owns the real estate rather
than an inberesl in 4 morgage

It in Boans may indude uwifunded loan commilrments, which ane
contractual obligations for funding Unfunded hoan commitments may indude
revohing credit fadlites, which may obdigate a Fund to supply additional cash
tos thie Bovrower on demand. Unfunded loan commitments represent 3 future
obligaton in full, seen ihough a percentage of Se comenitied Amount may
nat be utized by the bomower When ifvesting in a loan partigpation,

3 Fund has the Aght to receive payments of pincpal, interest and any fees o
which it is entifled anly from the bender calling the loan agreement and only
upen receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
recene 3 commitment fee based on the undrdwn portion of fie undelying
e o crecht podtion of 3 loan. I certasn cinuenstances, 3 Fund may recene &
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a ban by a bomower. Fees eamed or
paid e recorded as 3 component of interest income oF interest expense,
respectively, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are refiected a5 a liabiling on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

{d} Mertgnge-Related nnd (ther Amsel-Backed Securities Certin Funds
iy invest in mortgage-retated and other asset-backed searities that dinedly
or indirectly represent A partiopation in, or are secured by and payable frorn,
lesanis on real propenty. Morigage-related sequrities are aeated from poods of
residential or commendal morigage loans, incuding mortgage kuens made by
savings and loan instilutions, rmomgage bankers, commeraal banks snd
others. Thede wcurities provide 3 monthly payment which consasts of both
nterest and principal. intefesd ray be determinied by foed or sdustable rates
The rate of prepayments. an underying martgages will atfect the price and
volatlity of a mortgace-related seourity, and may have the effect of
shortening of extendng he etectve duraton of the Secunty relaive towhal
wears antapated ot the dme of puschase. The Gy payment of principal and
imierest of certain morlgage-rel ated seaarities is quaranteed with the hl faith
and gedt of the U S, Govemmend. Fools oeated and guaranteed by non-
govemnmental issuers, induding government-sponsored corporations, may be
supported by varows forms of ingurance of guarantess, but there can be no
A%urance that prvale inuaners of QUARANTGN can maet thist obligaticons under
the insuranoe polides of QUarantes arangements. Many of te rsks of
imeesting i morigage-related sequnties secured by commendial morgage
lpans reflect the effects of locd and other ecomomic conditions on real estate
rearicers, thie abwlity of tenants 1o make lease payments, and the absity of 3
property to atiract and retain tenants. These sequrities may be less liquid and
iy exhibel greater price volatlity than other bepes of mangage-related o
other asset-backed securities. Other asset-backed sequnties ane created from
many types of assels, induding, but not limited 1o, 3uto loedns, acounts
recedvable, such as aredt cand receleables and hospital acoount recefvables,
hirre equity loans, sudent koars, boat loaans, mobde home baans,
rereational vehicle loans, manufaciured housing loans, snraflt leases,
cofrputer |eates and syndicated bank loares. The Fund may irvest in any kel

of the capital stnuchere of an issuer of mortgage-backed oo asset-badied
sequnties, indudng the equity o “first|oss” ramche

(] Cellateralized Mertgage Obligatiens (" MC:") are deb cbliganoms of &
legal emiity that are callateralized by wihole martgage loans of pivate
mortgage bonds and divided info dasses. CMOs are siructured into multiple
diazses, often refemed to as “tranches”, with each dass bearing a different
stated masurity and entitled o 3 different schedide for payments of prindpal
and inderest, induding prepaymnents. C MOS Py be s liquid and may exdilat
aqreater price volatility than other types of morigage-related or asser-badeed
Learilied

(1 Stripped Martgage-Backed Secwrities |"50ES") are denvative mult-
(a3 mortgage sequities, SMES are uswally stuctured with twg dasses that
receive cifferent propoetions of te interest and princpal ESmbuons o &
pocl of mortgage assets. An SMES will have one dass thatwill recesve 3l of
Bhe i keredt (e inberestanly of 710" dass), white the other dass wall necene
the entire prindpal {the prindpa-only or "PO” dass), Payments received for
1025 are included in interest ingome on the Statements of Operations. Because
oo princpal will be recesved at the maturity of an 10, adustments are made
10 the cost of the security om 3 monthly bass untl mananty. Thes
adustments e induded in interest noome on the Statements of Operations.
Payments received for P05 are rested as reductions to the vost and par vake
of the ssamities

{g) Collsteralized Debt Obligations ("C00<") indude Collateralized Bond
Cidigations ("CBOs™), Collateralized Loan Cbligations (™CL0s™) and other
cirraladty structured securities. CBOS snd CLO ane types of astet-backed
securities. A CBO s a rust which is backed by 3 diversified pool of high rigk,
beliowr investrment grade fied income securities A CLO0S 8 st hypecaly
collateralized by a pool of loass, which may indude, among others, domestic
a0 Todengn sereor Secured loans, sermor unsedured loans, and subardinate
corparate loans, indudng hoans that may be rated below nvestment grade of
equivalentunrated kans. The risks of an investment in a CDO depend largely
e The type of the coll ateral seurities. and the dass of the (DO in which

a Fund irmeests. | addibion 1o the normal nsks asso0ated with fixed indome
sengifies dsoussed elsewhere in is repoet and the Funds’ Offering
Mernodandum (e.q., prepayment risk, aedit sk, Bgusdiny risk, marked risk,
structural fisk, legal risk and inberest rate risk fwhich may be exacerbated if
the witeiedt rate payable on & stiuctred Snandng dhanges based oh
multiples of changes in interesk rates or inversely 1o changes in interest
ratesfh, CBOs, CLOS, and other COOs camy additional risks indudng, butnot
lirmbed 16, (1) The podsabality that destibubons feonm collateral secunBes wall nol
Dot acdeeqquate 10 make inberestof other payrents, () te quality of the
collateral may dedine in value or defaulr, (i) the risk that a Fnd may imest
in CBCrs, CLOs, or ather CD0s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v)
the complex struchire of the sequrity may not be fully understood at the time
of investment and may produce despu tes with the issuer or unexpectesd
Imvesermen D nesudrs

{h} Payment In-Kind Secwities Certain Funds may imeest in paymentinind
sequrities (TPIKS™). PIES may give the issuer the option at each interest
payment date of making interest paymenis in éither cash andior additional
debt securities, Those additicnal debt, securigies usually have the spme term,
indluding rratuity dates and interect rates, and assodated fids 25 e
ceiginal bonds The daby market quatatsons of the ongnal bonds may indude
e docrussd inbenssd (referred o &5 2 "dirty price ™) and requice 3 paorata
adustment from the unrealized appredation or depredation on imvestments
ty interest receivatle on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{i} Restricted Secwrities Ceriain Funds may hotd investments that are
subyect 1o bega of coniractual resmchons an resale. Thete secunibes may be
Sobd provanely, but mury be required i De registined o exemphed from: such
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reqistration before being sobd o the public. Private placement securifies are
generally consdered o be restricted. Dvsposal of resiricied inves ments may
ifmvobve Gime-Consumng negatatons and expentes, and prompt sale at an
Acceplable price may be diHiculn to achieve. Restricned imastments held by
the Funds at May 31, 2020, as applcable, are disdosed in the Notes 1o
Lchedule of Invesiments

(i} Strwetured Motes Certan Funds may imest in structured notes and other
redated indruments, which ane privabely negotiated debit obligations in which
the prindpal and’ or interest ks detemnined by reference 1o the performance of
2 bendimark assel, mankel of interest rate (an "embedded index "), sudh &
selected securities, an ndex of sequnities or spedfied interest rates, or the
differential performance of e 55815 or markets, sudh a5 indexes reflecting
bands. Structured instruments may be isoed by corporations, induding
baariks, ot wedll as by governmental agences The terme of widh siructuned
insmements nommially provide that their prindipal andfor interest payments are
10 b kst upewanck o dowrmwands {ut ordinarily nat below 2end) (o
riflect changes in the ermbedded ndex whibs te Sructured instuments ane
oustanding. As a result, the interest andfod princpal payments. that may be
meadk on & sructured pooduct rdy vary widely, depending on a variety of
factors, induding the vol stility of She embedded index and the effect of
changss in the embedded index on principal andfor inferest payments

ki LS. Gavermment Agencies o1 Government-Spansared Enterprizes.
Certan Funds may imvest in securiies of U5 Govemment agentes or
govemiment-sponsored enterprises. U5, Government secunities are
obligations of and, in certain cates, guaranteed by, the LS Govemment, its
agendies of instamentalites. Some U5 Government seounities, such s
Trieasury bils, nabes and bonds, snd tecuritied quarantesd by te Govemirent
Hational Mortgage Assodation (TGHMA™ or "Ginnie Mas ™), are suppored
Ery the full Laith and credit of the U5 Govesnment; others, such as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
ot from the LS. Departrment of the Treasury (the "5 Treasury ™), snd
ofhers, such a3 thode of the Federal National Morlgage Astotiation (" FNMA™
or “Fannie Mae"), are wppoaed by the decretionany suthority of the 115
Gowemment to purchass the agendy’s obligations. U5 Govemmend secunities
My incude 2en0 coupon Seounities, which do not dstribute interest on a
qument basks and tend o b sulbject (o a greater risk. than interest-paying
securities of similar maturites.

Governireni-relabed quarantors (ue , not badded by the full Tach and credin of
the U5 Govemment) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortigage
Corporation (TFHIMC™ or " Freddie Mac™). FNMA is 2 government-spon sored
corporation. FMMA purchases comentional e, not insured or guaranteed by
amy government agency) reshdentid morgages from a listof spproved
sellenfeenaoers which incude state and fedirdly chamered saving and kaan
assodations, mutuad savings banks, commerndal banks and aedt unions and
martgage bankers Pass-throwgh securities sased by FNMA are quaranteed as
to timely payment of principal and interast by FNMA, but are not Backed by
the full faith and credit of the US. Goverament. FHLMC ksues P Qpaon
Certificates (" PCS™), whidh e pass-theough seourities, each representing an
undvided mreresr in a pool of residential morigages. FHLMC guarantess the
temely paymment of interest and ultimate collection of piindpal, but PCs are not
barckied by the full faith and credit of the LS. Govemment

I e 2009, under the Singls Sequrity initative, FMA and FHLMC started
issuing Uniform Mongage Badkoed Seopities (TUMES”) in place of their
aurent offerings of TEA-sligitle securles The Sngle Seasity initative seeks
b supepoet thee gver all liquidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactenstics of FRMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sequnity nitiative may have on e market for TEA and ather mortgage-
backed seouiies are undertan

Roll-timing strategies can be usedwhere 2 fund seeks o extend the
expiration or maturity of a position, such a5 & TEA sequrity on an undeiying
Fesel, by choding oul the potion bedore aquaration and opening a new
podaticen wath respect o subdtantally the Saime undedying asset with a |ater
expiration date TBA securities purchased ar sobd are reflected on the
Statements of Assels and Liskelites a5 an asset or ligkality, respechively

(1) When-lssued Tramzactions Cerlain Funds may purchase or sell securnitios
on 3 when-isswed basis. These ransactions are made condifionally because 3
seaunty, dthough authonzed, has notyer been fssued in the market
Trardactions 1o punchase or sell searities on 3 when fewed basis imaobve

A comimitment by & Fund to purchade or sell these seaurites for a
peedetemined price or vield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the customany settlement period. A Fund may sell when-Essued seourities
befiore they are delivered, which may result in arealized gain of loss

(m] Bank Obligations Eank cbligatons i which a Fend may mvest induce
cenificates of deposit, bankers” aoceptances, and fixed o deposis
Certificates of deposit are negotiable certificates iswed against funds
depasited in 3 commercial bank for a definite period of time and earming 2
spedfied return. Bankers' acceptances are negotizble drafis or bills of
exchange, nommally drawn by an importer or exporter 1 pay for spediic
mierchandiie, which are " atcepted” by a bank, meaning  eftect, that the
bank unconditbonally agrees to pay the face value of the imstrument on
maturity, Fed tirme deposits are bank obligaticn: payable at a stated
maturity date and beating inferest 21 a fimed rate. Fixed time deposits may be
withdraw on demand by the Imvestor, but may be sbjec 1o eary
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
remadining mateity of the cbitgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The following disdiosiures contain information on the Funds” abelity 1o lend of
borrony cash of seowities T the extent permitted under te Offering
Memnorandum, which may be viewed a5 bomowing or fnandng ransacSons
Ley the Funds. The locaton of these instruments is desaibed bedow, For 3
detabed desaiption of cedt and cunterparty risks that can be awodated
wilth bewrosings and ather finanding transscions, please see Mote 7,
Frindpal Risks

{a] Repurchase Agresments Certain Funds may engage in repurchate
aqreements. Under the terme of 2 typecal repurdhase agresment,

& Funed purchases an underhying debit obdigation {collateral) subject to an
obligation of the seller to repanchase, and a Fund to resell, the obitgation at
an agreed-upon pice and time. In an open matunty repunchase agreement,
there is no pre-detenmined repurdhate date and the agreement can be
terminated by e Fund or counberparty at any time The marked valpe of the
oollateral must be equal to or exceed the total amaount of she repurchase
obligations, induding interesi. Regurchase agreements, induding aorued
interest. are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabalities. nerest
eammed 1s redorded 25 a companent of interest income on the Statements of
Cperations, In penods of ingreased demand for colaterd, 3 Fund may pay a
fen for receipt of coflateral, wiich mdy resullt in mlerest expénse 1o the Rund

{b) Reverse Repurchnse Agresments Cerlain Funds may enter info reverie
repurchase agreements. In 3 reverse repurdhase agreement, 3 Fund delivers a
secufly in exchange loe cash 10 Tmanaal mettubon, the counterparty, with
A simultanecys agreemant 10 repunch.ase the same of substantialy the same
Lecrily at an agréeed upon price and date. In an apen Maturity remere
repurchase agreement, Bere is no pre-determined repurchase date and the
Sretrnenl Can be termi nabed by thvé: Fund oF COUNTRIDarTy AT 40y Dime

A Funed i% en 0tled bo receive prindpal and interest payments, if any, made on
e security delivenad 1o Bhe counterparty during the Leim of the soresment
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Cash received in exchange for senenities defivered plus acorued interest
MmNt o be made by & Fund 1o counterparties are refleded as a ligbfliy
on the Staterments of Assers and Liabdities interest payments made by a Fund
10 COUNTEMparties are recorded % & component of interest expense on the
Staternents of Operations. In periods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund may receive 3 fee for wse of the seourity by the counterparty, whidh
may result in interestincome toa Fund. A Fundwill seqgregate asseis
determined o be laguid by PIMCO of will ashenase cover its aligations
under reverse repundhate agresments

{e} Sale-Buybacha Certain Funds may enter inta finandmg transadions
referred to &5 "sale-buybacks’, A sale-buybadk finandng transaction consists
of asale of asecurity by & Fund 10 a finandal institution, the counterparty,
with a dmiltaneous agresment 1 repurdhzee the same of substantially the
Sarme Secunity at an agresd-upon price and date A Fund is not entided 1o
receive pindpal and interest payments, if avy, made on he security sdd to
the counterpar ty during the tenm of the agreerment. The agréed-upan
proceeds for securitees 1o b repuschased by @ Fund are reflected a5 a liability
on the Stabements of Assers and LabiliGes. A Pund will recognize net income
represented by the price differential bedween the price receied for the
traerefir ed sty and the sgieed- upan repufchate pice This is cormonly
refermed to & the "price drop” A price drop consists of () the foregone interest
and il ationaey income adustments, if any, 3 Fend would have othensise
reqetved had the sequrity nof been sobd and (i) the negetiated finandng terms
betarien 4 Fund and counteparty. Foregone interest and inflations ny o
adustments, if any, are recorded a5 components of interest nodme on the
Statements of Operations. Inferest payments based upon negotiated financing
terrns made by a Fund to counterparties are recorded as a component of
interest expense on the Satements of Operations. In periods of inmeased
dernand for (e wsonity, & Fund may receive 3 fe for ute of the secunty by
thit counterpaty, which mdy resull in mnterestincome 0§ Fund A Fund will
seqregale ssdels determined b be liqusd by FIMCO of will otherwise cower its
obfigations under sale-buybad: ransactions

{d} Shert Sabes Certain Funck may enter intd short sales transactions, Shart
calet e ransactons in whidh the Fund sells Secunty that it may not own

A Fund rmay make short sales of secumbes to () offset posential dediines in
long posiBons in sirmdar seoumies, (i) b imdedse the feblity of the Fund,
(i) fior imvestmen & retumn, (v as part of a sk arbitrage strateqy, and () a5
part of its overall portfioko management steategies imvahving e use of
derivative insiruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
[hie secunty soid short and delnver it o the counterparty. The Rand will
ordnanly have to pay a fee or premium 1o bomow 3 security and be obligated
Lo repny e lender of the Security amy dvidend or intenedt thatl aodues on the
securify duning the period of the boan Seamities soldin thort sale Farsactions
and the dividend or interest pavable on such seourities, if amy, are refecied as
payabie for shodt sales on the Statements of Assets and Liabifities. Shom sabes
expose the Fund o the risk that itwill be required to cover its short positon
2t a time when the security o other assal has apprediated in value, ths
resulting in losses to the Fund, A shoet sale is " against the bow” if

the Fend hiolds in its portfolio of has the right 1o acquire e sequrity scéd
shoet, or securifies identical to the sequrity sold short, at no additional st

A Fuind will b sibject 1o sddbonal nsks 10 the extent tat it engages v shart
sales that are not "against the b ® A Funds boss on a short sale could
theceeticalty be uriimited in cases whena the Fund is unable, for whatever
reasan, to dose ouf its short position

6. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thee followang disdosures contan information an how and why the Funds use
finandd derivative instnements and how finandal derivative instuments
affect the Funds” finandal position, results of operatons and cash flows The

location and far value amounts of these instruments on the Stalements of
Assets and Liabdites and the net realized Qan (o5 and net dhange in
umrealized apgredation (depredation) an the Statements of Cperations, sach
categarized by type of finandal derivatve contract and related fisk exposure,
are induded in a table in the Motes to Schedule of Investments. The finandal
denivative mstuments outstanding as of period end and the amounts of net
redized gain doss) and net change in unrealized sppredation (deprediation]
on finandal demvative instruments during the perind, & dedosed in the
Motes 1o Schedule of imvestments, serve a8 indicators of the valurne of
financial derivative activity for the Funds

{a} Ferward Fereign Corrency Comtracts Cerfain Funds may engage in
fonwand foreion Cumency conirads in connection with settling planmed
pairchases of sabes of sequrites, b0 hedge the aumency exposure sssodated
wath some of 3l of 3 Fund's seauntes of a3 pa of &1 imestment sratsgy. A
forward foreign cumency contrad is an agreement bebwesn two parties to buy
and sl 3 currency at a $e1peice on a future date. The market value of a
fonwand foreign cumency contract Suctuates with dhanges in foreign cummency
exchange rates. Forward foreign ouimency coniracs are marked 1o market
daily, and the change in value is recorded by & Fend 25 an unrealized gain oo
lorss. Realized gaind of lodees aé equal 1o e dithr ende bebaneen the valoe of
the contract af the time it was opened and the value at the dme it was dosed
and are recorded upon delivery of receipt of the curvency. These confracts
may invoive market fisk in exgess of the unreglized gain or loss reflected on
e Statements of Asets and Uabdties. i addiion, a Fund could be exposed
fo itk i the counterparties are unable to meet the temns of the contracts of if
the vatue of the qurrency changes unfaworabdy to the functional cumency. To
mitigate such risk, cash or seqxities may be éxchanged as collaterdl pursant
1o the tems of the uderying contracts

Certan Fundk, having a hedged Class, may 3o enler nto fonsard foreagn
currency contracts desigred to affset the effect of hedging an the Fund bevd in
ceder o leave the hedged Class with an exposure to dsmendes other than the
functional asrency. There can be no quarantes that these Class spedafic
forwand foreign cumency contrads will be successiul

{b) Futares Comtracks Ceriain Funcs may enter ino fulures confracts &
futures conract is & agreement o buy of sedl & seouniny o other asset for 3
et price on A future date and i traded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fulufies CORrACT Bo fruan e ite axpodure 10 the Sedumtes markets of to
morvements in inferestrates and qurmency values. The primany risks assodated
with e yse of fulres contracts ane the imperfect correlation between the
change in maxkel value of the securines bedd by 2 Fund and the priges of
futures comracts and the |:l.'l55'[5|l'.:|' of &0 illquid mankel. Fulures conlradas
are valued based upon their quated daly setlement prices, Upon entering
into a fulwres confract, 8 fund is required to deposit with its fstures broker an
amicunt of cazh, US Government and Agency Obligations, of sdect sovereign
debt, in accordance wath the inifial margin requisements of the broker o
achiange. Futunes confracts ane marced 1o market dady and based on such
mvements in the price of the conbracs, an approphiate payable of recevable
for the change in value may be poted or collected by the Fund (7 Futuret
Variation Margin™), Futues Yariation Margins, if amy, are disdosed within
cienrally deared firanaal demvative instruments on the Statements of Astets
i Liabili Bes. Gains or bosses are recognized but not considered relized until
e coniracts ogire of dote. Fulunes CONacts imeodve, 1o vaneng degrees,
risk of loss in excess of the Futures Vanation Margin nduded within
exchange traded or centrally deared finandal dervative instruments on the
Statements of Assets and Liakeliges

(] Dptions Contrmets Cirtaim Funds mdy wite of punthade cpbiont 1o
efhance rebams of 10 hedde an easting posaton o future irvestment. Certain
Funds may write call and put options on securities and finandal derivative
instnuments they oam of in which they may invest Writing put options tends
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toindrease a Funid's exposure 1o the underying instrument. Writing calf
Opons tends o dedredse & Fund s expodure 1o thie shderddng Insument
When a Rendwrites a call of put, an amount egqual o the premium fecened is
recorded and subsequently marked 1o marke? o reflect te anment value of
the option written. These amaunts are induded on the Statermnents of Assets
and Lizbiktes Premiums received from wriling options which expire are
treated &5 reafized gains Fremiyms received from wiiting options which are
exercised or dosed ane added b the prodeeds o offset agaimt smounts ped
on the underhying hutures, svap, Securily OF currency ransaction Lo determine
the realized gaen or loss. Certain options may e wiitien with premiums fo be
determined on a future date. The premiums for Shese opBons are based upon
impdied volatility parameters & specified tenms. A Fund as 3writer of an
option has ro contnil over whether the undelyng instament may be sod
("3l ") or purdhased ("put ™) and as a result bears the marketosk of an
untavarable dhange n the price of the instrument underhing Se written
option There is the risk 2 Fund may not b= abde to enterinto a desing
transaction because of #n iliquid market

Certan Funds i aluo purchase put and call options P'Llrﬂ'iﬂf-fll; cal options
tends to increase 3 Fund's spodure 1o the underhying instrument. Punchasing
put optiond bends 1o decreate & Fund s expodune 10 the underdyng indmment
A Fund pays apremiumwhich is induded a5 an asset on the Satements of
Assets and Lisbities and subsequenty marked to market to refledt the
curent vaiue of the option. Premiums paid for purdhasing options whidh
expire ae reated ot realized loses. Certain optaons iy b punchasesd wath
premiums to be deterrined on a future date. The premiums Tor these options
are based upon implied wlatlity parameters at spedified tems. The risk
assodated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the premium
paid. Fremiums paid for purchasing options which are exerdsed of dosed are
acidied to the amoums pad of offser sgainst e procesds on the underdying
imvEstment ransacion 1 determing fe realized Gain o |ass when the
underhing ransaction is executed

Credit Delault Swaptions Certan Funds may wite o purchace gedt default
swapsons to hedge exposure to the gredit risk of an investment without
rzking a comeritment to the undelying insument. A aredt default swvaption
5 an oplice 10 sl or buy credit protedion 1o 4 speahic reterence by entering
it a pre-Gafined svap agreement by some tpecfied date in the future

Inflation-Capped Dptienz Cerlain Fundt oy wite of pur chace inflstes-
capped oplions to enhance refurns o for hedging opportunites. The purpose
of purchgsang infl ation-Capped options & 1o protect 3 Fund from eifiation
enosion abive 3 0HMMN rate oh 4 ghven ROBoNal expotune. A Boor can be
s [0 give downside proTeCTon 1o investmients in inflation-in ked products

Interest Rate-Capped Optioms Cerin Funds syt it of puichiase innees
rate-Capped oplions o enhance retums o for hedgng cpportunities. The
purpose of purchasing interest rate-capped opdons is 1o protect a fund from
floatng rae risk above & cerain rate on & given notional exposure. A floor
can be used to give downside profection 10 investments in interest rate linked
prodincts

Interext Rate Swaptions Cortan Funds may weite of purchase interest rate
swapions which are opSons to enter into a pre-defined swap agresment or
to shomen, extend, canoel or othenwise modify an existing swap agresment,
bey some specfied date in the future. Thewriter of the swaption becomes the
counberparty 1o the svap i the buyer exerdses. The interest rate svaption
agreement will spedfy whether the buyer of the avaption will be 3 fieedrate
recever of 3 Boed-rate payer Upon exergse

Optiens om Exchange-Traded Futures Comtracts Certain Funds may wite of
purchase options on exdhangeraded futures coniracts {Futures Opion ™) o
hedge an exising pesition or funure invesiment, for speulative purposes of to

manage expasine bo market movements. A Futures Opdion is an option
coniract in which the underying instument is & single fueies conbrac

Optioms om Securifies Certan Funds may wiile of purchase opions on
Lecunilies o enhance refums of bo hiedde an exsing position of fulure
Investment, An option on 3 security uses a spedified sequity 35 the underlying
Instrument for the option contract

{d] Swap Agreements Certan Funds may imvest in swap ageements. Swap
Jgeements are bilaterally negotated agreements between a Fund and &
countenpanty 1o exhanae of aaap imcectment cach flows, et foneign
currencies of marketdinked retums at spedfied, future ntervals. Swap
agresments may be povately negatiated in the OTC market o may be deared
through 3 thind party, known 35 2 central counterparty of derivatives dearing
oeganazation ("centrally deared swaps™) A Fund may enter into as5et, aedt
default, coss-aamency, interestrate, wial reum, vanane and other foms of
UMAD BONEEMENTS D0 Irn S0 (18 epotine 10 credit, QUrmemdy, intenesl rate,
commodity, equity andinflation risk In connection with tese agresments,
seqxities or cash may be |dentified a5 oollateral or mangin in aooordance with
the terms of the respective swap agreements to provide assets of value and
s in the event of defaultor bark Tup iy insolvency

Centratly cleared Swapd e marked 1o mankel daly based upon walustions a5
determined from the underying contract or in accrdance with the
requirements of the central countenparty of derivatives dearing organization
Changes in maket value, if any, are reflected a3 2 component of net change
inurrealized appredation (deprediation) on the Statements of Operations
Dualy changes i valuaton of centrally dearsd Seeaps (T 5wap Variason
Margin™), it any. are disdosedwithin centrally deared financial derivative
instruments on the Statements of Assels and Liabdites OTC twap payments
received or paid at the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Uatdines and Fepresent premiuns pad o
received LpOn Entenng into Be swap aresment 10 compensate for
diflerénces benwsén the stated térme of the Swap agreement and prevailing
marked conditions (Tedt spreads, curmency exchange rates, inberest rates, and
other relevant factars). Uptront premiums recerved {pand) are mibaly regonded
&5 liakalities (ascats) and subsequently marked fo market to refect the aament
value of the swap. These upfront premiums are reconded as realized gains of
lersges an the Statements of Operations upon bermination of maturity of the
Swap. Aligudation payment recerved of made at the termenation of the Ywap
5 recorded as realized gain or loss on the Statements of Operations. Met
pefiodc payments receved of pad by a Fund are induded as part of realized
gaing of lasses on e Staterments of Operabons

For purpeses of apphing certain of a Fund's irvestment palices and
FESTRCBONS, Swap & greaments, like other derivative insrumments, My be
valued by 3 Fund at marke? value, notiona value or full expodure value in the
case of 3 oredt default swap, in applying certain of the Fund's investment
poticpes and resancmons, the Randwill value the credin default Svap At i
neofional value or its full exposure vaue (e, the sum of te notional amount
for the contract plus the market value), but rmay value the aedin defaull svap
at masket vaue for purposes of apphing certain of the Fund’s cther
investment pobdes and resrictions. For example, the Fund may walue gedit
default swaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Fend's aedit qualiy
guicknes §F any) because wdh value in general better reflects the Fund's
actual econamec expodure during e termn of the credit default svap
Sipesmenl As a result, & Fund may, at tirmes, hiave noticn 3 expodune 10 an
asget dass (before neting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restiction noted in the Fund’s Offering Memarandum, In this aontea, both
the notional amount and the market value may be positive or negative
depending on whether the Fund is selling or buyéng protection through @e
aredit default swap The manner in which cerlain saamities of other
instnuments are valued by the Fund for purposes of apphying invesiment
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polides and restrictions may differ from the manner in which thess

i tments are vahsed by other types of investors. Entening inio swap
Agresmenly invahves, tovaning degress, elements of interest, dredit, markes
and documentanon nd in ecets of fie AmoUnLs redognized on he
Staternents of Assels and Liakilities Swch risks invohe the possibility that
there will be no ligued market for these agreements, that the counterpariy to
the agreements may cefault on its obligation to perform or disagree as to the
- 1E ] of comractaal terms in the agresrments snd thal tere may be
untavarable changes in interest rates of the vaues of the asset upon whidh
the avap is based

A Fund's masimum risk of loss from counterparty aredit sk is the discounted
netvalue of the cash flows 10/ b received from the Counterpany over the
contract’s remaining ife, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
e rriGgated by having a master nerting srangement betwedn 4 Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral to a Fund 1o cover & Fund's
expiure 1o the colmberparty

To the extent a Fund has a paicy 1o limit the net amount owed to or to be
recewved from 3 single counterpanty under existing swap agresments, sudh
famitation only applies to counterparties to OTC swaps and does not apply o
centrally desred swaps where the counterparty i a central conberparty of
derrva trvet. o earing ofgani Zabon

Credit Delault Swap Agreements Corlan Funds may enler mio

it Gefaull swaps of cofpedate, koan, doeerengn, LS. munkdpd of US
Treasury issues to provide 3 measure of protection against defaults of te
issuers (e, 10 redsoe risk where 3 Fund ownis o has exposure to the
referenced obligation) or to take an active long or short position with respect
oy the fikelibood of 4 partioular isseer's defaut, Credit default swap
agpesments invohve one party making a strearn of payrnents frefered to as
the buyer of profection) o another paty (the seller of protection) in exchange
far the nght Lo recéive a spedfied retum in the evenlt thal the referenced
entity, obligation or index, & spedied in the wvap agreement, undergoes a
certain credht event. AS 3 seller of profection on aedt default swap
agreements, 3 Fund will generally receive from the buyer of protection 4 fixed
rate of incomse throwghout the temm of the wwap piovided that there i< na
oedt event. As the sefer, 3 Fundwould effectively add leverage toits
poartfolio because, in addifion toits tolal net astets, the Rend would be
subject b investment eposure on the noliond amount of the swap

If a Fundis a seller of protection and 3 gedt event ooours, 35 defined under
thie terrre of that pariosar swap ageement, 3 Fund will either §) pay (o the
Buryer of protection an amount equal o the notonal amount of the wvap and
take celivery of the referenced obdigation, ofher deliverable obligations or
underhing securities compaising the referenced index or i) pay a net
settlement amount in the form of cashor securities equal to the notional
amount af the vaap less the recovery vialue of the referenced obligation of
uniderbying sequrities compiang the refirenced index I a Fund is a buyer of
protection and a dredit event oocurs, 35 defined under the terms of thal
particular swap agreement, a Fund will either i) receive from the seller of
profection an amount equa to the nofional amount of the swap and deliver
the rederenced cbligation, other defiverable obligations or undetying
secyrities compiisng the referenced index or i) recéive 4 nel seldement
amountin the form of cash or sequnties equal to the notional amouwnt of the
swap bess the recovery walue of the referenced obligation of underlying
sequrities cornpeising the referenced inde Recovery valies e esimated by
kel makers considenng either industry standand recovery rates of entity
spedfic fa0iors and considerations unil a gedit event ooowrs. If 3 gedt event
has ocumed, the reowery valis |5 defenmined by a fadlitated aucton
whereby a minemam number of aliowatle broker bids, together with a
spedied valiation method, are used to caloalate the setfement value. The
ability 10 deliver ottver obligations may result in & dheapesi-to-geliver opiion

(the Baryer of protection”s right to dhoose the delverable obligation with the
Icwest value Tollowing aaedt event

Creadr cefaudt s a0 sgreements o dredil ndices involve one party makng a
stream of payments to another paaty in eochange for the nght o redenve 4
speified return in the event of a write-down, prindpal shortfall, interest
shortiall oo default of all or part of the referenced enBlies comprising the
aredlit index. & creditindex is 3 basket of qedt insiruments or exposures
cesignid to be representaiive of some part of the medit market a5 a whole
These indices are msde up of reference aedis that are udged by a pal of
dealers 1o be the most liquid entites in the aedt defaull swap market bated
on the sector of the index Components of the indices may indude, but are
nod limited 10, investment grade securities, high yeld secqunties, asset-badked
sequrties, emenging markets, andior various aredit ratings within eadh sector
Credit indeoes are traded using o edil default Swvaps with standandized terrre
induding a fxed spread and standard maturity dates. An index redht defauit
twap references Al the names in the index, and if there 15 3 default, the dedin
event is settled based on that name’s weight in the indsx The composition of
thee indices changes perodically, ussally every six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weightin the index A Fund may wse cedi
et swaps on credt mdoed 1o hedge a portfolio of credt defwilt swvaps of
bords, which is less expensive than it would be to buy many credit default
swaps 1o achieve a smilar effect Credin default swaps on indces are
instnuments for prokecting investors owning bonds against default, and
fracers use them o speulate on changes in aedi quslity

Implied credt spreads, represented in sbaalute temr, utilized in If-é[l:fl'r'L!'L'l'l-:_T
e market value of qedt default swap agreements on corporate, [oan,
coveneign, U S, municpal or U S, Treasury issues & of period end. if any, are
disdosed i the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They senve a5 an indcator
of the aument status of pamentiperfonmance risk and represent the loelihood
of ridk of dedault for the referenced entity. The implied credit spread of a

par il referenced entity reflects the cost of buying/selling protecBion and
may indude uplront payments required t be made o enler into te
Jgeament. Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the referenced
enlity’s aredit soundness and & greater likelihood of itk of default or ather
arechit event aoouming a5 defined under the terms of e agresment. For gedit
detault Sardp MOPEETRALS 0N 25581 badked Secuntes and oredl indiced, the
quoted market prices and resulting values sene a5 the indicator of the current
status of the paymentiperformande risk. inoredsing market valiees, in absolute
fenms when compared to the nofional amount of the swap, represent a
diteriorateon of the referenced entitys aedt soundness and 3 greater
likelihood or sk of defaidt or other aredit swen? aocurring a4 defined under
e berms of the agreement

The maximum patenfial amount of future payments (undscounted) tat

a Fund a5 a seller of protection could be required to make under 3 edit
default swap agreement equals e notional amount of the agreement
Moticna amounts of each indvidual credt defaull wap sgesment
outstandng as of penod end for which a Fund is the seller of protecion ae
disclosed in the Mates 10 Schedube of Investments. These potential amounts
wiould be partialy offset by any recovery vafues of the respective referenced
obligations, upfront payments receved upon enteing into he agreement, o
et smounts regeived from the setiement of buy protection aedt default
Lwap agreements entered into by a Fund far the same referenced entity of
enlities

Interest Rate Swap Agreements Certzin Funds are subject fo inferest rate
sk exposure in the nomal course of pursuing their investment objectives
The value of the $aed rate bomds that 3 Fund halds may decréae if imtefest
raties nise. Tohelp hedge against this sk and o maintain it ability o
generale intome 31 prewaling market rates, 3 Fend may enter inko interes
Tate avap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exhangs
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by & Furd with another party for Sheir respective commitment to pay o
reeive intenest on the natonal amount of princpsl. Certsin fonms of inbenest
rate avap agreements may ndude: ) interest rate caps, under which, m
PN 10F 3 Premium, one paty sgnees 1o make payiments 1o Se ofher Lo e
extent that inberest rates excesd 3 specifed rate, or "cap”, (i) inlerest rate
flooes, under which, in rebam for 3 premium, one party agrees to make
payments b the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
pate, of "Hoor”, (i) interest rate colars, under which & padty sells & cap and
purnchases 3 Boor o vice versa in An aftempl b protect itself against interest
rate movements exceeding given minimumm of macimum bevels, () callable
interest rate swaps, under wiach the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consigderation for the right to eary terminate the svap ransaction in whok,
AN pirg ookt and A1 a predetenmined date and time paoe 0o the maneity date,
{v) spreadodes, whidh allow e interest rate Svap users olok in e
fanwiand differantial {or spread) between the intenest rabe swap rate and &
spedited benchmark, or () basis swaps, under which o parties can
exnchange wariatie interest rates based on different segments. of money
markets

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

I thye mcemial course of business, e Funds (or Acquired Fund(s), if
appicatle) rade finandial nstruments and enter into finandal ransactions
wihere ik of potential loss exsts due to wch things a5 changes in the market
{market risk) or failure or inakality of the other party o a ransaction to
perform (redt and counterparty rick). See below for a detailed desaniptaon of
selet pringipal risks

Fiind of Famds To the extent that certain Funds invest substanSially all of their
rESpRCive ARseRs in Acquired Fund(s), the ks dssodiated with IVESLNG N
thece Funds will be dosely related to the risks assodated with the securities
and other irvestments beld by the Acquired Fund(s) The atality of the Funds
1o achieve their respective imestment objectives may depend upon the ahility
of the Acquired Fundis) fo achieve ther respeciive investment objeciives
There can be o assuramos that thie Festment objecve of any Aoquired
Fuirsdie) wall e sckmeved. The NAV of an Acquining Fund will flecneate in
resporge o changes in the respective NAY of the Acquired Fund(s) in which it
imvests

In the noemal course of business, Acquined Fund(s) irade Sinandal insruments
and enter it finandal rarsactions where sk of potEntM 058 edsts due
changes i the market drarket k), of failure or inabilty of th other party b
A transacton o perform (redil and countemparty ndk)

Markat Rk A Fund's investments in Snancal derivative instuments and
other finandal mstuments exguse the Fund bo vanious ks such as, but not
femited to, interest rate, faresgn (von-LIS ) qamency, equity and commudicy
risks

Interest rabe rek is the ridk that fixed mcome secunties and other inStruments
et by & Funid may dedme in value because of an increase in intenest rates. If
naominal intérest rabes rise, the value of certain foed income securities hald by
3 Fund would likety degesse. A momingl interest rate @an be desaibed as the
sum of a real interest rate and an expected infation rate Interect rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money if
Ihece chamges are Aot antdpated by Fund mansgsment A Fund may not be
able so hedge against changes in interest rates or may chocse not to do so for
oost of other reasons. in sddition, amy hedges may not work as intended

Duration is & measure psed to determine the Senfnaty ol a SECURIRYS prce 1o
changes in interest rates that Incorporates 3 seourity's yiedd, coupon, fingl
ratumty and cill featanes, among olfier charscensios. Comexity is an
addsonal measure psed W underitand a secunty’s or Fund's interest rase
sensitivity that meatures the rate of dhange of duralion in fesponse to
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changes in interest rates, Fed income securities with longer dirations tend
0 be e Sersitig 1o changes in intefest rates, usually making them mone
vl atile than seqritied with shorter durations. A wide vanety of facors ¢an
Caure Infenest rabes of yields of LS. Treduury Seountes (o welds of ather
fypes of bonds) o ree (e g, central bank monetary policies, inflation rates,
general economic conditions, etc). This is espedatly tnse under curent
condBons because interest rates and bond yiekds are near histonicaily low
Iiviels. This, the Funds currently face & heighitened level of risk assodated
wath rsng interest rates andior bond yields This could be driven by a vanaty
of factors, induding but not Bmited to central bank monetary palides,
dhangnginfason or real groweth rates, general economic conditions,
inreasing bond i ssuances of reduced market demand for low weldng
Imvesermenits. Further, while US. bond markets have steaddy grown over (e
past thres decades, dealer “market making™ ability has remained relativdy
stagnant Given the importance of intermediany “market making” in Geating
a robust and active market, feoed income securites are qumently

facing ineased volatility and liquidity riges. Al of tese factoes, oollectvely
andior indvidually, oould cause a Fund 10 lose value: i the Fund lost enough
value, 1he Fund could face indreased Unithol der redempions, which could
further impair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely atfected
wihen a large Unitholder pundhases of redesms. large amounts of unite, which
an ooour 3t any ime and may impact e Fund in the same manner a5 a high
volume of redempition reguests. Large Lnitholder ransacons may iImpadt
the Fund's liquidity and net aseet valoe Such ransactions may also mcnedse
e Fund s ransactaon costs o othenaise cause the Fund o perfarm
differently than intended. Moreover, the Fund is subject 1o the ndk Sat
ather Unitholders may make imvesment dedisions based on the choices of 3
large Unitholder

A Fund ray have Sigrificanl eposire [0 iswers in e United Kingdom. The
Linited kingdom™s deciaon b0 beave the Eurapean Unicn gy irnpeact Fund
returns. This dedision may cawse substantal volatility in foreign exchange
markets, fead boweakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, result in
a susstained period of marker Lsncertanty, and destabdize some o ol of the
other Buropean Lnkon member couniries andior the Eurozons

Fareign (mon-U1 5 ) securitess in this report ane dasatied by the country of
incorporation of a holdng. (n certan instandes, & wearity's countny of
incorporation may be different from its country of ecomomic exposure

i a Fund imvests drectly in foreign (non-U 5 ) aerendies. or in secunities that
track in, and receive revenues in, foreign (ion-Ui S ) oamendes, of in finandial
dimvainae instruments that proside expadure 1o Tamegn (nof=UL5 ) demenaes,
10 wetil b subijiect 00 She ik that thode curmencies will dedine in valee relathe
to the base currency of the Fend, or, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's base cumency will dizcline in value relative to the cumency being
hedged Cumency rates in foreign auntries may fluctuate ggnificantly over
<hort periods of ome for & number of regsons, indudng dhanges in interest
fates, intervention (or the talure 10 intervens) by U5 or foregn governments,
central band:s or supranational enfities such a5 the international Mionetary
Fund, or bey the imposition of Qurendy conrods or other poditical develcpaments
in the United $iates or abroad As a result, a Fund's Bvestments in foreign
cumenCy-denorminated seounBes gy reduce the Fund's returns.

Thie market valbies of equities, such a5 coremon $ieds and |:l".'-‘l?l fed Secunities
o equaty refated invesiments sudh as futures and options, have Fstoncally
frsen and fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due (o generd maroet
condtions which are not spedfically refated to a parodar company, such as
real or peroetved adverse economic conditions, dhanges in the general
cutlock for cofporate eamings, changes in mbréesl of cummendy fabés, pulblic
hvealth ermergencies, sudh & te spread of infectious lness or dsease, of
adverse investor sentiment generally. They may Ao dedine due to factore
wihich affect a particular industry of industries, such a5 labor shortages or
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increased producticn costs and competithve conditions within zn industry
Diffierent types. of equity seqmities may neadt differendy to these
developrnents Eqquily seaxities and equity related immstments generally have
greater market prioe voladlity than foed Income ssamities

The Funds may invest in certain instruments that rely in some fashion wpan
LIBOR . LIBOR is an average interest rate, datermined by the [CE Banchmark
Administration, that banks charge one ancaber for the wie of shor-ferm
ey The Lirsled Kingdorn's Financdal Conduct Authony, whad regulates
LIBOR, has anmeunced plans to phase out the use of LIBOR by the end of
2021. The wanston may resullin a reduction in the value of certan
instraments held by the Funds or & reduction in the effeciveness of refated
Fund transactions such as hedges. There remains uncertainty regarding futune
unlization of LIBOR and the natere of sy replacement rate (e.q., ®e Sequred
Crvernight Rnandng Rate, which 5 intended to replace LS. dostar LIBOR and
measines the oost of ovemnight bomowings throegh repurchase agreement
transactions collaterabzed with LS. Treaswry secunties), and any patental
effects of the ransition away from LIBOR on the Funds or on certain
Invsbrusmens an wihich the Funds imest ang not known and aould result in
lasses 1o the Funds

Beginding in January 2020, gobal finandal markets have expetienced and
ey continue bo experience sgnificant voladlity resulfing from the spread of 5
noved cononavinis known as COVID-19. The cutbreak of COVID-19 has
resulied in ravel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply dhain
disiuptions, Tower condwmes dermdand and general markel uncertainty. The
global econairy, te econeemes of certyin natons and indrvideal Bsiers hive
been and many continue B0 be adversely atkected by COVID-19, partiailady in
light of the interconnectivity between economies and Snanda markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds' performance, in addition, COVID-19
and governmenta responses o COVID-19 may negatively imgact the
capakulites of the Funds” serioe prodders snd daupt the Funds” operations

Credit and Counterparty Riska A Fund will be expoted tocredit risk 1o
parties with whom it rades and will also bear the ik of setement default
A Fund minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertaking ransactions
with a large number of Qestomers and counterparties on recognized and
reputsble exchanges, where applicable. OTC defvative transactions. are
subject to the sk that a counterpanty bo the transaction wall not fulfil its
contraciual abligations 1o the ather party, 8 many of the protechons affonded
to cendrally deared derivative transactions might not be available for OTC
derivative Bransactions. For dervatives raded on an exchange o thiough a
ceniral countenparty, redif ek pedices wath the creditw orthiness of

thie Fipnl s deaning Droker, of the dearnghouse itseld, rather than to 8
counterparty in an OTC derivative ransadion. Thanges in regulation relating
to & Fund's use of derivatives and related ins nsments could potentially Bmit
or impact the Fund's bility bo invest in derivatives, limit the Fund’s abikty fo
employ certain strategies that wse derivatives andfor adversely affect the value
of performance of dervativis and the Fund. A Fend could lo%e maney if the
fssuer of guaranics of 3 ficed income security, of the Counterpany i &
finandal derivatve insinements coniradl, repurdhase agresmentor 3 loan of
portfolio securifies, is unable or wwilling te make fmely pindpal andior
MIERest payimenis, oF 1o othenwise honof it obfgations. Sedinies &nd
finanda derivative instnaments are sulject fo vargng degrees of gedirisk,
which may be reflected in credit ratings

Samilar b credin risk, & Fund may be exposed to counberparty risk, of the sk
that an institution or other entity with which 3 Fund has urgettied or open
transacicns will default. PIMCO, a5 the Manager, minimizes counterpay
ks bo the Funds through a nurnber of wanyd. Priod B0 entefing int
transactions with 4 new counteparty, e PIMCO Contenparty Risk
Commuttes conducts an axtensive dedit reviaw of sudh counterparty and must
approse thee use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant o the temms of

the underhing contract, bo the extent that unpaid amounts cwed to 3 Fund
exceed 3 predetermined threshold, sudh counterparty shall advance colatera
e a Fund in the form of cash of securifes equal in value to the npaid
araouint cwivéd to & Fund. A Fund may ifmvest Sudh collateral in secunties of
other instruments and will typically pay interest 1o the countengarty on He
oollateral received.  the unpaid amownt owed o 3 Find subsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be reguired 1o return to the Ccounterparty all o a
portion of e collateral previously scdvanced. PIMCO'S attemps b minimize
counbenparty sk may, hiowewer, be untudoesshul

All ransachions in [sbed sequnties are setdedipaid for upon delivery using
appeoved counderparties. The nisk of default s considered minimal, a5 delivery
of securiies sold is only made ance a Fund has received payment. Paymment is
made on 3 purchase once e securities have been delivened by the
counterpanty. The trace will fail if either parsy fails to meet its obligation

Market Disruption Riak The Funds are sulbject winvesment and operational
neskes associated with finandal, economic and other ghobal market
developments &nd disnprions, induding those arising from war, fmonism,
miarket manipils tion, govemment intenventions, detaults and shutdowrs,
political dhanges of diplomatic developments, public health emergendes
(such as e speead of infecticus diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalfemdronmental disasters, which can all negatively impact the seaurities
markets and cause e Funds to bose walue These events can also impair the
technology and other operational systems upon whidh the Funds” senvice
peronvidiers, including PIMCO a5 the Funds” investrment adviser, rely, and coukd
athiensise darupt the Funds’ sendce providers” abulity 1o Tl ther sbligations
to the Funds. For example, the speead of an infections respiratony iliness
caused by a movel strain of coron aanss (nown as COVID-19) has Caused
volatility, severe maket dislocations and hquidity consiraints in many
markets, incluckng markcets for the securities with the Funds hoid, and may
adversely affect the Funds” investments and operations

4 MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Fiands may be subject (o varous netting arangements (et
Agreements ™) with select counterpanties. Master Agreements goven he
tenmes. of certaim transacions, and are intended 1o reduce the counterparty risk
assodated with relevant ransactions by spedtying credit pratection
mechanisms and providing standardzation thatis intended to mprove legal
cenanty. Exch type of Master AGreement govems cemain bypes of
wansactions. [ifferent types of mansadions may be traded out of different
legal enttes of aMfikates of 8 parscular organization, rewltng in the need for
multiple agreements with a angle counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are speafic 1o wmque operations of different asseq types, they allow a Fund to
diose out and net ifs tokal exposure to 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respect o all the ransactions th?lﬂed umdér 3 Sll"rj'h: Master
Agreementwith 2 counterparty. For financial reporting purpdses the
Staterments of Astets and Liabelifes generally pretent derndafive astets and
lizbilites on a gross basis, which refects the full nisks and exposures prior to
feetting

Mster Agresments can alio help Brit counterpanty fisk by spedfing
collaberal por Gng Srangements Al pre-armamded exposure levels. Linder most
Mxther Agresrents, collaneral is routinely trardfired of the total nel expodne
b certain transactions (nef of existing collateral already in place) gorverned
tenger the relevant Master Agreement with 2 counterparty in & given account
excends 3 specified threshold, which eypdcally ranges from 20 10 §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. United
Saaties Treasuny Bills and U5, dallar cash ane generally the preferred forms of
oollateral, athough other securiies may be used depending on the tems
cutlined in the applicable Master Agreement Securities and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Lisbiliies a5
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gither 3 component of investments at value (saomities) or Deposits with
counberparty. Cash collateral received i not l‘r.’.1 y b In @ Segregated
Aacoount and a5 such & reflected a5 al on the Statements of Atsels and
Leabelitiies a5 Dipotits Troem counterparty. The markel value of any secunbes
recedved as collateral is not reflected a8 a component of NAV, The Runds
ceeral| Bxposune o counterparty risk can chang 13 withen a shoet
d by each ransaction suby vank Master

period, a5 it i affect
Agresment

et to ther

e EpunChiase Agresmments
dually and col '-:-:Ii'n enis ) Gowen repurchase,
; ase, and saledn wyba ions between the Funds and
N EparTes. Washer F-::.u Ay BIES. M LS ponasio i
ther things, inifiation, income payments, events of default, and
ance of collateral. The market value of rarsactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collatera pledged or received, and the net exgousre by
couriberparty a5 of peniod end are dsdosedin e Mobes 10 Schediile of
Inevestments

Master Sequrities Forwand Transadtion m'-ur“-"nh (" Master Fonward
SrsaCuons, such as TEA
ansactions by and

rities, del _-we Jhielivery or 'ad'L-uJ:..J-JZ

between the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forward
Agresments maintam ;:-r.'.'nsinns fior, ameon g other thnigs, initiation and
coninm

o, praymient and
ance of collateral. Tk
collateral pledged of rec
period end are

|._-n. IP ‘fd|i.:'.' of forwand seting transactions,
d. and the net exposure by Countepanty a8 of

rcdoted in the Notes 1o Schedule of Investments

of Actount Agreements and related J_lﬁ‘“IU.J govern deared
deriva fives. fransactions sudh as fulees, options on futures, and dea
derivativel. Sudh ransacions require posing of mital mangn a5 deter
by each refevant dearing agencywhidh |5 segregated in an acoount 3t 3
futanes commissaon mendhant (CFCM™) n_q",lxn_d wiilth e Comimd 1
Futyres Tradng Commission {TCFTCT). In the United States, counterpaty
ey be reduced a5 cred tors of an FCM cannot have a daim be Fund assets in
the segregated acoount. Forts exposure in the event of an FCM

default soenanio further reduces the Funds. Variation mangn, of

=4 i market waloe, are gener wdhanged daily, but may not be

e wnien fulunes and dedfed diernvatives inlias the partied hive
31&*-‘ d to a separabe arrangement in respect of fund margining The market
alue of acoummlated wnreali 2ed appred ation (depredaion), inital margn
:.'-.-s.':-.--J, and any unsectled vanation mangn as of penod end are disdoted in
thie Miates &0 Schiedule of Invesments

Imtesnanondl Seeaps and Defivalnes ASSODSU0N, e Master J-'-f_j:l_'ﬂl’l_—’
Credit Support Annexes (T I50A Master Agre ) gowemn blateral OTC
derivative fransactions entered inso by the Funds with select countaparties
15008 AR .fu:]'-_ 1S MsnLaEn prosducns fioe ;__v_-'n_-.'.jl -):-f:g-]f"’"_,: L
represenianons, 4 enits, collateral poseng and events of defaudt or
nation. Ew erranation indude conditions that may e
cournterparties i elect 10 terminate eary and cause settbement «
ourstanding ransactions under the applicable KL
election to temminate eatly o
[reted droumstances, the ¥
provisaons that add coonterparty protection b .-'Cl"d Coveragge o
expure if the counleparty has 3 deckne in aredl qualty bélow  pred
lewel These amoungs, if any, may be seqregated with a third-party custodian
The market vakue of OTC finandal dervative Instruments, collat
or pledged, and net exposune by counterparty as of period eng
in e Wotes 1o Schedue of knaesimients

and

of 2l
DA Master Agreement. Any
e fnandal statements, in

S| Repert | My 31, 2060 £
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Notes to Financial Statements

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund is sulbject 1o thie following fees payable a1 the following annweal rates (Stated o 3 percentage of the avrage daily net assers of each Fund, o Class, if
applicable, 1aken separately)

Feag

Furd M anagemanit Adwiecry Adsinistratve Agancy Diseribution
PIMCO Bermwada Foreign Lew Daranon Fend 0Z36% - - - -
PIMCD Bermuda UL, Low Duiation Fund 0756% - - - -
PIMED Euro Total Return Fusd - nas%™ it (i el 3 (15,
PIMED Rual Retwan Fund = nEE uE%" D% 033%"
PIMCO Shost-Term Steategy

= an 035%™ - - nEE® [1Key

& G us) — — — —_— —

s JUPY) - - -_— — —

LY ] — - — — -

. JPE o™ - - nme™ ik A

. U 0E%E™ - - neR™ 037%™

T PRLACE) S Tl Popes Fuodf i a1 10 % ot i S il e rd 15 diiitd vl o ik el v ool (15 2 aiver®e il ot Pt LRS00 vt oo B Fuocl i i 0 O o deacioss oo
ot e vt SN SO it of it Foncs e ettt ool TS apydien et ol of Dl P A it et ot el TSR P it

et FRRICEY Foryr Tl Bipinasty Fiohdl o sttt 00 St suliwscitvanine Vi Dot viw'nd il oot B it vl o - it st Pl 1 50 e e gl o 2o b et D0 50 omilfeows of lar Fimalln Ml sciiat O 000 e aeviiars
Sops o7 B spnied U 50 meltann o e R s st pasits wad O 159 pix s mpders o 88 oF D Fona®s net pasets Bveeces s of S ) malien

That FRLACE Far Toind Bintaem Fasoe oy sty 10 B clestrbendionn M DO vy Dot v e Bt et o et i i adbowss. &) 25196 i inacsce oy o i Fr st SUIR S il o e Pl s vk s sty €6 2508 o v
et o S et LIS ST il oF B ol i ks, s 1 T el Brtents gy 2o S8 oF Pk Rl A el ot il oF SUIR T il

et FHRA P Gl Satiam Farief 3 Scabioer 5 Y ek ik e VBT Sl BAS st e O P A iy i o0 S5 0 SN e O I At ) el o D LS O ATARY (S0 i RN RV e
ke PR il 2ot M et gty g 3TH agpiies o el o S s st ssrady n amoass of 31 Bslion

et ST B! Ratuer Pl ia sl 5w sl i tive ot S vawiees Sl oan 0 ot kv of B P a3 Podlowes: 5 P50 e o sl ey e et 00 il o Bt Fumnel™s e st 01 009 pa macsars: ity o0
iy oo’ 50T sallierr of e Foradn ced periedts et &) 56 pan mewoate popslery o gl of e Fomas st ety i ot of SO0 mallor

Tie FRMTEY e 3 Rt Pl o Sodieie 10 F cASTR00elct Mt BRE e el o0 Dl Bart Lesvin! oF e P e Moo £ 2T o e gty oot O S5 ¢ S0 e o ot s vt b ) 120, it etimcate et 0o O
el S smallies o Shet Rt s it @ TR pi mviets il ot ol of i R AT BERHS 0 i o 5V balliens

Tt s o3 ST i 3 PRI o Dt Vit Dmsodt o e AL Gt s St 0 ooy e 7 o D s’ B oo e 8 iy o’ D ooty ety o e st ey s o5 kw010 e e Vi woi it
QA5 of Dptr oal anseds . ' the oo poly rte v Betwasas 0 0%-0.5%, Do Db der well B A1 179 o Cler ne? sl ' e roed policy it 5 Befwenes 0 55 T0, PR DR Viier ol fop 1 B0 o (e ot i o
o gy vt o7 s [ 07 G e e o il e O 8 o iy ot e ot oF B it s sy i i 200 o gt B0 e owr ¥ e (106 o (et st 1 e iy et O s o7 ok st
B erpony wall falnct per poundineld sty P of vy seprnpeo i

et Cimsd b5 Syt 10 0 Scsay P BT ety i ¥ oo et R (CFVCe Dol et (0 el v T o et e o el riatd ol oF ek (et ieaelt F O s el vt o Do (1T, S S o il O 1SR
o Cines nad preaty of B sovped poliy i i Sebeaen J08-0 0%, Buo By S wall e 000 o Cinxy ool pesate 3 B invoad podey ro in brtasssn 0 5% 109, S S o wall b 0 008 o Derr naf praaly of S iemuad
iy ror o Satwont | 0%-0 0%, Bt the for el B 0% of Do i ivdsats o B snsomsd Sodiry ity iv Z0% v ormitint. it P o wanlf o ) 000 o Dhpir el it F e o oty Mot B (il i i vialelly. e
Adnrpsar wal zadect s sl rpde ! o iy ppenpreste

T Clpes a5 polyect to ¢ dainbestion fee Bl vwdes besicd o She R (S Cpol Rl (the oty e T s oof oo thind i e Bosinass: day of B povicos ottt & Bia i iond policy mis s Bedaar | (6. thow bhe e wall &
B3 of Oess el ssseds e rosel podey et 25 Btweer (L0 0 5, o B e well S O L08 o Clers ol paratn o' the i S0aeY ey Pl o Sebrvsent FER 10K, Ber fe foa wal b S of Cless ot sss08, o e
e iy et o bt [ E-2 0, e the dow ol o O K o Cleae oetmepnts o e i s prodiyy ot s 6 o et Do Dl e walfl e £ 06 o Coemr ot maante. e oyttt Clens o5 ot mvmednies,
S Miwnager Wall et BT SQUARRRY rle B T dieeis RIERIDNaGE

Thar Llar v Pl 10 5 MEgRmn Mo DY Vi s o e v oo e Clossonae’ Shismaty U880 Rute Sxpectoa’ (e Jrodeyridt 7 i o e e S diad Dotnans 5 ey o O v oot e e plcy 1 o8
Sl 0, Dy e o el St 8 20 o Car e paails. Wi i ody snde i Betvees 000 1 TR thao B e wall b T 20T of Diser et pniafs o e it foed polcy e 55 Dedweet 0 08 - 106, Dha B flse el e
AR o s e ety f the fsr et poley ride i Setwaet |0 0, Mo D e il B £1 29008 o ey et st o e i soedd podey ride i 0 o geeser, S the thee wall B 45 o Cleas naf ssoetn I e poley
i o et Sl o Aot deciealadi, B Aol i w1k o ity il iy S o i YOy

T (i 15 Pyt B Y ey o DO vy i o0 e Bash of gy (lnsincntin Ohviget ol vt Sgiote! (i "podicy Fate 15 of e el b0 Jo! Bt f ol o e oo Jmonh Y e asiod poley Fte 11 Divlowe
G D P S el e (1O o it it il " Dl il Pl e i ot [T PR, i D e il o TR ol it i o B il vy v o Bt 1 - TP i P e el g 00 7
Cps o s Br e oo sy ot o Gy 706 R, 0 hen dowr el B 1 TG 0" ety st il e e o iy ity o 0 o o, e Db S il i I T o (e el ety I P poiicy e o e
Pt af aeviiakilids. P Ml ool el i dnuane il il Bl o chpeiel pednivinnle

- e Elpar 15 sadyect to. 3 dhainbeton fee B venes besed o dhe Rpel of ,wmww Ol Kot Lnprteod Ehe '.!'u-'\qrr:rr‘.-'rs of P Bhare £ R Bt iy o et oo i F Bl i el prceley e
Sk 0, han the the well b (I of Cloer cod masats, & the resoad policy rate e Betwesar (0N -0 5, theo i o will o 2% of Clars et wazaty & Boe sxrond poley vt v belwsan .55 -1 0%, Bar S doe will e
DR of Tier ol piveds. & e moad polcy Fide o Betvieie® 10 0. Dhies Bhr e vl B ) SEF o i B i’ ol e iy et Jr DK o el Mt Bl e el B G5 o i T il I e palicy
iy for B ivas 1% mod sy, e Alpmicger wall ol s acpuivples cale B & e maovopeae
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Notes to Financial Statements

o Tee e 1 PRt 10 890 Sy Ve R oo gm0 B Pl Moy Tiagpat i (e “oiodicy rote 0 oo Bl i Bt ot o iy o Pl o st O g pcepef pidery e i ko (1P, ot i el
QN & Dk ol il ' e i podcy forle v Bubvieseler 0006 0L 5. P Dl g el B VDT o it o il W0t oy ponnd iy it o B et (0 50 - 1 O, it 8 Mo ol (0 O o i it i, o i
gl iy vots 1 bedwaea T OR-L 0% thar the foe woll Sur ! O of (lasr oot assats o B ks poliy o8 i 20% or grastes B B foa wall b 8 10N of Clpss nefassals ¥ e podoy rpte S e Dlasr o mof svadebie,
e Miimanger wall 2kt st igenainnd rxie Dt of dbaes ARt

L et Elear 15 syt b0 5 crindoston fae B venes D o e ok feads ."sprr-\?ﬂ't.h Ty vt T 5 oo S e by il Doy ol oo Bher e esodt | F D o pody vt o Sunowr (MO, Bt et Pt el
&K of Opar el wevely. o' the roed poliy e i St o 0 4 5, o e e vl B 1N o Cipcr oot et o e i s podcy rte Jr et 058 TR, Bl SR o wall e 1 S o Cles it asrel o
e ey it o D O LR, e D i el e O SR o e e e it F Pl 3 el sy i 4 O o g, Dl Ot et Do £ PR o e o iats. F P gy et dh O s 1 ¥ el

e Wammgmr wall sl BT SQENRET TR (1 i ey A0prigTRt

The management, advisory and adminisrative fees, If applicable, are pald monthly in armears to PIMCD for providing or aranging for the provision of advisory,
admindstrative and Shird-party serdces incuding audit, arstodial, rustee, poctfiolio sccounBng, routine legdl, ransfer agent and printng sendces. The agendy and
distribution feet, il appicable, ate pald imonthly in afears b e e B and o temmedianes that provide tervices and distnbution realng to the urels of the
applicable Fund (or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the FIMCD Bermeda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIMCO Benmada U5, Loss Duration Fund, PIMCO,
outof its management fee, will bear the costs assodated with advisory and administrative services, 0.1% of whidh is designated to cover admenisirative expenses. In
exchange for this fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of certain third-party senvices required by the Funds, indpding audit, qustodi, tustes, portiolio acoounting, legal,
transier Jgent and pri I'II.II"'I:I sendces. PIMCO, and not Unithol ders, would benefit from &y price degredie in the oost of such thind-perty sendces, nd Jlj‘lg OBTeases
resulting frorn an increaze in net assels, In addition, with respect to Funds that are subject 10 an administratve fee, FIMCD generaly makes a profiton sudh afes

A5 noted o the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are nof subgect 1o management, achisory, administrative, agency of distribution fees. PIMCO Japan
Ltd, MINMCO"s affiliate in Japan, is paid 2 fee from the Japanese irmestment Trusts or ofher Emestment vehicles that imeest in such Funds of Classes and a portion of
such fee is them allocated to PIMCO to compensale it for i sendoes

The Furd {or Clagses thereot, a5 applicable) may bear otver expenses related to Mar operation that are not covened by the man agement, ad sory, adminisrabe,
agency o dsmibution e, induding but not Brated bo: () taoes and governmental fees; () broberage fees and commrssions and ofher portiolio bamacion epenses;
(i) costs of Bormowi ng moniy, indudng interest expense; () extracndinary expémies, indudng cets of Rigaten and indemnification expenses; and (V) amy sqinies
allecated or abocable to 3 spedific Class of units, as applicable. FIMCO has paid, or will pay. the crganizational expenses assodated with PIMCO Short-Term Srategy’s
Initial set-up

FRWCO andior its afiliates will ini I'In'ﬂl'faﬂ\'ﬂl"it [0 FINCC Short-Term Strategy &1 costs and expenses, ind ud ng legal expenses, noumed in connecion with the inita
pubdic oftering of the IPY and LSD Classes of Units of the Fund in Japan (TORefng Expénses”). Alod near the commencement of the Fund's opérations, the Fundwill
redmbarse PINCO andfor its affikanes for the Offering Expenses advanced and will smortize sudh Offering Expenses over thi first 83cal vear of its operatsons. However,
PIMCO has agreed towanve reimbursement of the Oflenng Bxpenses to the exten? that such expenses exceed 0 05% per annum of te sum of the JFY and LSD

Classes’ Met Asset Value (the " Offering Expense Limitation™). Any Offesing Expenses waived due to the Offering Bxpense Uimitation may be recouped by PIMCO andior
its affiiates for 2 petiod not exceeding five yeaes from the commencement of the Fund's operations; provaded, the amount recouped by PIMCO anddor its affiliates shall
ok exceed 005% per annum of the sum of the JFY and UED Classes” MY B exther of the JPY and USD Classes of Units of the Furd is tenmanated price 1o the fill
reimbarsement of all Offening Expentes, PIMCO andior its affiliates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaning unee mbursed amounts froem that Class
Furthermore, if both of the JFY and LED Clactes of Units of the Fund are terminated prior to the full reimbursement of all Offering Expenses, PIMICO andior it affiliates
shall mot seek reimbursement of any remaining urreimbursed amounts from the Fund. PIMCO has paid, or will pay, all costs and expenses, induding legal expenses,
incumed in connecen with the irtial publec offering of the ALD Class of Units of the Fund in Japan. As of May 31, 2020, there were no recoverable Offering Bxpenses
1o PIMICO andior s ffillates

PIMICO has soposnted SMEC Nikko Se0anties nc. b s00 a5 Agent Cormparmy and Drainbuabor for e distibution and servicng of enits of he FIMCO Euro Totsl Rem
Furd, PIMCO Real Return Fund, and the IPY, USD: and ALD Clatses of PIMCO Short-Tem Stratedy to retail investors i lapan. Mo agent companies haee been
appoented for any of the ather Funds

PIMCO has paid the organizatonal expenses sssodated with e ceation of the Trust. Hfurther Funds are [sunded, such coats dinectly atmbutable to the relevant
Furd mmay be bome by the refevant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Investment Adviser is a related party to the Funds and is a majority-owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees paid to the related party, if ary, are
disdosed in Mote 9, and aogued related party fee amounts, if amy, are disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilties

Certam Funds are permitted to purchase or sell sequrisies from or o certain related affiliated funds under spedfied cond fions cutlined in procedures adopted by the
Imvesiment Adviser. The procedures have been Qesngned 10 ensure thal any purdh a5 of Sae of sequrines by a fund from oe 10 another fund that is or could be
contidered an atfiliate by virtse of hindng & common adviser (o atfliated imestment advisers), i eflected at the curent madket price. Duwring the period ended May
31, 2020, the Fundis) below engaged in purchases and sales of securities among affliated funds {amounts in thousands):

_fand Purchms Selsr
FAMCD Bermusda Fromign Low Doragon Fund 3 03 258
FIMCD Bermuda L 5. Loe Draton Feed a 162
PAMCD Emsrging Markes Bend Ford (M 15,008 B2
FIMCD Ewsn Toal Requn Fand 1105 1]
FIMCT] Feal Retum Fend 24l 1}
FIMCD SereTenm Suwegy i S 13,061

Ay Bapat | Mgy 1, 200 1]
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Notes to Financial Statemems o

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

L (ncludhrsg the Tew
e normal course of
4l it RS wecald irmecbee falure

ligies. that muay arise oul o
ety of indemnificaton dauses
the Funds hat have not yet

The Funds’ madmium igdiune g

O | a4t P SLIANE B0 Thisse Coniracts

el However, the Funds lave nat had price o

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

1w Manags

Changesin units of benefidal intered were a5 fallows (unats and amounts in thousands™)

Yest Ended Year Ewded Yoar Euded Vear Fuded

by 1, 00 Blay T, AOAN By 1, AT ey . 200
lmits. Amumt (1% Hmsmnt [T Amsani liwits At
Poca jp for units sold = = 356 15 ¢ 1577 ) § am Rty LI
. e Lt ae) 2] . RELES - MLES.
Lot of i redeemad (1111 H2E ki (23T LEEr L A
k0] LES 3 NB& NI Ha T 18 167)
Nt (decruass) mauling from
Fund unit Tvmacions e 4 [FR na % 11250 B & (PEL] HEE & (11137
Yaar Ended Tearbnded Year Faded Fear Ended
ey 1, 2000 By 71, TN Bay 31, A0 eory 1, 20
st Ampmt Dk Amsant Wasti Amsawi Usiti Amsrst
Amceipts for unit cold ik ] L N L i EUR 1,088 [k} ] 13
JEBAL) W A 189 2 EREE Ha NEA ReA His
J B} L R ] 1475 N NiA R LI
J BN K& N4 n 1AM & NiA KA LT}
J (MUEKD (1) [ A 1,356 Ha N L LT
} (TR} K KA m 338 N NI Kt [
JZ&R) H-H [ 5 1,826 L] Nk Hik s
Coxt of i redsamnd 85 112746 N MR i) .ma Ve 3424
JEAD KR [ (7L 1] (BEIT NA N R i
i K& A Wi Wi N NEA KA His
J @HR) W [ k| (2349 N Nk L] HiA
J I LU s 14m FLril] L Nk s Hia
J (TR Ka KA (.57 (TTAZ1) L] A ik LY
J2aR) (] Kk :ci] (2820 N NiA Rt Hin
Nt ircremn s
refing from: Fand unit
e tiore: W & e WSM & [modn 9 EUR i} B & (e
vy Bapary | Mgy J, 2000 m
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Your Dusded
ey T T
mts Amaml

Plmca it e unie eokd
AL anz L]
C NGm Jm wmm
A 82T
1,758
2040
u=n 1 153 04
Lot of i rodonmad
AU 11 LM
C s [Tl 6, amm
JUFT |GEE {3140
U {03}] s
JPY [4m (3v.180
=0 ITHE) (T3.5880
Nt ircreans rmuling fom
Fund urih T action o HWIN

Bel=s

Ay b ey ot o i 2 et ol madenitl Py b |

" faes b o 35 TOVE Deceapise ey

13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

The R

theat

are not named a5 defendants in amy matenal

o aware of sy matena litgation of daem pending of

w1 e thes
QRS Ee
The foregoeng speaks only a5 of the date of this repor

14, INCOME TAX

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

d the possibelity of subsequent events existin

nager hias determin

i 1o bie Issued

dvgy| Papary | Mpy 31, 2000 w
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2021
72,596 7,978,300
23,461 2,578,364
49,135 5,399,937
2,386,301
20.59 2,263
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2021
1,053,391,472.93 1,157 6,772
1,250,000 850,000
150,000 250,000
850,000 150,000
74,190.47
2017 308,558,334
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement

2021

Daniel J. lvascyn

Kimberley Stafford

Sudi N. Mariappa

Marcellus Fisher

Craig A. Dawson

Ryan P. Blute

Chris Dialynas

Scott A. Mather

Mark R. Kiesel
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Alfred T. Murata

Stephen A. Rodosky

Peter G. Strelow

Joshua Anderson

(Sachin Gupta)

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

David C. Flattum

Ryan Korinke

(Alejandro Kersman)

Lorenzo Pagani

Philippe Bodereau

Richard R. LeBrun

(Rene Martel)

Andrew Balls

Libby Cantrill

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Whitten, Candice Stack

Jonathan L. Horne

Jamil Baz

Alessandro Gandolfi

(Robin C. Shanahan)

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Joshua Davis
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Mohit Mittal

David Fisher

Daniel H. Hyman

Jerome M. Schneider

Robert 0. Young

Christian Stracke

(Eve Tournier)

Stuart T. Graham

Anna Dragesic

John W. Murray

Eric M. Sutherland

Marc P. Seidner

Jason R. Steiner

Russell Gannaway

Andrew R. Jessop

David L. Braun

Harin de Silva

Jason Mandinach

L
Adam Gubner

Andrew Bosomworth

Frank Witt

Qi Wang

Patrick Feigley

Ravi K. Mattu

Caleb Pitters

Greg E. Sharenow

(Michael A. Cudzil)
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David Hammer

Sonali Pier

Pramol Dhawan

Rick Chan

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

Geraldine Sundstrom

(Emmanuel Roman)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Dirk Manelski

Sung Hee Suh

Stephen Chang

John J. Studzinski

Erin Browne

Adam Shukovsky

Jamie Weinstein

Nicolas Granger

Mathieu Clavel
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1971
1940

BMA

BMA BMA

BMA

BMA

60

BMA
BMA
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2021 329
843,590,546,837

113 489,491,030,920
22 16,020,341,254
12 26,029,811,779
69 226,409,151,066
9 10,952,145,385
30 8,781,238,191
36 22,010,152,587
15 25,945,297,919
3 902,235,321
5 2,565,713,255
15 14,483,429,159
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2021 31
109.90
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
2(d) 670,905,056 73,732,466 422,556,446 46,438,953
2(e),3 30,870,470 3,392,665 30,623,395 3,365,511
2(H) 798,701,996 87,777,349 698,851,736 76,803,806
2(H) 314,822,326 34,598,974 282,546,439 31,051,854
45,702,592 5,022,715 36,373,824 3,997,483
2(H) 23,912,871 2,628,025 25,219,844 2,771,661
2(k),8(e) 19,755,282 2,171,105 19,239,181 2,114,386
7 17,306,918 1,902,030 13,010,339 1,429,836
64,128,683 7,047,742 60,915,714 6,694,637

1,986,106,194 218,273,071  1,589,336,918 174,668,127

2020 12 31

213,677,355 2019 12 31
183,689,431 2(9),5 121,111,682 13,310,174 139,127,937 15,290,160
2().10 195,322,419 21,465,934 209,441,754 23,017,649
2(k),8(e) 855,055,452 93,970,594 669,472,591 73,575,038
2(i) 30,865,176 3,392,083 30,865,176 3,392,083
2(h),6 35,265,467 3,875,675 30,124,648 3,310,699
2(b) 14,710,139 1,616,644 16,086,963 1,767,957
9 51,541,356 5,664,395 33,253,757 3,654,588

1,303,871,691 143,295,499  1,128,372,826 124,008,174

3,289,977,885 361,568,570  2,717,709,744 298,676,301
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2020 2019

398,802,753 43,828,423 409,454,573 44,999,058

7 228,000,000 25,057,200
8 216,289,372 23,770,202 208,752,447 22,941,894
4 122,043,872 13,412,622 124,895,219 13,725,985
23§).10 33,157,779 3,644,040 30,057,351 3,303,303
7 37,379,146 4,107,968 21,460,619 2,358,522
2(s).8(e) 19,755,282 2,171,105 19,239,181 2,114,386
4,928,294 541,620 11,190,145 1,229,797
832,356,498 91,475,979  1,053,049,535 115,730,144
2(s),8(e) 855,055,452 93,970,594 669,472,591 73,575,038
2(j).10 204,137,201 22,434,678 220,717,637 24,256,868
8 152,799,181 16,792,630 164,382,884 18,065,679
4,306,979 473,337 3,022,510 332,174
1,216,298,813 133,671,240  1,057,595,622 116,229,759
2,048,655,311 225,147,219  2,110,645,157 231,959,903
850,000 (103,214,782)  (11,343,305)  (683,902,349)  (75,160,868)
150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103  1,288,040,853 141,555,690
2020 12 31 58,608
2019 12 31 48,876 43,399,986 4,769,658 28,952,832 3,181,916
2020 12 31
148,726 2019 12 31 153,400 8(a) 37,843,422 4,158,992 32,501,945 3,581,855
2(p) (44,741,570)  (4,917,009)  (58,618,694)  (6,442,194)

1,241,322,574 136,421,351 607,064,587 66,716,398
3,289,977,885 361,568,570  2,717,709,744 298,676,301
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019

2(f) 4,012,403,139 440,963,105 3,801,610,877 417,797,035
2(f) 1,095,151,513 120,357,151 1,011,008,189 111,109,800
2(f) 1,155,727,878 127,014,494 1,152,533,169 126,663,395
2(f) 360,487,808 39,617,610 380,555,089 41,823,004
2(f) 46,057,465 5,061,715 23,903,886 2,627,037
6,669,827,803 733,014,076 6,369,611,210 700,020,272
8 2,283,500,614 250,956,717 2,125,025,461 233,540,298
4 777,771,809 85,477,122 857,070,964 94,192,099
2(t) 605,822,180 66,579,858 637,010,892 70,007,497
235,901,474 25,925,572 214,712,229 23,596,874
5,10 168,804,503 18,551,615 159,176,036 17,493,446
2(0) 108,835,693 11,961,043 120,596,262 13,253,529
43,316,136 4,760,443 50,264,299 5,524,046
44,512,301 4,891,902 27,702,379 3,044,491
4,268,464,710 469,104,272 4,191,558,522 460,652,282
2,401,363,093 263,909,804 2,178,052,688 239,367,990
52,168,123 5,733,277 57,347,069 6,302,443

23D,
10 (6,676,919) (733,793) (10,703,929) (1,176,362)
2(b) (1,321,069) (145,185) (1,278,635) (140,522)
2,445,533,228 268,764,102 2,223,417,193 244,353,550
9 103,991,820 11,428,701 98,821,295 10,860,460
2,341,541,408 257,335,401 2,124,595,898 233,493,089
2(p) 13,877,124 1,525,096 6,577,523 722,870
2,355,418,532 258,860,497 2,131,173,421 234,215,959
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PIMCO

2019 12 31

PIMCO

2020 12 31

2020 2019 12 31
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850,000 (792,957,184) (87,145,995) 150,000 1,267,204,122 139,265,733 45,705 23,722,086 2,607,057
1,556,133,972 171,019,124 472,136,883 51,887,843 96,325,043 10,586,122
(1,459,197,453)  (160,365,800) (451,300,152) (49,597,887) (91,397,156)  (10,044,547)
1,444,428 158,743
10,673,888 1,173,060 302,859 33,284
850,000 (683,902,349) (75,160,868) 150,000 1,288,040,853 141,555,690 48,876 28,952,832 3,181,916
1,694,470,162 186,222,271 520,315,348 57,182,657 126,755,898 13,930,473
(1,133,305,426)  (124,550,266) (500,320,683) (54,985,243) (116,146,639)  (12,764,516)
12,785,179 1,405,091
6,737,652 740,468 3,837,895 421,785
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,343,305) 150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103 58,608 43,399,986 4,769,658
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2020 2019 12 31

143,858 28,576,118 3,140,515 (65,196,217) (7,165,064) 461,348,925 50,702,247
2,124,595,898 233,493,089
(2,001,894,761) (220,008, 234)
1,444,428 158,743
14,992,574 1,647,684 14,992,574 1,647,684

(10,976,747) (1,206,344)
6,577,523 722,870 6,577,523 722,870
153,400 32,591,945 3,581,855 (58,618,694) (6.,442,194) 607,064,587 66,716,398
2,341,541,408 257,335,401
(1,749,772,748) (192,300,025)
12,785,179 1,405,091
15,827,024 1,739,390 15,827,024 1,739,390

(10,575,547) (1,162,253)
13,877,124 1,525,096 13,877,124 1,525,096
148,726 37,843,422 4,158,992 (44,741,570) (4,917,099) 1,241,322,574 136,421,351
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
2,341,541,408 257,335,401 2,124,595,898 233,493,089
15,508,853 1,704,423 14,579,559 1,602,294
65,464,604 7,194,560 65,882,645 7,240,503
6,676,919 733,793 10,703,929 1,176,362
1,321,069 145,185 1,278,635 140,522
12,114 1,331 59,310 6,518
(44,308) (4,869) (99,913) (10,980)
14,256,907 1,566,834 28,852,954 3,170,940
15,010,423 1,649,645 14,132,707 1,553,184
(11,695,316) (1,285,315) (11,771,410) (1,293,678)
(146,673,050) (16,119, 368) (133,320,387) (14,651,911)
(6,762,761) (743,227) (10,822,134) (1,189,353)
(130,819,174) (14,377,027) (168,718,254) (18,542,136)
(25,708,793) (2,825,396) (28,864,869) (3.,172,249)
103,679,079 11,394,331 175,692,797 19,308,638
10,538,563 1,158,188 3,895,278 428,091
2,252,306,537 247,528,488 2,086,076, 745 229,259,834
(51,884,452) (5,702,101)
6,500,203 714,372
(7,078,726) (777,952) (29,716,676) (3,265,863)
(13,730,247) (1,508,954) (640,695) (70,412)
(18,000) (1,978) (4,017,970) (441,575)
(14,326,770) (1,574,512) (86,259,793) (9,479,951)
416,000,000 45,718,400 2,239,000,000 246,066,100
(644,000, 000) (70,775,600)  (2,223,000,000)  (244,307,700)
(1,749,772,748) (192,300,025)  (2,001,894,761)  (220,008,234)
4,984,931 547,844 1,444,428 158,743
(30,720,464) (3,376,179) (28,608,691) (3,144,095)

(2,003,508,281) (220,185,560) _ (2,013,059,024) __ (221,235,187)

13,877,124 1,525,096 6,577,523 722,870
248,348,610 27,293,512 (6,664,549) (732,434)
422,556,446 46,438,953 429,220,995 47,171,387
670,905,056 73,732,466 422,556,446 46,438,953
1,300,045 142,875

233,931,730 25,709,097

(274,626,538) (30,181,457)

40,694,808 4,472,359
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2020 2019 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2020 12 31 58,608
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PI LLC
FINRA
2020 2019 12 31
0.00206 0.00190

2020 12
2020 12
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PEG

PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

AREOA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS
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2021 23

PIMCO

PIMCO
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IAS 17

16

2018
2019

2019

2019

2020

12 31
12 31

IFRS 16
IFRIC
2019 12 31
2020

2019
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2019

274.6

347.1

2019 12 31
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IFRS 16

2.59

IFRS 16

IFRS

206,586,026

(96,826)
106,291,903
90,806

(38,245,371)

274,626,538

AAM LP

27

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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12

12

IFRS
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PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
30

2020 2019 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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2020 2019 12 31 30.9 30.6
2020 2019
2020 2019 12 31
NAV
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
P1 LLC
P1 LLC 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 39.8 51.4

PIMCO
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Pl LLC 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 5.2
2.0
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2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

PIMCO

2020
36.1

PIMCO
PIMCO
31
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50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
18,961,101 12,515,207 31,476,308
(353,453) (353,453)
(19,443,474) (7,912,294) (27,355,768)
49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
2019 27.8 27.4
11,501,756 11,501,756
640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
(5,180) (5,180)
(6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000) (9,412,623)
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 - 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
2019 8.7 9.4
AAM LP AAM LLC
2019 24.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 2019
8.6 11.1

275/361

12



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR 0.2
90 AAM LP PIMCO 2020 2019
PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
228.0
PIMCO 2020 2019
373 3.7
2020 12 31 822.6
2019 724.1
2020 2019 52.4
45.8
PIMCO
2020 2019
7.8 8.6
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020
PEG PEG 92.2
2019 40.3
PEG 2020 PEG
41.3 2019 33.3
2020 12 31
13.5 2019 9.8 PEG 28.8 2019 10.3
PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20
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2020 12 31 0.278
LIBOR LIBOR
AAM LP PIMCO
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP EDCP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2020 2019 12 31 148,726
153,400 58,608
OPAD

2020 2019
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2020 2019
17,806 14,519
3.84 3.84
25.1 17.9
11.1 13.2
0.6 2.4
2020
2019
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606
39,751 39,751 14,519
23,492 (23,492)
(23,492) (23,492) 16,178
(6,717) (6,717) 12,618
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 11,319 17,806
2.52
17,806 2020
14,622 2019 2020 27,775
2020 30
9,732
2020 12 31 58,177
431 AAM LLC
2019 23,492 2019 29

3,171
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401

13

2019

2019 12 31

48.4

24.5

LTIP

1974

15.5

LTIP

401
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2020 2019
14.6
2020 12 31 2025 12 31
2020 2019
LTIP
2020
54.8 50.5
2020
116.3 111.1
100
2020 2019 55.1
201 301
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2020 2019 12 31
874.8 688.7

250,000

2.0
2020 167 2019
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12 31
2020 2019
29,332 11,770
3,432,731 2,022,507
121,394,722 100,158,160
124,856,785 102,192,437
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
103,991,820 98,821,295
2020 2019 12 31 23.2 36.7
2020
2019 12 31 44.8 21.4 2020
2019 12 31 247 61
10
2020 12 31
29,593,350
6,304,014
240,983
376,312
2,179,123
2020 12 31 39.8

12 31
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2023
2024
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31 2020 12

13

PIMCO
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13
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14

731.2

15
2020 10
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15
66.8
2019 12 31
250

2019

2019

covibD 19
PIMCO CovID 19
CovID 19
1934
2020 12 31 Pl LLC
250 66.5
Pl LLC 57.5
57.2
2020
535.5
2020
582,606,016
222,021
AREOA AAM LLC AAM LP

AREOA 7.8
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16

2021 23

2021 15 40,974 PIMCO
2021 31
15,582
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Note 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(d) $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(e), 3 30,870,470 30,623,395
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(f) 798,701,996 698,851,736
Private accounts 2(f) 314,822,326 282,546,439
Prepaid expenses 45,702,592 36,373,824
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(f) 23,912,871 25,219,844
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Receivables from affiliates 7 17,306,918 13,010,339
Other current assets 64,128,683 60,915,714
Total current assets 1,986,106,194 1,589,336,918
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $213,677,355
and $183,689,431 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 2(9), 5 121,111,682 139,127,937
Right-of-use assets 2(j), 10 195,322,419 209,441,754
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Goodwill 2(i) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(h), 6 35,265,467 30,124,648
Investments in associates 2(b) 14,710,139 16,086,963
Other noncurrent assets 9 51,541,356 33,253,757
Total noncurrent assets 1,303,871,691 1,128,372,826
Total assets $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 398,802,753 409,454,573
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 - 228,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 216,289,372 208,752,447
Commissions payable 4 122,043,872 124,895,219
Lease liabilities 2(), 10 33,157,779 30,057,351
Payables to affiliates 7 37,379,146 21,460,619
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Other current liabilities 4,928,294 11,190,145
Total current liabilities 832,356,498 1,053,049,535
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Lease liabilities 2(j), 10 204,137,201 220,717,637
Other accrued compensation 8 152,799,181 164,382,884
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,306,979 3,022,510
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,216,298,813 1,057,595,622
Totd liabilities 2,048,655,311 2,110,645,157
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,214,782) (683,902,349)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,308,035,518 1,288,040,853
Class M members (58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020
and 48,876 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2019) 43,399,986 28,952,832
Class M unit option holders (148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and 153,400 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2019) 8(a) 37,843,422 32,591,945
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(p) (44,741,570) (58,618,694)
Tota capital 1,241,322,574 607,064,587
Totd liabilities and capital $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Revenues: Note 2020 2019
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(f) $  4,012,403,139 3,801,610,877
Private accounts 2(f) 1,095,151,513 1,011,008,189
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(f) 1,155,727,878 1,152,533,169
Distribution and servicing fees 2(f) 360,487,808 380,555,089
Other 2(f) 46,057,465 23,903,886
Total revenues 6,669,827,803 6,369,611,210
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,283,500,614 2,125,025,461
Commissions 4 777,771,809 857,070,964
General and administrative 2(t) 605,822,180 637,010,892
Professional fees 235,901,474 214,712,229
Occupancy and equipment 5,10 168,804,503 159,176,036
Marketing and promotional 2(0) 108,835,693 120,596,262
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 43,316,136 50,264,299
Other 44,512,301 27,702,379
Tota expenses 4,268,464,710 4,191,558,522
Operating income 2,401,363,093 2,178,052,688
Other income, net 52,168,123 57,347,069
Finance costs 2(j), 10 (6,676,919) (20,703,929)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,321,069) (1,278,635)
Net income before income taxes 2,445,533,228 2,223,417,193
Income tax expense 9 103,991,820 98,821,295
Net income 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(p) 13,877,124 6,577,523
Comprehensive income $ 2,355,418,532 2,131,173,421

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 $ 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 $ 28,576,118 $  (65196,217) $ 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 - - 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) - - (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 - - - - 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 14,992,574 - 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on vested options 10,673,888 - 302,859 (10,976,747) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694) 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Baances at December 30, 2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035,518 58,608 ¢ 43,399,986 148,726 3 37,843,422 ¢ (44,741,570) $ 1,241,322,574

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

288/361



EDINETO O OO
O0000000000000000000000000000000000(E15034)
OoO0oooooooooooooooo
PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,508,853 14,579,559
Depreciation and amortization 65,464,604 65,882,645
Finance costs 6,676,919 10,703,929
Equity inloss of associates 1,321,069 1,278,635
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 12,114 59,310
Unrealized and realized net gain on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (44,308) (99,913)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 14,256,907 28,852,954
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,010,423 14,132,707
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,695,316) (11,771,410)
Income taxes paid (146,673,050) (133,320,387)
Interest paid (6,762,761) (10,822,134)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (130,819,174) (168,718,254)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (25,708,793) (28,864,869)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 103,679,079 175,692,797
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 10,538,563 3,895,278
Net cash provided by operating activities 2.252.306,537 2086,076,745
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - (51,884,452)
Cash acquired through acquisition 6,500,203 -
Purchases of property and equipment (7,078,726) (29,716,676)
Purchases of intangible assets (13,730,247) (640,695)
Purchases of investments in associates (18,000) (4,017,970)
Net cash used in investing activities (14,326,770) (86,259,793)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 416,000,000 2,239,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (644,000,000) (2,223,000,000)
Distributions paid (1,749,772,748) (2,001,894,761)
Contributions received 4,984,931 1,444,428
Principal elements of lease payments (30,720,464) (28,608,691)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,003,508,281) (2,013,059,024)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 13,877,124 6,577,523
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 248,348,610 (6,664,549)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 422,556,446 429,220,995
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 1,300,045 -
Initial recognition of right-of-use assets - 233,931,730
Initial recognition of lease liabilities - (274,626,538)
Derecognition of future lease obligation - 40,694,808

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2020, 58,608
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financia
statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by

PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00206% interest and 0.00190% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branch in Italy until December 1, 2020, at which time the branch was sold to the Italian branch of PIMCO
Europe GmbH (PEG), formally PIMCO Deutschland GmbH.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Austraia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor inthe U.S.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) is acaptive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)

291/361



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 23, 2021.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(©) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted |FRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under IFRS 16, the Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for all leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initially
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538

(d) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $347.1 million and $179.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $2.3 million and
$27 thousand at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Management considers investments in money market
accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash
equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign
programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

(e Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value

are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Transactions in these
investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

() Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually at the
end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and the fees
are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(i) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(K Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

() Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(m) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generaly distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after
the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(n) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(0) Marketing and Promational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(p) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been tranglated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

() Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evauation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(f)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(s Defared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

(u) Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.9 million and
$30.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2020 and 2019.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership, at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2020 or
2019.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at arate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (primarily on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. Pl LLC incurred $39.8
million and $51.4 million in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively, and isincluded in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an
applicable exemption applies such as if the redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested
dividends or capital gain distributions or appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. The
contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generaly 1% if redeemed during the first year following
purchase for applicable PIMCO Mutual Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initial
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $5.2 million and $2.0 million in
contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively,
which isincluded in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(5) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Total
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
Additions 18,961,101 12,515,207 - 31,476,308
Disposals (353,453) - - (353,453)
Depreciation and amortization (19,443,474) (7,912,294) - (27,355,768)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.8 million and $27.4 million during 2020
and 2019, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(6) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
software relationships  technology name Total
Carrying amount as of
December31,2018 $ 11,501,756 - - - 11,501,756
Additions 640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
Disposals (5,180) - - - (5,180)
Amortization (6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000)  (9,412,623)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2019 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467

The Company recorded amortization expense of $8.7 million and $9.4 million during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

(Continued)

300/361



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.7 million and $36.1 million
during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services and payables to other &ffiliates
in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of
PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $8.6 million and $11.1 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2020
and 2019, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term loans, and at December 31,
2019 had outstanding short-term loans of $228.0 million, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2020 and 2019, PIMCO incurred
$373 thousand and $3.7 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which isincluded in other expenses in
the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $822.6
million (2019: $724.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $52.4 million and $45.8 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.8 million and $8.6 million during
2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2020, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services alocated to PEG was $92.2 million (2019: $40.3 million)
greater than the revenue allocated from PEG and is presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - pooled
funds in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for
performing other shared services are alocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors.
During 2020, costs alocated to PEG were $41.3 million (2019: $33.3 million) and are included as a reduction of
compensation and benefits and general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a $13.5 million (2019: $9.8 million)
receivable from PEG and a $28.8 million (2019: $10.3 million) payable to PEG, which are included within
receivables from affiliates and payables to ffiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financia condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.278% as of December 31, 2020) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the magjority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuas
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 8
(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If,
at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option
award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to
receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit
Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and no further M units shall be
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, 148,726 and 153,400 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 58,608 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options.

Thefair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed to M unit
holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers
using the Merton Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one
third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806 14,519
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1% 17.9%
Expected dividends 11.1% 13.2%
Risk free rate of return 0.6% 2.4%

A summary of the activity in 2020 and 2019 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Total fair value
Outstanding at
December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:
Granted - 39,751 39,751 14,519
Vested 23,492 (23,492) - -
Exercised (23,492 - (23,492) 16,178
Forfeited - (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,416
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2020 - - - % -
(Continued)
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The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2020 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.52 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $17,806 for 2020 and $14,622
for 2019. M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised
under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732
M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2020, 58,177 M units are owned
by current and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 3,171 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2020 and 2019 was $15.5 million and $14.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2020, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $24.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation recorded under these programs was $1.4 billion
and $1.3 billion during 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(©) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $54.8 million and $50.5 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively.
LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $116.3 million and $111.1
million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included within current accrued compensation and
noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LPisthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Interna Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2020 and 2019 was $55.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the election
of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a
select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3),
and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the
plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the
employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2020 and 2019 was $874.8 million and $688.7 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz SE
determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines the
discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and totaled $2.0 million in 2020 and $167 thousand million in 2019, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2020 2019
Current:

Federa $ 29,332 11,770
State 3,432,731 2,022,507
Foreign 121,394,722 100,158,160
Tota current 124,856,785 102,192,437

Deferred:
Foreign (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total deferred (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total provision $ 103,991,820 98,821,295

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.
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At December 31, 2020 and 2019, income taxes payable amounted to $23.2 million and $36.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets amounted to
$44.8 million and $21.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
amounted to $247 thousand and $61 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying

consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2020 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of |eases of low value assets

$ 29,593,350
6,304,014

240,983

376,312

2,179,123

For the year ended December 31, 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $39.8 million.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

(11) Financia Risk Management

$ 38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267
(24,146,287)

$ 237,294,980

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Market Risk
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Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(8 Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2020.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;

this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 7.
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(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2020, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2020 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. During periods of high
volatility and uncertainty experienced by markets in 2020, PIMCO Funds and private accounts experienced net
asset outflows and negative returns relating to the disruption caused by COVID-19, but it did not result in a
material adverse impact to the Company during the year. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. As of December 31, 2020, Pl LLC had net capital of
$66.8 million for regulatory purposes, which was $66.5 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was
$57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250 thousand.

(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $731.2
thousand and $535.5 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the accompanying statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

December 31
2020 2019
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 582,606,016 $ 493,340,219
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 222,021 170,996

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)

309/361



EDINETO O OO
O0o000000000000000000000000000000000(EL5034)
00O0000000000000000
PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(15) Acquisition

On October 1, 2020, AREOA was contributed to the Company from Allianz of America, Inc., an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, through AAM LLC and AAM LP. Asthe contribution qualified as a transaction
between entities under common control, AREOA was contributed at a net book value of $7.8 million, which is
included in contributions in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financia condition
through April 23, 2021, the date the consolidated financia statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following event to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 40,974 vested on January 15, 2021. On March 31, 2021, these vested awards
were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,582 M units.
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2021 30

1,218,980,021 133,965,904
24,143,992 2,653,425
640,599,756 70,401,913
323,112,265 35,510,038
45,041,939 4,950,109
21,334,131 2,344,621
23,002,042 2,527,924
26,850,035 2,950,819
63,200,555 6,945,741
2,386,264,736 262,250,494
226,717,390 114,004,405 12,529,084
189,975,621 20,878,321
974,184,449 107,062,871
30,865,176 3,392,083
33,187,129 3,647,265
39,183,015 4,306,213
55,254,579 6,072,478
1,436,654,374 157,888,316
3,822,919,110 420,138,810
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395,823,404 43,500,992
602,171,423 66,178,639

97,046,294 10,665,388

31,084,922 3,416,233

63,658,292 6,996,046

23,002,042 2,527,924

5,815,416 639,114

1,218,601,793 133,924,337

974,184,449 107,062,871

200,119,987 21,993,187

155,480,580 17,087,316

4,060,949 446,298

1,333,845,965 146,589,672

2,552,447,758 280,514,009

850,000 (85,381,560) (9,383,433)
150,000 1,313,915,921 144,399,360
74,190 62,594,657 6,879,153
103,555 26,537,533 2,916,475
(47,195,199) (5.186,752)

1,270,471,352 139,624,802

3,822,919,110 420,138,810

313/361



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 30

2,077,603, 355 228,328,609
605,560,698 66,551,121
611,553,473 67,209,727
174,139,153 19,137,893

18,174,820 1,997,413

3,487,031,499 383,224,762

1,256,149, 699 138,050,852
389,891,600 42,849,087
312,358,275 34,328,174
109,509,733 12,035,120

84,905,818 9,331,149
52,028,090 5,717,887
23,765,858 2,611,868
20,100,930 2,209,092
2,248,710,003 247,133,229
1,238,321,496 136,091,532
98,732,681 10,850,722
(2,910,107) (319,821)
995,294 109,383
1,335,139, 364 146,731,816
46,340,393 5,092,809
1,288,798,971 141,639,007
(2,453,629) (269, 654)
1,286,345,342 141,369,353
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2021 30
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,343,305) 150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103 58,608 43,399,986 4,769,658
910,405,280 100,053,540 290,446,808 31,920,104 87,946,883 9,665,362
(909,072,477) (99,907,065) (284,566, 405) (31,273,848) (77,649,354)  (8,533,664)
8,451,432 928,812
8,048,987 884,584 8,897,142 977,796
850,000 (85, 381,560) (9,383,433) 150,000 1,313,915,921 144,399,360 74,190 62,594,657 6,879,153
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2021 30

148,726 37,843,422 4,158,992 (44,741,570) (4,917,099) 1,241,322,574 136,421,351
1,288,798,971 141,639,007
(1,271,288,236) (139,714,577)
8,451,432 928,812
5,640,240 619,862 5,640,240 619,862

(16,946,129) (1,862,380)
(2,453,629) (269, 654) (2.453,629) (269, 654)
103,555 26,537,533 2,916,475 (47,195,199) (5.186,752) 1,270,471,352 139,624,802
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2021 30

1,288,798,971

141,639,007

5,527,181 607,437
32,361,814 3,556,563
2,910,107 319,821
(995,294) (109, 383)
(327,452) (35,987)
2,103,482 231,173
15,036,589 1,652,521
(7,960,091) (874,814)
(54,843,368) (6,027,286)
(2,910,107) (319,821)
152,391,041 16,747,775
(11,554,500) (1,269,840)
413,326,409 45,424,572
26,920,238 2,958,534

1,860,785,020

204,500,274

(6,180,581) (679,246)
(1,488,667) (163,605)
(23,500,150) (2,582,666)
(31,169,398) (3,425,517)
337,000,000 37,036,300

(337,000,000)

(1,271,288,236)
8,451,432

(16,250,224)

(37,036, 300)
(139,714,577)
928,812
(1,785,900)

(1,279,087,028)

(140,571,664)

(2,453,629) (269,654)
548,074,965 60,233,439
670,905,056 73,732,466

1,218,980,021

133,965,904
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1940 15
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2021
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2019 12 17 PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
2020 PIMCO
PIMCO 2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 11 18 PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO

2021 18
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2021 1,053,391,472.93 1,157 6,772
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2021 25 2,748

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2021 10 1,000 1,109 9,900

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2021 1,209 13 2,869

1989
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2021 100
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121
2021 483 2,313

2021 30 6,700
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Trustee Services Bermuda Limited
BMA
BMA
BMA
2001
BMA
BMA BMA
BMA

60
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Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

AML KYC
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829 2020 12 2,058.1
BMA
Company Unit Trust
Partnership
1981
2006
1972
BMA BMA
BMA 1969
BMA
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BMA

BMA
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1989
1989 2001
2009
2001
2009
1989
100
15
100 21
2009 2009
2009 2009
2035 31
2006
2007
1998 BMA CIS
BMA
BMA Institutional
fund Administered fund Standard fund

Specified Jurisdiction fund
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and
the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights
are hereafter collectively referred to as“financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (2)
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2021

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2021

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Rea Return Fund each of their cash
flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 12, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changesin

capital, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financia position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it

accounts for leasesin 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 23, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real
Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods
indicated in the table below. These financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financia statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31, 2020

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year ended
May 31, 2020

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financia statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their
cash flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 5, 2020
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